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Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant: (1) has filed all reports
required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the
Registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such
filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes [X] No [_]

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item
405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and will not be contained, to
the best of the Registrant's knowledge, in definitive proxy or information
statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K/A or any
amendment to this Form 10-K/A. [_]

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant is an accelerated filer (as
defined in Exchange Act Rule 12b-2). Yes [X] No [_]

The aggregate market value of the voting stock held by non-affiliates of the
Registrant was $433,427,759 as of June 28, 2002 (computed by reference to the
closing sale price of the Registrant's common stock on the New York Stock
Exchange on that date), using the definition of beneficial ownership contained
in Rule 13d-3 promulgated pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and
excluding shares held by directors and executive officers. As of June 28, 2002,
the Registrant had 289,663,717 shares of common stock outstanding, excluding
10,140,283 shares of common stock held by the Registrant as treasury stock.

Portions of the definitive proxy statement relating to the 2003 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders of the Registrant's, which will be filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days of December 31, 2002, are
incorporated by reference in Item 10, Item 11, Item 12 and Item 13 of Part III
of this Form 10-K/A.

We hereby amend our original Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002,
to include Schedule I--Condensed Financial Information of Reliant Resources,
Inc. and Exhibits 4.3 and 10.42. Except for the foregoing, no attempt has been
made in this Form 10-K/A to modify or update other disclosures as presented in
the original Form 10-K.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Reliant Resources, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Houston, Texas

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Reliant
Resources, Inc. and Subsidiaries (the Company), as of December 31, 2001 and
2002, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders'
equity and comprehensive income (loss), and cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2002. Our audits also include the
financial statement schedules listed in the Index at Item 15(a) (2). These
financial statements and the financial statement schedules are the
responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements and the financial statement schedules
based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in
all material respects, the financial position of the Company at December 31,
2001 and 2002, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended December 31, 2002, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also,
in our opinion, such financial statement schedules, when considered in relation
to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, present fairly
in all material respects the information set forth therein.

As discussed in notes 7, 6 and 2 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Company changed its method of accounting for derivative instruments and
hedging activities in 2001 and changed its method of accounting for goodwill
and other intangibles and its method of presenting its trading and marketing
activities from a gross basis to a net basis in 2002, respectively.

As discussed in note 1, the accompanying 2000 and 2001 consolidated
financial statements have been restated.

DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
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Houston, Texas
March 31, 2003 (April 29, 2003 as to Schedule I listed in the Index at Item
15(a) (2))

RELIANT RESOURCES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
STATEMENTS OF CONSOLIDATED OPERATIONS

(Thousands of Dollars, except per share amounts)

Year Ended December 31,

(As Restated, (As Restated,

see note 1) see note 1)
Revenues:
ROV NG S v e ettt e e e e e e e eaeeeeeeeeeenneeeeseeeenenenneeeeeeenenns $3,275,246 $6,129,942 $11,2
Trading margins (See notes 2(d) and 2(L)) c e ve e eeeeennn. 199,793 369,436 3
1 o= 3,475,039 6,499,378 11,5
Expenses:
Fuel and cost 0f gas S0ld. . ...ttt iiiit ettt eeenennennens 1,171,378 1,975,674 1,4
PUTrChasSed POWET . v vttt e e ettt et e et ettt aee et eeaeeeeaeeens 925,942 2,509,045 7,3
Accrual for payment to CenterPoint Energy, InC.............. - - 1
Operation and maintenancCe. .. ...ttt ittt eenneeneneens 422,314 494,286 9
General, administrative and development............cceoee... 304,061 503,150 6
European energy goodwill impairment.............c.ccciiiie.... - - 4
[ o3 et Y o = il @ o O 114,825 152,479 3
2N 1L s s A= il A 3o 78,857 94,285
1 o= 3,017,377 5,728,919 11,4
OpPerating INCOME . & vt it e e ettt ettt et et eaee e eeeeeeeeeeanens 457,662 770,459 1
Other (Expense) Income:
(Losses) gains from investments, net..........c.c.oiiiiiieennn.. (16,509) 22,040 (
Income of equity investment of unconsolidated subsidiaries.. 42,860 57,440
Gain on sale of development project.......euiiiiiitennnnenn. 18,011 -
(@} ol ol o 1 Y 5,963 8,890
TNt EresSt EXPEN S e i v i it e e ettt ettt et ettt aee e (42,337) (63,268) (3
Interest INCOmME. . v it ittt it it ettt ettt ettt teeeeeeeneenns 17,732 26,645
Interest (expense) income--affiliated companies, net........ (172,269) 12,477
Total other (expense) INCOME. .. .. vvi ittt mneeeeeeeannns (146,549) 64,224 (2
Income (Loss) Before Income Taxes, Cumulative Effect of
Accounting Change and Extraordinary Item............coeee... 311,113 834,683 (1
TNCOME TaAX E XIS e i i it vttt et et ettt e aeeee e eeaeeeeeneenneeeens 95,893 274,394 2
Income (Loss) Before Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change
and Extraordinary TEem. . ...ttt ittt ettt ettt eeeeaeens 215,220 560,289 (3
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax.......... - 3,062 (2
Extraordinary item, net of taxX........i i iiinennennnnn 7,445 -
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Net TNCOME (LOSS) vttt vttt e et ettt ettt eseeeeeeeeeneeenns $ 222,665 $ 563,351 S (5

Basic and Diluted Earnings (Loss) per Share:

Income (loss) before cumulative effect of accounting change. $ 2.02 S
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax.......... 0.01
Net 1NCOME (LOSS) vt ittt ittt et ettt ettt et eeeeneeenns S 2.03 S

See Notes to our Consolidated Financial Statements

F-3

RELIANT RESOURCES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(Thousands of Dollars)

ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash and cash equUivalent s . ...ttt ittt et ettt et et e ettt aeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaeeeeeeeeanens
L2 w2 =T B = = o
Accounts and notes receivable and accrued unbilled revenues, principally customer, net........
Note receivable related to receivables facCility. ..ottt it ettt eeeeeeeeeeaeeeeeneens
Accounts and notes receivable-—affiliated companies, Net....... ..ttt iin ettt eenneenneeens
I 0 T o U @
Stranded costs settlement receivable. ... ..ttt ittt ettt i i e e
Trading and marketing aSSet S . v i ittt it et i et e et ettt e e e ettt eaeeee e eeaeeaeeeeeaaean
Non-trading derivative ASSet S . v i ittt ittt e et ettt ettt et e eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaaeeeennens
Margin deposits on energy trading and hedging activities....... ittt tteeeeneeennn
Collateral for electric generating eqUIiPmMEnt . @ittt ittt ittt e e ettt et e ettt eeeeaeeeeeannenn
Accumulated deferred 1NCOME LaXES . v ittt it ittt ittt tteennnneeeeeeeeeennnneeeeeeeennnnnees
Prepayments and OLher CUIrTrent aSSel S . it ittt ittt ittt ettt ettt aee e eeeaeeeeeeeenaaeeens

ToLal CULTENE ASSEE S . i it ittt it ittt e et e e ettt e ae e e et e eaeeeeeeeeeaeeeeeeeeeaeeeeeeeenneeeens
Property, Plant and EqQUIpmMent, Net ... ittt ittt ittt ettt ettt eeaeeeeeeeeeaeeeeeeeenneeeens

Other Assets:
(@YY 7 N N R o T R
Other 1ntangibles, NMet ...ttt ittt ettt ettt et e e ee et eaeeeeeeeeeaeeeeeeeenaeeeens
Notes receivable-—affiliated companies, Nel .. ...ttt ittt ittt eeeeeeeeeeeaaeeeeenens
Equity investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries....... .ttt ettt eeeeeeeeeeenneeeens
Trading and Mmarketing aSSel S . v ittt it ettt e e et e et et e ettt eaeeee e eeaeeeeeeeeanean
Non-trading derivative @S Set S . v it ittt ittt ettt ettt ettt et eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaaeeeennens
Stranded costs indemnification receivable. .. ...ttt ittt et e e e e e e e e
Accumulated deferred 1NCOME LaXE S . v i it i i i ittt ine e e e e e eeneeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaseeeeeeens
J Y o T R B I Y =
Restricted Cash. ..ttt i ittt e e e e e ettt e et ettt et ettt e e e e e
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LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Current portion of long-term debt and short-term boOrrowings....... ..ottt iiiiinnneeeeenn
Accounts pavable, principally Lrade. ...ttt ittt ettt et e te ettt eaeeee ettt
Trading and marketing 1iabd it ie S . @ittt ittt e ettt ettt ettt eaeeee e eeneeeeeeeeanens
Non-trading derivative liabilities. . ...ttt ittt et ettt et aee e eeeaaeaeeanens
Margin deposits from customers on energy trading and hedging activities............. ... ..
Retaill CUSLOMET dePOS It S . v i it ittt ittt e e e e e et ettt et ettt e eee et eaeeeeeeeeeaeeeeeeeeneeeeens
Accumulated deferred 1NCOME LaXES . vttt ittt ittt ittt teeennnneeeeeeeeeennnneeeeeeeennnnnees

Other Liabilities:
Accumulated deferred 1NCOME LaXES . vttt ittt ittt tteennnneeeeeeeeeennnneeeeeeeennnnnees
Trading and marketing L1iabd it ie S . @ittt ittt e ettt et et ettt eeeeee e eeeeeeeeeeeannnn
Non-trading derivative liabilities. . ... i iii ittt ittt et ettt ettt aeeeeeeeeeaaeeaannens
MaJOr MAINtENANCE TSIV e & i i i it ettt et e e ettt e aa e e e e e eeaeeeeeeeeeneeeeeeeeaeeeeeeeeeaneeeeneens
Accrual for payment to CenterPoint ENergy, INC. ...t ieue e et eeeneeeeeeeenneeeeeeeeaseeeeesens

@Y o X R = (LU 5 1Y o )

Commitments and Contingencies (note 14)

Stockholders' Equity:
Preferred stock; par value $0.001 per share (125,000,000 shares authorized; none outstanding).
Common Stock, par value $0.001 per share (2,000,000,000 shares authorized; 299,804,000 issued)

Additional paid—In Capifal. ... ittt ittt ettt et et et et e et e
Treasury stock at cost, 11,000,000 and 9,198, 766 SharesS. ... ..ttt tneeeeeeeenneeeeeeennnens
Retained Earning S . v vttt it it e ettt e e e e e e et et et ettt et e
Accumulated other COmMPreneNSIvE LOS S . i i i i ittt ittt ettt tae e e et eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaeeeeeeeens
STOCKNOLIAEr S UL Y e v vt ittt et e e e e e et e et e e e e et e e e ettt e e
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' EqUity .. ...ttt ttt ettt eeneeeeeneenneeeens

See Notes to our Consolidated Financial Statements

F-4

RELIANT RESOURCES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
STATEMENTS OF CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOWS

(Thousands of Dollars)
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Y
2000
(As Resta
Cash Flows from Operating Activities: see note
B E= o I o YT =S (B Y <1 S 222,
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities:
European energy goodwill dmpairment . ... ...ttt ittt ittt ittt ettt eee e
Depreciation and amortization. ...ttt ittt ettt et ettt et e e 193,
Deferred 1NCOME LaAX O St it it it it ettt et ettt et et et et e et et e e eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaeaeas (27,
Net trading and marketing assets and liabilities........iiiiiiiiiiniieeteennneeennn (3,
Net non-trading derivative assets and liabilities......c.oiii ittt eennnenenns
Net amortization of contractual rights and obligations..........ceiiiiiiiiiennennnn.
Curtailment and related benefit enhancement..... ... ...ttt ittt tneeeeeeeeanens
Accounting settlement for certain benefit plans........iii ittt eeteieeennnneeeens
Contributions of marketable securities to charitable foundation................c..... 15,
Impairment of marketable equity securities and other investments.................... 26,
Undistributed earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries..........iiiiiiiiiiiiennnnnn. (24,
Accrual for payment to CenterPoint, INC. ... ..ttt ittt eeeeeeeeneeeeeeeeaneeeeeeens
Gain on sale of development ProOJeCE c v i i vt it i ittt it e e ettt et e ettt eeeeeeeeeeaeeas (18,
Stranded cost indemnification settlement gain.........ouiiiiiitinneeeeeeenneeneeeens
Stranded cost contracts settlement galn........ ittt ittt tneeeeeeeenneeeeeeens
Cumulative effect of accounting change. .. ... ..ttt ittt ettt eeeeeeeaenns
ExXtraordinary I e, ittt it e et et e e e e e et e et ettt e (7,
[ 3 o ol o 1 Y (2,
Changes in other assets and liabilities:
Restricted Cash. .ttt ittt et et et et et et et et et et e ettt ettt ettt e e e e e e (50,
Accounts and notes receivable and unbilled revenue, net........c.o.iiiiiiinnnnnennnn (1,174,
Accounts receivable/payable—-—affiliated companies, Net.......uuiuiineneeenneennnn (168,
IS 0 VY o Y (9,
Collateral for electric generating equipment, net....... ...ttt eeennnnn (84,
Margin deposits on energy trading and hedging activities, net........... .. .. (206,
Net non-trading derivative assets and liabilities....... .ot ennnnnnns
Prepald lease 0bligation. ...ttt ittt ittt ettt et e eee et
Proceeds from sale of debt SeCUrifies . . .u ittt ittt ittt ettt ettt ee e e teeeeneann 123,
(O] o TS ol b Bl ol =3 o R N Y = = i (92,
(@] ol o TS = Y = S it (103,
ACCOUNE S PaAYAD e . i ittt ittt ettt e e e e e et e e ettt e e 1,465,
Taxes Payable/reCeivabl . @ittt ettt ettt et ettt e et e e e e e 57,
Other current 1iabilitie S . i ittt ettt et ettt ettt tee s e eeeeeneeaeeenenan 209,
(@] ol o TS ol N =Y o i 5 5 s == (11,
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities........ . iinnnnn.. 327,
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Capital exXPenditUre S . v ittt ittt e i e ettt ettt et ettt e e et e (933,
Business acquisitions, net of cash acquired. ... ...ttt ittt enneeeens (2,121,
Proceeds from sale-leaseback LranSaChionS . v it i it ittt it ittt eeeeeeeeeeeeeeneeeeeeneean 1,000,
Payment of business purchase obligation. ... ...ttt it ittt teeeeeeeeenneeeens (981,
Investments in unconsolidated sSUbsSIdiaries . ... ittt ittt ettt ettt (5,
Distribution from equity investment in unconsolidated subsidiary............... ... ...,
L@ 3 o ol o 1 PR 28,
Net cash used in investing activities. ... ..ttt ittt ittt ettt eeee et enaeeaens (3,013,
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Proceeds from long—term debt . ... ..ttt ittt ettt ettt ettt e e 770,

Proceeds from issuance of stocCk, Net .. ...ttt ittt ittt ettt ettt e teeeeneean
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Payments of long-—term debt . ... ..t ittt e ettt et et e et e e e (307,
(Decrease) increase in short-term borrowings, Net......... ittt tteneeneeennn (31,
Change in notes with affiliated companies, net ... .. ...ttt ittt ittt eeeeeeeeeeannns 1,219,
Purchase oOf treasuUry StOCK . .. ittt ittt ittt e e et e ettt et ettt eeeeeeeeeenaeaeens
Contributions from CenterPoint . ...ttt ittt ittt ittt ettt et teeeeeeeeeeaeeeeeenenn 1,094,
Payments Of finanCing CoOSE S . .ttt ittt ittt e et ettt e tae e eeaeeeeeeeenaeaeens (
L@ 3 o ol o 1 PR (23,
Net cash provided by financing activities. ... ...ttt it ieeeenneanens 2,721,
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents..........c.oiiiiiieinnnnn.. 5,
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents. .. ... iii ittt iime ettt eeenneeeeeeeaeeeeeenens 40,
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year. ... ...ttt ittt tteeeeeeeennneeens 49,
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End Of Year . ... ii ittt it ittt tnee ettt eeneeeeeeeeneeeeens $ 89,

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:

Cash Payments:
Interest (net of amounts capitalized) ... ...ttt ittt ittt ettt taeeeeeeeenneeeens S 205,
I COME LA RO S e vt v v e e e e e e e e e e e e aa e e e e e oeaeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaeeeeeeeeeaeeeeeeeenneeeens 72,

See Notes to our Consolidated Financial Statements

F-5

RELIANT RESOURCES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
STATEMENTS OF CONSOLIDATED STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
(Thousands of Dollars)

Additional
Common Treasury Paid-In
Stock Stock Capital
Balance December 31, 1990, ...ttt ittt ettt ittt S—— S - 8 —-

Net income (As Restated, see Note 1) .« ittt ittt tteeeneeneennns
Contributions from CenterPoint...... ...ttt teeeeeeeeennenns
Transfer to common stock and additional paid-in capital............ 1 2,349,693
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Foreign currency translation adjustments..............ciiiiinnn..
Additional minimum non-qualified pension liability
adjustment, net of tax of $0.4 million...........uiiiiiinnnen
Reclassification adjustment for impairment loss on available-
for-sale securities realized in net income, net of tax of $9
04 O X o
Unrealized loss on available-for-sale securities, net of tax of
Lo S ¢ 0 0 s T

Comprehensive income (As Restated, see note 1)........0iiiiiieonn.

Balance December 31, 2000 (As Restated, see note 1)......ciiiiieun.. 1 —— 2,349,693
Net income (As Restated, see Note 1) .« ittt ittt tteeeneeneennns

Contributions from CenterPoint...... ...ttt eeeeeeeeenneens 1,787,311
Purchases of treasury sStoCK. ...ttt ittt et e e et e (189, 460)

Majority owner effect of treasury stock purchases.................. (43,149
IPO ProCeedsS, NET .t ittt ittt ettt ettt aeeeee e eeeeeeeeeeaaeeeeenns 60 1,696,014

10



Edgar Filing: RELIANT RESOURCES INC - Form 10-K/A

Other comprehensive income (loss):

Foreign currency translation adjustments, net of tax of $98

00 B o
Changes in minimum non-qualified pension liability, net of

tax 0f $4 Milliom. .ottt ittt e e e e e e e e e e
Cumulative effect of adoption of SFAS No. 133, net of tax

Of $236 MIllion. @ittt ittt ettt e e e e e e
Deferred gain from cash flow hedges, net of tax of $228

00 B o
Reclassification of net deferred gain from cash flow hedges

into net income, net of tax of $35 million..........iiuueeeeenn.
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities, net of tax of
1S T T 0 e o N
Reclassification adjustments for gains on sales of available-
for-sale securities realized in net income, net of tax of $5

00 B o

Comprehensive income (As Restated, see note 1).......c0iiiiiieonn.

Balance December 31, 2001 (As Restated, see note 1).......ciiiuiieun.. 61 (189, 460) 5,789,869
S S N == OO

Contributions from CenterPoint. ... ...ttt eneeeeeneennenn 47,088
Issuance oOf treasury StOCK . .. ittt ittt ittt e et e ettt e 30,977

Other comprehensive income (loss):

Foreign currency translation adjustments, net of tax of $113

00 B o
Changes in minimum non-qualified pension liability, net of

tax 0f $3 MIlliom. ..ttt ittt et e e e e e e e e
Deferred gain from cash flow hedges, net of tax of $31

00 B o
Reclassification of net deferred gain from cash flow hedges

into net loss, net of tax of $8 million........uiiiiiieeennnnn
Unrealized loss on available-for-sale securities, net of tax of
S0 T 0 e o N
Reclassification adjustments for gains on sales of available-
for-sale securities realized in net loss, net of tax of $2

00 B o

ComMPrehensSive 10SS . v vttt i ettt ettt ettt e ee e eaeeeeeeeeenns

Balance December 31, 2002. ..ttt ittt tteeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeneeeeeean $61 $(158,483) $5,836,957

Deferred Foreign Addit
Derivative Currency Mini
Gains Translation Bene
(Losses) Adjustments Liabi

Balance December 31, 1990, . . . ittt ittt et teeeee ettt S - $ 162 $
Net income (As Restated, see Note 1) .« ittt it tteeeneeneennns
Contributions from CenterPoint...... ...ttt teeeeeeeeennenns
Transfer to common stock and additional paid-in capital............
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Foreign currency translation adjustments.......... ...t (1,726)
Additional minimum non-qualified pension liability
adjustment, net of tax of $0.4 Million.....u i ieennneeeeeennnn (
Reclassification adjustment for impairment loss on available-
for-sale securities realized in net income, net of tax of $9
00 B o

11
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Unrealized loss on available-for-sale securities, net of tax of
Lo S ¢ 0 0 s T O
Comprehensive income (As Restated,
Balance December 31, 2000 (As Restated,
Net income (As Restated, see Note 1) .« ittt ittt tteeeeeeneennns
Contributions from CenterPoint...... ...t iiiiii it teeeeeeeeennenns
Purchases of treasury sStoCK. ... ..ttt it ittt eeeeeennns
Majority owner effect of treasury stock purchases..................
IPO proceeds,
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Foreign currency translation adjustments, net of tax of $98
04 O X o
Changes in minimum non-qualified pension liability, net of
tax O0f $4 MIlldom. ittt et ettt ettt e e eeeaeeeeeeeeennnnaes
Cumulative effect of adoption of SFAS No. 133, net of tax
Of $236 Milldomn ..ottt ettt ettt ettt e eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaanaeeeenens
Deferred gain from cash flow hedges, net of tax of $228
04 O X o
Reclassification of net deferred gain from cash flow hedges
into net income, net of tax of $35 million..........oiuueeeeenn.
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities, net of tax of
Lo (1 0 0 s T O
Reclassification adjustments for gains on sales of available-
for-sale securities realized in net income, net of tax of $5
04 O o
Comprehensive income (As Restated,
Balance December 31, 2001
L 0
Contributions from CenterPoint. . ... ...ttt teeeeeeeeennenns
Issuance oOf treasury StOCK . .. it ittt ittt ittt et e e e ettt aeeeaeeeen
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Foreign currency translation adjustments, net of tax of $113
04 O o
Changes in minimum non-qualified pension liability, net of
tax 0f $3 MIlldomn. ettt ettt et ettt et e e eeaeeeeeeeeeannnaens
Deferred gain from cash flow hedges, net of tax of $31
04 O o
Reclassification of net deferred gain from cash flow hedges
into net loss, net of tax of $8 million........uiiiiiieeeenennn
Unrealized loss on available-for-sale securities, net of tax of
Lo S (0 0 0 s T O
Reclassification adjustments for gains on sales of available-
for-sale securities realized in net loss, net of tax of $2
04 O o

ComMPrehensSive 108 S . ittt i ettt ettt ettt e eae e eaaeeeeeeeenns

Balance December 31,

= (1,564) (
(94,066)
(6,
(459, 944)
427,994
(51,144)
(83,094) (95,630) (7,
128,450
4,
38,437
(15,819)
$ (60,476) $ 32,820 $(2,
Total
Stockholders' Comprehensive
Equity Income (Loss)
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Balance December 31, 1990 . . . . ittt ittt ittt ettt et e e
Net income (As Restated, see Note 1) .« ittt ittt tteeeeeeneennns
Contributions from CenterPoint...... ...ttt teeeeeeeeennenns
Transfer to common stock and additional paid-in capital............
Other comprehensive income (loss):

Foreign currency translation adjustments............c.cciiiiinnn..
Additional minimum non-qualified pension liability

adjustment, net of tax of $0.4 million...........uiiiiiiiinnenn
Reclassification adjustment for impairment loss on available-
for-sale securities realized in net income, net of tax of $9

04 O o
Unrealized loss on available-for-sale securities, net of tax of
Lo S ¢ 0 0 s T O

Comprehensive income (As Restated, see note 1).......cciiiiiieonn.

Balance December 31, 2000 (As Restated, see note 1).......ciiiuiieun..
Net income (As Restated, see Note 1) .. ittt ittt tteeeeeeneennns
Contributions from CenterPolnt...... ..ttt iiiineeeeeeennn
Purchases of treasury sStoCK. ... ..ttt ittt ie e et eeeeeennns
Majority owner effect of treasury stock purchases..................
IPO ProCeedsS, NET .t it ittt ittt ettt et aeeeee e eneeeeeeeeaaeeeeeens
Other comprehensive income (loss):

Foreign currency translation adjustments, net of tax of $98

00 B o
Changes in minimum non-qualified pension liability, net of

tax 0f $4 Milliom. ..ttt ittt e e e e e e e e e e
Cumulative effect of adoption of SFAS No. 133, net of tax

Of $236 MIllion. @ u ittt ettt e e e e e e e e e e
Deferred gain from cash flow hedges, net of tax of $228

00 B o
Reclassification of net deferred gain from cash flow hedges

into net income, net of tax of $35 million..........iiuueeeeenn.
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities, net of tax of
1S T T 0 e o N
Reclassification adjustments for gains on sales of available-
for-sale securities realized in net income, net of tax of $5

00 B o

Comprehensive income (As Restated, see note 1).......cciiiiiieonn.

Balance December 31, 2001 (As Restated, see note 1)......ciiiuiieun..
J LS S N @ = = O
Contributions from CenterPoint...... ...ttt teeeeeeeeennenns
Issuance oOf treasury StOCK . .. ittt ittt ittt e et e ettt aeeeaeeeen
Other comprehensive income (loss):

Foreign currency translation adjustments, net of tax of $113

04 O X o
Changes in minimum non-qualified pension liability, net of

tax 0f $3 MIlldomn. ittt ittt ettt ettt e e e e eeaeeeeeeeeennnnnens
Deferred gain from cash flow hedges, net of tax of $31

04 O o
Reclassification of net deferred gain from cash flow hedges

into net loss, net of tax of $8 million........uiiiiiieeeenennn
Unrealized loss on available-for-sale securities, net of tax of
Lo S ¢ 0 0 s T O
Reclassification adjustments for gains on sales of available-
for-sale securities realized in net loss, net of tax of $2

04 O X o

ComMPrehensSive 108 S .ttt ittt ittt ettt ettt eee e eaeeeeeeeeanns

$ 740,685
222,665
1,369,278

(1,726)

(716)

17,228

(2,264)

2,345,150
563,351
1,787,311
(189,460)
(43,149)
1,696,074
(94,066)
(6,799)
(459, 944)
427,994

(51,144)

16,984

(8,670)

5,983,632
(559,812)
47,088
30,977
128,450
4,869
38,437

(15,819)

(1,672)

(3,262)

$ 222,665

(1,726)

(716)

$ 563,351

(94,066)

(6,799)
(459, 944)
427,994
(51,144)

16,984

$(559,812)

128,450

4,869

38,437
(15,819)

(1,672)
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Balance December 31, 2002. .. ittt it ittt tteteeeeeeeeeeeeeeneeneeaens $5, 652,888

See Notes to our Consolidated Financial Statements

F-6

RELTIANT RESOURCES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Three Years Ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002
(1) BACKGROUND AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Reliant Resources, Inc., a Delaware corporation, was incorporated in August
2000 with 1,000 shares of common stock which were owned by Reliant Energy,
Incorporated (Reliant Energy). We refer to Reliant Resources, Inc. as "Reliant
Resources, " and to Reliant Resources and its subsidiaries collectively, as
"we," "us," or "our," unless the context clearly indicates otherwise. We
provide electricity and energy services with a focus on the competitive retail
and wholesale segments of the electric power industry in the United States.
Throughout much of Texas, we provide standardized electricity and related
products and services to residential and small commercial customers with an
aggregate peak demand for power up to one megawatt (MW) and offer customized
electric commodity and energy management services to large commercial,
industrial and institutional customers with an aggregate peak demand for power
in excess of one MW. We have built a portfolio of electric power generation
facilities, through a combination of acquisitions and development, that are not
subject to traditional cost-based regulation; therefore we can generally sell
electricity at prices determined by the market, subject to regulatory
limitations. We trade and market electricity, natural gas, natural gas
transportation capacity and other energy-related commodities. We also optimize
our physical assets and provide risk management services for our asset
portfolio. In March 2003, we decided to exit our proprietary trading activities
and liquidate, to the extent practicable, our proprietary positions. Although
we are exiting the proprietary trading business, we have existing positions,
which will be closed as economically feasible or in accordance with their
terms. We will continue to engage in hedging activities related to our electric
generating facilities, pipeline storage positions and fuel positions.

Reliant Energy adopted a business separation plan in response to the Texas
Electric Choice Plan (Texas electric restructuring law) adopted by the Texas
legislature in June 1999. The Texas electric restructuring law substantially
amended the regulatory structure governing electric utilities in Texas in order
to allow retail electric competition with respect to all customer classes
beginning in January 2002. Under its business separation plan filed with the
Public Utility Commission of Texas (PUCT), Reliant Energy transferred
substantially all of its unregulated businesses to Reliant Resources in order
to separate its regulated and unregulated operations. In accordance with the
plan, in May 2001, Reliant Resources offered 59.8 million shares of its common
stock to the public at an initial offering price of $30 per share (IPO) and
received net proceeds from the IPO of $1.7 billion. For additional information
regarding the IPO, see notes 3 and 10(a).

CenterPoint Energy, Inc. was formed on August 31, 2002 as the new holding
company of Reliant Energy. We refer to CenterPoint Energy, Inc. and its
predecessor company, Reliant Energy, as "CenterPoint." Unless clearly indicated
otherwise these references to "CenterPoint" mean CenterPoint Energy, Inc. on or
after August 31, 2002 and Reliant Energy prior to August 31, 2002. CenterPoint
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is a diversified international energy services and energy delivery company that
owned the majority of Reliant Resources outstanding common stock prior to
September 30, 2002. On September 30, 2002, CenterPoint distributed all of the
240 million shares of our common stock it owned to its common shareholders of
record as of the close of business on September 20, 2002 (Distribution). The
Distribution completed the separation of Reliant Resources and CenterPoint into
two separate publicly held companies.

The operations included in the consolidated financial statements for 2000
consist of CenterPoint's, or its direct and indirect subsidiaries', unregulated
power generation and related energy trading, marketing, origination and risk
management services in North America and Europe; a portion of its retail
electric operations; and other operations, including a communications business
and a venture capital operation. Throughout 2000, CenterPoint and its direct
and indirect subsidiaries conducted these operations. Effective December 31,
2000, CenterPoint consolidated its unregulated operations under Reliant
Resources (Consolidation). A subsidiary of CenterPoint,

F-7

RELIANT RESOURCES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-- (Continued)
For the Three Years Ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002

Reliant Energy Resources Corp. (RERC Corp.), transferred some of its
subsidiaries, including its trading and marketing subsidiaries, to us. In
connection with the transfer from RERC Corp., we paid $94 million to RERC Corp.
Also effective December 31, 2000, CenterPoint transferred its wholesale power
generation businesses, its unregulated retail electric operations, its
communications business and most of its other unregulated businesses to us. In
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America, the transfers from RERC Corp. and CenterPoint were accounted for as
a reorganization of entities under common control.

Restatement

Subsequent to the issuance of our financial statements as of and for the
year ended December 31, 2001, we identified four natural gas financial swap
transactions that should not have been recorded in our records. We have
concluded, based on the offsetting nature of the transactions and manner in
which the transactions were documented, that none of the transactions should
have been given accounting recognition. We previously accounted for these
transactions in our financial statements as a reduction in revenues in December
2000 and an increase in revenues in January 2001, with the effect of decreasing
net income in the fourth quarter of 2000 and increasing net income in the first
quarter of 2001, in each case by $20.0 million pre-tax ($12.7 million
after-tax) and the effect of increasing basic and diluted earnings per share by
$0.05 in the first quarter of 2001. There were no cash flows associated with
the transactions.

Also, subsequent to the issuance of our financial statements for 2001 and
for the first three quarters of 2002, we determined that we had incorrectly
calculated the amount of hedge ineffectiveness for 2001 and the first three
quarters of 2002 for hedging instruments entered into prior to the adoption of
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 133 "Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities," as amended (SFAS No. 133).
These hedging instruments included long-term forward contracts for the sale of
power in the California market through December 2006. The amount of hedge
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ineffectiveness for these forward contracts was calculated using the trade
date. However, the proper date for the hedge ineffectiveness calculation is
hedge inception, which for these contracts was deemed to be January 1, 2001,
concurrent with the adoption of SFAS No. 133. These errors in accounting for
hedge ineffectiveness resulted in an understatement of revenues of $28.7
million ($18.6 million after-tax) and earnings per share of $0.07 in 2001.

The consolidated financial statements for 2000 and 2001 have been restated
from amounts previously reported to remove the effects of the four natural gas
swap transactions from 2000 and 2001 and to correctly account for the amount of
hedge ineffectiveness in 2001. The restatement had no impact on previously
reported consolidated operating, investing and financing cash flows for 2000 or
2001. The following is a summary of the principal effects of the restatement
for 2000 and 2001: (Note--Those line items for which no change in amounts are
shown were not affected by the restatement.)

F-8

RELIANT RESOURCES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-- (Continued)

For the Three Years Ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002

Year Ended
December 31, 2000
As As Previous
Restated Reported(l

(in millions)

ROV BN S e 4 v v e e e e et e et e e e et e eee e eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeennneens $3,275 $3,255
o= T i o X B (1= ot B o =P 200 200

IOt Al OV MU S e v v v ettt ettt et o et ae e e e oeeoeeeeeeneeeeeeneeeneeeeeeeneeneeen 3,475 3,455
Total OpPErating EXPENSE S .t ittt vttt et e e e ettt aeeeeeeeeeneeeeeseeeeeeeeeeeanns 3,017 3,017
Operating INCOME . & vttt ittt et et e e et ettt e et ettt e 458 438
Other EXPENSE, NET . i ittt ittt it e e ettt ettt ettt eeeeeee s eeaeeeeeeeeenaeens 147 147
Income before income tax expense and extraordinary item..................... 311 291
TNCOME LAX EXIPEIISC t o v e e e e v e e e e e e e e e e e aeeeeseeenneeeeeeeeneeeeeseeaneeeeeesas 95 88
Income before extraordinary 1tem. ... ...ttt ittt ettt eteeeeeeeeaneeeeenns 216 203
Extraordinary dhem. ...ttt it i it e e e e e e ettt e e et e e 7 7
JN S A o KoL S 223 $ 210

Year Ended
December 31, 2001

As As Previous
Restated Reported(l

(in millions)
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ROV NI S s 4 v v e e e e e et et e e e et eee e eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeneeens $6,130 $6,122
o= T S o X J (1= ot B o =Y 369 369

IOt Al VMU S e v vttt et ettt et e et e e e eee e eeeeeeeeeeoeeeeeeneeeeeeeeeeneeeeean 6,499 6,491
Total OpPErating EXPENSE S . i v v vttt ettt e e e ettt eaeeeeeeseeneeeeeseeenseeeeeeeanns 5,729 5,729
Operating INCOME . & vttt ittt et e et e e e e et ettt ettt e et e 770 762
Other 1nCOmME, NEL . .ttt ittt e ettt ettt ettt et et eeeeeeeeeeeeeeneenenan 64 64
Income before income tax expense and cumulative effect of accounting changes 834 826

TNCOME LAX EXPEINS e v e e ettt e e e e e e e e e eneeeeeeeeneeeeeseeaeeeeeeeeeneeens 274 272
Income before cumulative effect of accounting change........................ 560 554
Cumulative effect of accounting change....... ...ttt eennnnns 3 3
JN N A o ¥ oL $ 563 $ 557

Basic Earnings Per Share:

Income before cumulative effect of accounting change..................... $ 2.02 $ 2.00
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax.........ciin.. 0.01 0.01
LS A 1 o Y o) L $ 2.03 $ 2.01
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RELIANT RESOURCES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-- (Continued)

For the Three Years Ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002

December 31, 2001

As As Previously
Restated Reported(2)

ASSETS (in millions)
(O B =0 o N o= =T i = $ 4,201 $ 4,201
Total 1ong-—term asSSel S . it ittt ineeeeeeeenneneeeeens 7,518 7,518
TotaAl ASSEL St ittt ittt ettt eeeeeeeeseeeennnnans $11,719 $11,719

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current 1iabilities .. u i ittt ettt e teeeeeeennn $ 3,091 $ 3,091
Total long-term liabilities....... ... 2,644 2,644

Stockholders' Equity:

Preferred stock...... ittt - -
Common STOCK . v vttt it et e e e e e e e e e - -
Additional paid-in capital.......cciiiiiiiiinnen.. 5,790 5,777
Treasury SLOCK . .« it ittt it e e e e et ettt eeeeeen (189) (189)
Retained earnings. ... ..ttt iin ittt eeeneeneenenn 563 557
Accumulated other comprehensive loss............... (180) (161)

17



Edgar Filing: RELIANT RESOURCES INC - Form 10-K/A

Stockholders' equity. ...t 5,984 5,984

Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity..... $11,719 $11,719

(1) Beginning with the quarter ended September 30, 2002, we now report all
energy trading and marketing activities on a net basis as allowed by
Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue No. 98-10, "Accounting for
Contracts involved in Energy Trading and Risk Management Activities" (EITF
No. 98-10). Comparative financial statements for prior periods have been
reclassified to conform to this presentation. For information regarding the
presentation of trading and marketing activities on a net basis, see note
2(t). Revenues, fuel and cost of gas sold expense and purchased power
expense have been reclassified to conform to this presentation.

(2) Some amounts from the previous years have been reclassified to conform to
the presentation of our consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2002.
These reclassifications do not affect stockholders' equity or net income.

The effects of the restatement discussed above on the unaudited condensed
quarterly financial statement information for 2001 and 2002 have been included
in note 19.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements for 2000 are presented on
a carve-out basis and include our historical operations. The financial
statements for 2000 have been prepared from CenterPoint's historical accounting
records.

The statements of consolidated operations include all revenues and costs
directly attributable to us, including costs for facilities and costs for
functions and services performed by centralized CenterPoint organizations and
directly charged to us based on usage or other allocation factors prior to the
Distribution. The results of operations in these consolidated financial
statements also include general corporate expenses allocated by CenterPoint to
us prior to the Distribution. All of the allocations in the consolidated
financial statements are based on assumptions that management believes are
reasonable under the circumstances. However, these allocations may not
necessarily be indicative of the costs and expenses that would have resulted if
we had operated as a separate entity prior to the Distribution.

F-10

RELIANT RESOURCES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-- (Continued)

For the Three Years Ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002

Our financial reporting segments include the following: retail energy,
wholesale energy, European energy and other operations. The retail energy
segment includes our retail electric operations and associated supply
activities. This segment provides customized, integrated energy services to
large commercial, industrial and institutional customers and standardized
electricity and related services to residential and small commercial customers
in Texas. The wholesale energy segment engages in the acquisition, development
and operation of domestic non-rate regulated electric power generation
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facilities as well as wholesale energy trading, marketing, power origination
and risk management activities related to energy and energy-related commodities
in North America. The European energy segment operates power generation
facilities in the Netherlands and conducts wholesale energy trading and
origination activities in Europe; see note 21 (b) regarding the sale of our
European energy operations. The other operations segment primarily includes
unallocated general corporate expenses and non-operating investments.

(2) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Reclassifications.

Some amounts from the previous years have been reclassified to conform to
the 2002 presentation of financial statements. These reclassifications do not
affect earnings.

(b) Use of Estimates and Market Risk and Uncertainties.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

We are subject to the risk associated with price movements of energy
commodities and the credit risk associated with our trading, risk management,
hedging and retail electric activities. For additional information regarding
these risks, see notes 7, 14 and 17. We are also subject to risks relating to
effects of competition, changes in interest rates and foreign currencies,
results of financing efforts, operation of deregulating power markets, seasonal
weather patterns, availability of energy supply, availability of transmission
capacity, resolution of lawsuits and regulatory proceedings, technological
obsolescence and the regulatory environment in the United States and Europe. In
addition, we are subject to risks relating to the reliability of the systemns,
procedures and other infrastructure necessary to operate our businesses.

(c) Principles of Consolidation.

Our accounts and those of our wholly-owned and majority owned subsidiaries
are included in the consolidated financial statements. All significant
intercompany transactions and balances are eliminated in consolidation. The
results of our European energy segment are consolidated on a one-month-lag
basis due to the availability of financial information. We have made
adjustments to the European energy segment's 2001 results of operations to
include the effect for the settlement of an indemnity for certain energy

obligations in December 2001 (see note 14 (j)).

F-11

RELIANT RESOURCES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-- (Continued)

For the Three Years Ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002

We use the equity method of accounting for investments in entities in which
we have an ownership interest between 20% and 50% and exercise significant
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influence through representation on advisory or management committees. For our
equity method accounting investments, our representation on advisory or
management committees does not enable us to have majority control of the
investments' management and operating decisions. The allocation of profits and
losses is based on our ownership interest. For additional information regarding
investments recorded using the equity method of accounting, see note 8. Other
investments, excluding marketable securities, are carried at cost. For these
other investments, we do not exercise significant influence. For additional
information regarding these investments, see note 2 (0).

In 2000, we entered into separate sale/leaseback transactions with each of
the three owner-lessors for our respective interests in three power generating
stations acquired in an acquisition. For additional discussion of these lease
transactions, see note 1l4(a). We do not consolidate these generating
facilities. In 2001, we, through several of our subsidiaries, entered into
operative documents with special purpose entities to facilitate the
development, construction, financing and leasing of several power generation
projects. As of December 31, 2002, we did not consolidate these special purpose
entities. For information regarding these transactions, see note 14 (b). In July
2002, we entered into a receivable facility arrangement with a financial
institution to sell an undivided interest in accounts receivable from
residential and small commercial retail electric customers under which, on an
ongoing basis, the financial institution will invest up to a maximum amount for
its interest in such receivables. Pursuant to this receivables facility, we
formed a qualified special purpose entity as a bankruptcy remote subsidiary. We
do not consolidate this qualified special purpose entity. For additional
information regarding this qualified special purpose entity, see note 15.

Each of Orion Power New York, LP (Orion NY), Orion Power New York LP, LLC,

Orion Power New York GP, Inc., Astoria Generating Company, L.P., Carr Street
Generating Station, LP, Erie Boulevard Hydropower, LP, Orion Power MidWest, LP
(Orion MidWest), Orion Power Midwest LP, LLC, Orion Power Midwest GP, Inc.,

Twelvepole Creek, LLC and Orion Power Capital, LLC (Orion Capital) is a
separate legal entity and has its own assets.

(d) Revenues.

We record gross revenue for energy sales and services related to our
electric power generation facilities under the accrual method and these
revenues generally are recognized upon delivery. Electric power and other
energy services are sold at market-based prices through existing power
exchanges or through third-party contracts. Energy sales and services related
to our electric power generation facilities not billed by month-end are accrued
based upon estimated energy and services delivered.

We record gross revenue for energy sales and services to residential, small
commercial and non-contracted large commercial, industrial and institutional
retail electric customers under the accrual method and these revenues generally
are recognized upon delivery. Our contracted electricity sales to large
commercial, industrial and institutional customers for contracts entered into
after October 25, 2002 are typically accounted for under the accrual method and
these revenues generally are recognized upon delivery (see note 2(t)). The
determination of these sales is based on the reading of the customers' meters
by the transmission and distribution utilities. The transmission and
distribution utilities send the information to the Electric Reliability Council
of Texas (ERCOT) Independent System Operator (ERCOT ISO), which in turn sends
the information to us. This activity occurs on a systematic basis throughout
the month. At the end of each month, amounts of energy delivered to customers
since the date of the last meter reading are estimated and the corresponding
unbilled revenue is estimated. This unbilled revenue is estimated each month
based on daily forecasted volumes, estimated customer usage by class,
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weather factors and applicable customer rates based on analyses reflecting
significant historical trends and experience. As of December 31, 2001 and 2002,
our retail energy segment had accrued unbilled revenues of $14 million and $216
million, respectively.

Our energy trading, marketing, risk management services to customers and
certain power origination activities and our contracted electricity sales to
large commercial, industrial and institutional customers and the related energy
supply contracts for contracts entered into prior to October 25, 2002 are
accounted for under the mark-to-market method of accounting. Under the
mark-to-market method of accounting, derivative instruments and contractual
commitments are recorded at fair value in revenues upon contract execution. The
net changes in their fair values are recognized in the statements of
consolidated operations as revenues in the period of change. Trading and
marketing revenues related to the sale of natural gas, electric power and other
energy related commodities are recorded on a net basis. For additional
discussion regarding trading and marketing revenue recognition and the related
estimates and assumptions that can affect reported amounts of such revenues,
see note 7. For a discussion of EITF No. 02-03, "Issues Related to Accounting
for Contracts Involved in Energy Trading and Risk Management Activities" (EITF
No. 02-03) rescinding EITF No. 98-10 and the presentation of trading and
marketing activities on a net basis beginning in the quarter ended September
30, 2002, see notes 2(t) and 7.

The gains and losses related to derivative instruments and contractual
commitments qualifying and designated as hedges related to the purchase and
sale of electric power and purchase of fuel are deferred in accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss) to the extent the contracts are effective as
hedges, and then are recognized in our results of operations in the same period
as the settlement of the underlying hedged transactions. Realized gains and
losses on financial derivatives designated as hedges are included in revenues
in the statements of consolidated operations. Revenues, fuel and cost of gas
sold, and purchased power related to physical sale and purchase contracts
designated as hedges are generally recorded on a gross basis in the delivery
period. For additional discussion, see note 7.

(e) General, Administrative and Development Expenses.

The general and administrative expenses in the statement of consolidated
operations include (a) employee-related costs of the trading, marketing, power

origination and risk management services operations, (b) certain contractor
costs, (c) advertising, (d) materials and supplies, (e) bad debt expense, (f)
marketing and market research, (g) corporate and administrative services

(including management services, financial and accounting, cash management and
treasury support, legal, information technology system support, office
management and human resources) and (h) certain benefit costs. Some of these
expenses were allocated from CenterPoint prior to the Distribution as further
discussed in notes 3 and 4(a).

(f) Property, Plant and Equipment and Depreciation Expense.

We record property, plant and equipment at historical cost. We recognize
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repair and maintenance costs incurred in connection with planned major
maintenance, such as turbine and generator overhauls, under the
"accrue—-in-advance" method for our power generation operations acquired or
developed prior to December 31, 1999. Planned major maintenance cycles
primarily range from two to ten years. Under the accrue-in-advance method, we
estimate the costs of planned major maintenance and accrue the related expense
over the maintenance cycle. As of December 31, 2001 and 2002, our major
maintenance reserve was $19 million and $24 million, respectively, of which $2
million and $1 million, respectively, were included in other current
liabilities. We expense all other repair and maintenance costs as incurred. For
power generation operations acquired or developed subsequent to January 1,
2000, we expense all repair and maintenance costs as incurred, including
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planned major maintenance. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line
method based on estimated useful lives. Property, plant and equipment includes
the following:

December 31,
Estimated Useful ————-————-————
Lives (Years) 2001 2002

(in millions)

Electric generation facilities........ 10-50 $2,828 $8,163
Building and building improvements.... 9-32 14 24
Other. .. e i e 3-10 164 442
Land and land improvements............ 147 261
Assets under construction............. 1,682 677

Total. .t e e 4,835 9,567
Accumulated depreciation.............. (276) (626)

Property, plant and equipment, net. $4,559 $8,941

(g) Goodwill and Amortization Expense.

We record goodwill for the excess of the purchase price over the fair value
assigned to the net assets of an acquisition. Through December 31, 2001, we
amortized goodwill on a straight-line basis over 5 to 40 years. Pursuant to our
adoption of SFAS No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets" (SFAS No. 142)
on January 1, 2002, we discontinued amortizing goodwill into our results of
operations. See note 6 for a discussion regarding our adoption of SFAS No. 142.
Goodwill amortization expense was $35 million and $51 million for 2000 and
2001, respectively. The 2001 goodwill amortization expense includes a $19
million goodwill impairment related to the communications business (see note
16) . Amortization expense for other intangibles, excluding contractual rights
and obligations, was $44 million, $43 million and $51 million for 2000, 2001
and 2002, respectively. See also note 6.
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The following table summarizes our acquisitions and the associated goodwill:

December 31,

Amortization W —————————————-

Acquisition (1) Period (Years) (2) 2001 2002
(in millions)

Orion Power HOldings, INC. .. eeeeeeeennnnns - S -— $1,324
Reliant Energy Power Generation Benelux N.V..... 30 879 —=
Reliant Energy Services, INC.....ueuiieeeeeennnenns 40 131 131
California Generation Plants............ceuinn.. 30 70 70
Energy Services Division of Southland Industries 15 37 37
Reliant Energy Mid-Atlantic Power Holdings, LLC. 35 6 7
Florida Generation Plant...........iiiiieeunnennn. 35 2 2
0 = 1,125 1,571
Accumulated amortization..........coeiiiiieennnn. (84) (30)
Foreign currency exchange impact................ (150) -
Total goodwill, net.......uiiiiieeeeenennnnn $ 891 s$1,541

(1) Effective January 1, 2002, goodwill is evaluated for impairment on a
reporting unit basis in accordance with SFAS No. 142 (see note 6).

(2) In accordance with SFAS No. 142, we discontinued amortizing goodwill into
our results of operations effective January 1, 2002 (see note 6). The
amortization periods presented relate to prior years' amortization.
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We periodically evaluate long-lived assets, including goodwill and other
intangibles, when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value of these assets may not be recoverable. The determination of whether an
impairment has occurred, excluding goodwill and other intangibles beginning in
2002, is based on an estimate of undiscounted cash flows attributable to the
assets, as compared to the carrying value of the assets. A resulting impairment
loss is highly dependent on the underlying assumptions. During 2001, we
determined equipment and goodwill associated with our communications business
was impaired and accordingly recognized $22 million of equipment impairments
and $19 million of goodwill impairments (see note 16). In 2002, we recognized
impairment charges totaling $716 million relating to our European energy
segment goodwill (see note 6). During 2002, we determined that steam and
combustion turbines and two heat recovery steam generators purchased in
September 2002 were impaired and accordingly recognized a $37 million
impairment loss (see note 14(c)). For discussion of goodwill and other
intangible asset impairment analyses in 2002, see note 6.

(h) Stock-based Compensation Plans.
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We apply the intrinsic method of accounting for employee stock-based
compensation plans in accordance with Accounting Principles Board Opinion No.
25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees" (APB No. 25). Under the
intrinsic value method, no compensation expense is recorded when options are
issued with an exercise price equal to the market price of the underlying stock
on the date of grant. Since our stock options have all been granted at market
value at date of grant, no compensation expense has been recognized under APB
No. 25. We comply with the disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 123, "Accounting
for Stock-Based Compensation" (SFAS No. 123) and SFAS No. 148, "Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation--Transition and Disclosure, an amendment to SFAS No.
123" (SFAS No. 148) and disclose the pro forma effect on net income (loss) and
earnings (loss) per share as if the fair value method of accounting had been
applied to all stock awards. Had compensation costs been determined as
prescribed by SFAS No. 123, our net income (loss) and earnings (loss) per share
amounts would have approximated the following pro forma results for 2000, 2001
and 2002, which take into account the amortization of stock-based compensation,
including performance shares, purchases under the employee stock purchase plan
and stock options, to expense on a straight-line basis over the vesting periods:

Year Ended
December 31,

(in millions, except per
share amounts)

Net income (1l0SS), @S TePOTLed. .. ittt ittt ittt ettt eeeeeeaneeeeennns $223 $ 563 S (560)
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense included in reported net

income/loss, net of related tax effeCtS. ..ttt ittt eeeeennnn 4 5 2
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined under

fair value based method for all awards, net of related tax effects.... (7) (34) (38)
Pro forma nNet INCOME (L1OSS) vttt ittt ittt ettt et eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaeennes $220 $ 534 S (5906)

Earnings (loss) per share:
Basic and diluted, as reported. .. ...ttt et e eneeeeeeeeeennnnneens $2.03 $(1.93)

Basic and diluted, Pro formMa. ...ttt ettt eeeneeeeeeeeeeennnneens $1.93 $(2.05)

For further information regarding our stock-based compensation plans and our
assumptions used to compute pro forma amounts, see note 12.
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(i) Capitalization of Interest Expense.

Interest expense is capitalized as a component of projects under
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construction and is amortized over the assets' estimated useful lives. During
2000, 2001 and 2002, we capitalized interest of $35 million, $59 million and
$27 million, respectively.

(3) Income Taxes.

Prior to September 30, 2002, we were included in the consolidated federal
income tax returns of CenterPoint and we calculated our income tax provision on
a separate return basis under a tax sharing agreement with CenterPoint.
Pursuant to the tax sharing agreement with CenterPoint and agreements entered
into at the time of the Distribution (see Note 4 (a)), CenterPoint will owe us
amounts related to certain loss carryovers, income inclusions from foreign
affiliates, net income tax receivables/payables relating to our operations
prior to the Distribution and other tax liabilities. Prior to September 30,
2002, current federal and some state income taxes were payable to or receivable
from CenterPoint. Subsequent to the Distribution, we will file a separate
federal tax return.

We use the liability method of accounting for deferred income taxes and
measure deferred income taxes for all significant income tax temporary
differences. Unremitted earnings from our foreign operations are deemed to be
permanently reinvested in foreign operations. For additional information
regarding income taxes, see note 13.

(k) Cash.

We record as cash and cash equivalents all highly liquid short-term
investments with original maturities of three months or less.

(1) Restricted Cash.

Restricted cash includes cash at certain subsidiaries that is restricted by
financing agreements, but is available to the applicable subsidiary to use to
satisfy certain of its obligations. As of December 31, 2001 and 2002, we had
$167 million and $226 million in restricted cash, respectively, recorded in the
consolidated balance sheets.

The credit facilities of certain subsidiaries of Orion Power Holdings, Inc.
(Orion Power) contain various covenants that include, among others,
restrictions on the payment of dividends to Orion Power and us. As of December
31, 2002, restricted cash under Orion Power's subsidiaries' credit facilities
totaled $200 million. For further information, see note 9(a). In addition,
senior notes of Orion Power restrict its ability to pay dividends to us unless
Orion Power meets certain conditions. As of December 31, 2002, the specified
conditions were satisfied.

Our subsidiary, which owns an electric power generation facility in
Channelview, Texas (Channelview), 1is party to a credit agreement used to
finance construction of its generating plant. The credit agreement contains
restrictive covenants that restrict Channelview's ability to, among other
things, make dividend distributions unless Channelview satisfies various
conditions. As of December 31, 2002, we had restricted cash of $13 million
related to Channelview. As of December 31, 2001, we had no restricted cash
related to Channelview. For further information regarding the Channelview
credit agreement, see note 9(a).

RELIANT RESOURCES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
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In December 2001, our subsidiary, Reliant Energy Power Generation Benelux,
N.V. (REPGB), a Dutch power generation company, and its former shareholders
agreed to settle the indemnity obligations of the former shareholders insofar
as they related to NEA B.V. (NEA), formerly the coordinating body for the Dutch
electricity sector. Under the settlement agreement, the former shareholders of
REPGB paid REPGB approximately $202 million in the first quarter of 2002. REPGB
deposited the settlement payment into an escrow account, withdrawals from which
are at the discretion of REPGB for use in discharging certain stranded cost
obligations. As of December 31, 2002, the remaining escrowed funds totaled $6
million, which are recorded in restricted cash.

As of December 31, 2001, we have recorded $167 million of restricted cash
that is available for Reliant Energy Mid-Atlantic Power Holdings, LLC and its
subsidiaries' (collectively, REMA) working capital needs and for it to make
future lease payments. As of December 31, 2002, we had no restricted cash
related to REMA. For additional discussion regarding REMA's lease transactions,
see note 14 (a).

As of December 31, 2002, we had $7 million in long-term restricted cash
pledged to secure the payment and performance when due related to the issuance
of surety bonds. In the event of default with regard to the surety bonds, the
issuer could request payment of the restricted cash from us. As of December 31,
2001, we had no restricted cash of this nature.

(m) Allowance for Doubtful Accounts.

Accounts and notes receivable, principally from customers, in the
consolidated balance sheets are net of an allowance for doubtful accounts of
$90 million and $69 million at December 31, 2001 and 2002, respectively. The
net provision for doubtful accounts in the statements of consolidated
operations for 2000, 2001 and 2002 was $43 million, $38 million and $21 million
(net of $62 million in credit reserves reversed in 2002), respectively. These
amounts exclude items written off during the years related to refunds for
energy sales in California and related to Enron Corp. and its affiliates
(Enron) . For more information regarding the provisions against receivable
balances related to energy sales in the California market and to Enron, see
notes 14 (i) and 17, respectively.

(n) Inventory.

Inventory consists of materials and supplies, coal, natural gas and heating
oil. Inventories used in the production of electricity are valued at the lower
of average cost or market. Heating oil and natural gas used in the trading and
marketing operations are accounted for under mark-to-market accounting through
December 31, 2002, as discussed in note 7. However, as discussed in note 2(t),
inventory purchased after October 25, 2002 and effective January 1, 2003,
inventory used in the trading and marketing operations is no longer marked to
market in accordance with EITF No. 02-03. Below is a detail of inventory:

December 31,

2001 2002

(in millions)
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Materials and supplies $ 65 $136

Coal.viviiiiiiinnnnn. 35 59

Natural gas........... 41 78

Heating oil........... 33 46

Total inventory.... $174 $319
F-17
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(o) Investments.

As of December 31, 2001 and 2002, we held marketable equity securities of
$12 million and $3 million, respectively, classified as "available-for-sale."
In accordance with SFAS No. 115, "Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt
and Equity Securities" (SFAS No. 115), we report "available-for-sale"
securities at estimated fair value in other long-term assets in the
consolidated balance sheets and any unrealized gain or loss, net of tax, as a
separate component of stockholders' equity and accumulated other comprehensive
loss. At December 31, 2001 and 2002, we had an accumulated unrealized gain, net
of tax, relating to these securities of $6 million and $1 million, respectively.

During 2000, pursuant to SFAS No. 115, we incurred a pre-tax impairment loss
equal to the $27 million of cumulative unrealized losses that had been charged
to accumulated other comprehensive loss through December 31, 1999. Management's
decision to recognize this impairment resulted from a combination of events
occurring in 2000 related to this investment. These events affecting the
investment included changes occurring in the investment's senior management,
announcement of significant restructuring charges and related downsizing for
the entity, reduced earnings estimates for this entity by brokerage analysts
and the bankruptcy of a competitor of the investment in the first quarter of
2000. These events, coupled with the stock market value of our investment in
these securities continuing to be below our cost basis, caused management to
believe the decline in fair value of these "available-for-sale" securities to
be other than temporary.

In addition, we held debt and equity securities classified as "trading." In
accordance with SFAS No. 115, we report "trading" securities at estimated fair
value in our consolidated balance sheets and any unrealized holding gains and
losses are recorded as gains (losses) from investments in the statements of
consolidated operations. As of December 31, 2001, we held equity securities
classified as "trading" totaling $1 million. As of December 31, 2002, we no
longer hold equity securities classified as "trading." We recorded unrealized
holding gains on "trading" securities included in gains from investments in the
statements of consolidated operations of $4 million and $5 million during 2000
and 2001, respectively. During 2002, the recorded unrealized holding gain on
"trading" securities included in losses from investments in the statements of
consolidated operations was less than $1 million.

As of December 31, 2001 and 2002, we have other investments of $68 million

and $44 million, respectively, excluding marketable securities, in which we
have ownership interests of 20% or less and do not exercise significant
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influence, which are carried at cost. During 2002, we incurred a pre-tax
impairment loss of $32 million ($30 million after-tax) related to these
investments. Management's decision to recognize these impairments resulted from
a combination of events occurring in 2002 related to these investments. These
events included reduced cash flow expectations for certain of these investments
and management's decision to minimize further financial support to these
investments. These events, coupled with management's intent to sell certain
investments in the near-term below our cost basis, led us to believe the
decline in the fair value of these investments was other than temporary.

(p) Project Development Costs.

Project development costs include costs for professional services, permits
and other items that are incurred incidental to a particular project. We
expense these costs as incurred until the project is considered probable. After
a project is considered probable, subsequent capitalizable costs incurred are
capitalized to the project. When project operations begin, we begin to amortize
these costs on a straight-line basis over the life of the facility. As of
December 31, 2001 and 2002, we had recorded in the consolidated balance sheets
project development costs associated with projects under construction of $9
million and $6 million, respectively.
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(q) Environmental Costs.

We expense or capitalize environmental expenditures, as appropriate,
depending on their future economic benefit. We expense amounts that relate to
an existing condition caused by past operations and that do not have future
economic benefit. We record undiscounted liabilities related to these future
costs when environmental assessments and/or remediation activities are probable
and the costs can be reasonably estimated.

(r) Deferred Financing Costs.

Deferred financing costs are costs incurred in connection with obtaining
financings. These costs are deferred and amortized, using the straight-line
method, which approximates the effective interest method, over the life of the
related debt. As of December 31, 2001 and 2002, we had $8 million and $44
million, respectively, of net deferred financing costs capitalized in our
consolidated balance sheets.

(s) Foreign Currency Adjustments.

Local currencies are the functional currency of our foreign operations.
Foreign subsidiaries' assets and liabilities have been translated into U.S.
dollars using the exchange rate at the balance sheet date. Revenues, expenses,
gains and losses have been translated using the weighted average exchange rate
for each month prevailing during the periods reported. Cumulative adjustments
resulting from translation have been recorded as a component of accumulated
other comprehensive loss in stockholders' equity.

(t) Changes in Accounting Principles and New Accounting Pronouncements.
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SFAS No. 141. In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
issued SFAS No. 141 "Business Combinations" (SFAS No. 141). SFAS No. 141
requires business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001 to be accounted
for using the purchase method of accounting and broadens the criteria for
recording intangible assets separate from goodwill. Recorded goodwill and
intangibles will be evaluated against these new criteria and may result in
certain intangibles being transferred to goodwill, or alternatively, amounts
initially recorded as goodwill may be separately identified and recognized
apart from goodwill. We adopted the provisions of the statement, which apply to
goodwill and intangible assets acquired prior to June 30, 2001 on January 1,
2002. The adoption of SFAS No. 141 did not have a material impact on our
historical results of operations or financial position.

SFAS No. 142. See note 6 for a discussion regarding our adoption of SFAS
No. 142 on January 1, 2002.

SFAS No. 143. In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, "Accounting for
Asset Retirement Obligations™ (SFAS No. 143). SFAS No. 143 requires the fair
value of a liability for an asset retirement legal obligation to be recognized
in the period in which it is incurred. When the liability is initially
recorded, associated costs are capitalized by increasing the carrying amount of
the related long-lived asset. Over time, the liability 1is accreted to its
present value each period, and the capitalized cost is depreciated over the
useful life of the related asset. SFAS No. 143 is effective for fiscal years
beginning after June 15, 2002, with earlier application encouraged. SFAS No.
143 requires entities to record a cumulative effect of a change in accounting
principle in the statement of operations in the period of adoption. We are
currently evaluating the impact of SFAS No. 143 on our consolidated financial
statements and expect to record a cumulative effect of a change in accounting
principle of a net gain.

RELIANT RESOURCES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
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SFAS No. 144. In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, "Accounting for
the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets" (SFAS No. 144). SFAS No. 144
provides new guidance on the recognition of impairment losses on long-lived
assets to be held and used or to be disposed of and also broadens the
definition of what constitutes a discontinued operation and how the results of
a discontinued operation are to be measured and presented. SFAS No. 144
supercedes SFAS No. 121, "Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets
and for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of," and Accounting Principles Board
Opinion No. 30, "Reporting the Results of Operations--Reporting the Effects of
Disposal of a Segment of a Business, and Extraordinary, Unusual and
Infrequently Occurring Events and Transactions," while retaining many of the
requirements of these two statements. Under SFAS No. 144, assets held for sale
that are a component of an entity will be included in discontinued operations
if the operations and cash flows will be or have been eliminated from the
ongoing operations of the entity and the entity will not have any significant
continuing involvement in the operations prospectively. SFAS No. 144 did not
materially change the methods used by us to measure impairment losses on
long-lived assets, but may result in additional future dispositions being

reported as discontinued operations. We adopted SFAS No. 144 on January 1, 2002.
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SFAS No. 145. In April 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 145, "Rescission of
FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 64, Amendment of FASB Statement No. 13, and
Technical Corrections" (SFAS No. 145). SFAS No. 145 eliminates the current
requirement that gains and losses on debt extinguishment must be classified as
extraordinary items in the statement of operations. Instead, such gains and
losses will be classified as extraordinary items only if they are deemed to be
unusual and infrequent. SFAS No. 145 also requires sale-leaseback accounting
for certain lease modifications that have economic effects that are similar to
sale—leaseback transactions. The changes related to debt extinguishment will be
effective for fiscal years beginning after May 15, 2002, and the changes
related to lease accounting are effective for transactions occurring after May
15, 2002. We will apply this guidance prospectively.

SFAS No. 148. 1In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148. This
statement provides alternative methods of transition for a company that
voluntarily changes to the fair value method of accounting for stock-based
employee compensation. SFAS No. 148 also amends disclosure requirements of SFAS
No. 123 to require prominent disclosure in both annual and interim financial
statements about the method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation
and the effect of the method used on reported results. SFAS No. 148 is
effective for annual financial statements for fiscal years ending after
December 15, 2002 and condensed financial statements for interim periods
beginning after December 15, 2002. Currently, we are evaluating if we will
voluntarily change to the fair value method of accounting for stock-based
employee compensation in the future. We have adopted the disclosure
requirements of SFAS No. 148 for the consolidated financial statements for 2002
(see note 12 (a)).

FIN No. 45. 1In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 45,
"Guarantor's Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including
Direct Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others," (FIN No. 45) which increases the
disclosure requirements for a guarantor in its interim and annual financial
statements about its obligations under certain guarantees that it has issued.
It clarifies that a guarantor's required disclosures include the nature of the
guarantee, the maximum potential undiscounted payments that could be required,
the current carrying amount of the liability, if any, for the guarantor's
obligations (including the liability recognized under SFAS No. 5, "Accounting
for Contingencies"), and the nature of any recourse provisions or available
collateral that would enable the guarantor to recover amounts paid under the
guarantee. It also requires a guarantor to recognize, at the inception of a
guarantee issued after December 31, 2002, a liability for the fair value of the
obligation undertaken in issuing the guarantee, including its ongoing
obligation to stand ready to perform over the term of the guarantee in the
event that specified triggering events or conditions occur. We have
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adopted the disclosure requirements of FIN No. 45 for 2002 (see note 14 (g)) and
will apply the initial recognition and initial measurement provisions on a
prospective basis for all guarantees issued after December 31, 2002. The
adoption of FIN No. 45 will have no impact to our historical consolidated
financial statements, as existing guarantees are not subject to the measurement
provisions. We are currently evaluating the impact of FIN No. 45's initial
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recognition and measurement provisions on our consolidated financial statements.

FIN No. 46. In January 2003, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 46
"Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an Interpretation of ARB No. 51"
(FIN No. 46). The objective of FIN No. 46 is to achieve more consistent
application of consolidation policies to variable interest entities and to
improve comparability between enterprises engaged in similar activities. FIN
No. 46 states that an enterprise must consolidate a variable interest entity if
the enterprise has a variable interest that will absorb a majority of the
entity's expected losses if they occur, receives a majority of the entity's
expected residual returns if they occur, or both. If one enterprise absorbs a
majority of a variable interest entity's expected losses and another enterprise
receives a majority of that entity's expected residual returns, the enterprise
absorbing a majority of the losses shall consolidate the variable interest
entity and will be called the primary beneficiary. FIN No. 46 is effective
immediately to variable interest entities created after January 31, 2003, and
to variable interest entities in which an enterprise obtains an interest after
that date. For enterprises that acquired variable interests prior to February
1, 2003, the effective date is for fiscal years or interim periods beginning
after June 15, 2003. FIN No. 46 requires entities to either (a) record the
effects prospectively with a cumulative effect adjustment as of the date on
which FIN No. 46 is first applied or (b) restate previously issued financial
statements for the years with a cumulative effect adjustment as of the
beginning of the first year being restated. We have elected to early adopt FIN
No. 46 and are currently evaluating the adoption impact as it relates to a
cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle on January 1, 2003.

Based on our preliminary analysis, we believe that we have variable
interests in three power generation projects that are being constructed by
off-balance sheet special purpose entities under construction agency agreements
as of December 31, 2002, which pursuant to this guidance would require
consolidation effective January 1, 2003. As of December 31, 2002, these special
purpose entities had property, plant and equipment of $1.3 billion, net other
assets of $3 million and debt obligations of $1.3 billion. As of December 31,
2002, the special purpose entities had equity from unaffiliated third parties
of $49 million. These special purpose entities' financing agreement, the
construction agency agreements and the related guarantees were terminated as
part of the refinancing in March 2003. For information regarding these special
purpose entities and the refinancing, see notes 14 (b) and 21(a).

We do not expect the adoption of FIN No. 46 to have a material impact on our
results of operations or financial position, excluding the consolidation of the
entities under the construction agency agreements as discussed above.

EITF No. 02-03. In June 2002, the EITF had its initial meeting regarding
EITF No. 02-03 and reached a consensus that all mark-to-market gains and losses
on energy trading contracts should be shown net in the statement of operations
whether or not settled physically. In October 2002, the EITF issued a consensus
that superceded the June 2002 consensus. The October 2002 consensus required,
among other things, that energy derivatives held for trading purposes be shown
net in the statement of operations. This new consensus is effective for fiscal
periods beginning after December 15, 2002. However, consistent with the new
consensus and as allowed under EITF No. 98-10, beginning with the quarter ended
September 30, 2002, we now report all energy trading and marketing activities
on a net basis in the statements of consolidated operations. Comparative
financial statements for prior periods have been reclassified to conform to
this presentation.
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The adoption of net reporting resulted in reclassifications of revenues,
fuel and cost of gas sold, purchased power expense during 2000 and 2001 as
follows:

Year Ended December 31,

As As
As Previously As Previously
Reclassified Reported Reclassified Reported

(in millions)

REVENUES .« vttt v v eeeeennnn $3,255 $18,722 $6,122 $31,130
Trading margins.......... 200 - 369 -

Total....oviviiiaan.. 3,455 18,722 6,491 31,130
Fuel and cost of gas sold 1,172 10,555 1,975 15,234
Purchased power.......... 925 6,809 2,509 13,889
Other operating expenses. 920 920 1,245 1,245

Total....oviviiiiiaan.. 3,017 18,284 5,729 30,368
Operating income......... S 438 $ 438 S 762 $ 762

Furthermore, in October 2002, under EITF No. 02-03, the EITF reached a
consensus to rescind EITF No. 98-10. All new contracts that would have been
accounted for under EITF No. 98-10, and that do not fall within the scope of
SFAS No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,"
as amended (SFAS No. 133) should no longer be marked-to-market through earnings
beginning October 25, 2002. In addition, mark-to-market accounting is no longer
applied to inventories used in the trading and marketing operations. This
transition is effective for us for the first quarter of 2003. We expect to
record a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle of approximately
$40 million loss, net of tax, effective January 1, 2003, related to EITF No.
02-03.

The EITF has not reached a consensus on whether recognition of dealer profit
or unrealized gains and losses at inception of an energy trading contract is
appropriate in the absence of quoted market prices or current market
transactions for contracts with similar terms. In the June 2002 EITF meeting
and again in the October 2002 EITF meeting, the FASB staff indicated that until
such time as a consensus is reached, the FASB staff will continue to hold the
view that previous EITF consensuses do not allow for recognition of dealer
profit, unless evidenced by quoted market prices or other current market
transactions for energy trading contracts with similar terms and
counterparties. During 2001 and 2002, we recorded $119 million and $57 million,
respectively, of fair value at the contract inception related to trading and
marketing activities. Inception gains recorded were evidenced by quoted market
prices and other current market transactions for energy trading contracts with
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similar terms and counterparties.
(3) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The consolidated financial statements include significant transactions
between CenterPoint and us. The disclosures within this note are for these
transactions for 2000, 2001 and the nine months ended September 30, 2002, up to
the date of the Distribution. Some of these transactions involve services,
including various corporate support services (including accounting, finance,
investor relations, planning, legal, communications, governmental and
regulatory affairs and human resources), information technology services and
other shared services such as corporate security, facilities management,
accounts receivable, accounts payable and payroll,
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office support services and purchasing and logistics. The costs of services
have been directly charged or allocated to us using methods that management
believes are reasonable. These methods include negotiated usage rates,
dedicated asset assignment, and proportionate corporate formulas based on
assets, operating expenses and employees. These charges and allocations are not
necessarily indicative of what would have been incurred had we been an
unaffiliated entity. Amounts charged and allocated to us for these services
were $34 million, $9 million and $15 million for 2000, 2001 and the nine months
ended September 30, 2002, respectively, and are included primarily in operation
and maintenance expenses and general and administrative expenses. In addition,
during 2001, we incurred costs of $27 million primarily related to corporate
support services, which were billed to CenterPoint and its affiliates. Some of
our subsidiaries have entered into office rental agreements with CenterPoint.
During 2000, 2001 and the nine months ended September 30, 2002, we incurred $4
million, $16 million and $24 million, respectively, of rent expense to
CenterPoint.

Certain of these services and the office space lease arrangements between
CenterPoint and us continue after the Distribution under transition service
agreements or other long-term agreements. It is not anticipated that a change,
if any, in these costs and revenues will have a material effect on our
consolidated results of operations, cash flows or financial position. For
additional information regarding these services and office space lease
arrangements between CenterPoint and us, see note 4 (a).

Below is a detail of accounts and notes receivable to affiliated companies
as of December 31, 2001 (in millions):

Net accounts receivable--affiliated companies.................... $ 27
Net short-term notes receivable--affiliated companies............ 388
Net long-term notes receivable-—affiliated companies............. 30

Total net accounts and notes receivable--affiliated companies. $445
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Net accounts receivable--affiliated companies, representing primarily
current month balances of transactions between us and CenterPoint or its
subsidiaries, related primarily to natural gas purchases and sales, interest,
charges for services and office space rental. Net short-term notes
receivable-—-affiliated companies represented the accumulation of a variety of
cash transfers and operating transactions and specific negotiated financing
transactions with CenterPoint or its subsidiaries and generally bore interest
at market-based rates. Net long-term notes receivable--affiliated companies
primarily related to a specific negotiated financing transaction with a
subsidiary of CenterPoint, see note 14 (f). Net interest expense related to
these net borrowings/receivables was $172 million during 2000. Net interest
income related to these net borrowings/receivables was $12 million and $5
million during 2001 and the nine months ended September 30, 2002, respectively.

In May 2001, CenterPoint converted or contributed an aggregate of $1.7
billion of our indebtedness to CenterPoint and its subsidiaries to equity
without the issuance of any additional shares of our common stock, pursuant to
the terms of a master separation agreement between CenterPoint and us (Master
Separation Agreement), by recording an increase to our additional paid-in
capital. In addition, we used $147 million of the net proceeds of the IPO to
repay certain indebtedness owed to CenterPoint in May 2001.

During 2001 and the first half of 2002, proceeds not initially utilized from
the IPO were advanced to a subsidiary of CenterPoint (the CenterPoint money
fund) on a short-term basis. We reduced our advance to the CenterPoint money
fund following the IPO to fund capital expenditures and to meet our working
capital needs. As of December 31, 2001, we had outstanding advances to the
CenterPoint money fund of $390 million, which is included in accounts and notes
receivable in our consolidated balance sheet.

RELIANT RESOURCES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-- (Continued)
For the Three Years Ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002

We purchased natural gas, natural gas transportation services, electric
generation energy and capacity, and electric transmission services from,
supplied natural gas to, and provided marketing and risk management services to
affiliates of CenterPoint. Purchases and sales related to our trading and
marketing activities are recorded net in trading margins in the statements of
consolidated operations. During 2000 and 2001, there were no material purchases
of electric generation energy and capacity and electric transmission services
from CenterPoint and its subsidiaries. Purchases of electric generation energy
and capacity and electric transmission services from CenterPoint and its
subsidiaries were $1.5 billion in the nine months ended September 30, 2002.
During 2000, 2001 and the nine months ended September 30, 2002, the net
purchases and sales and services from/to CenterPoint and its subsidiaries
related to our trading and marketing operations totaled $405 million, $469
million and $161 million, respectively. In addition, during 2000, 2001 and the
nine months ended September 30, 2002, other sales and services to CenterPoint
and its subsidiaries totaled $23 million, $56 million and $15 million,
respectively. Sales and purchases to/from CenterPoint subsequent to the
Distribution are not reported as affiliated transactions.

During 2001, REPGB received efficiency and energy payments from NEA, an
equity investment, totaling $30 million pursuant to a protocol agreement under

34



Edgar Filing: RELIANT RESOURCES INC - Form 10-K/A

which the Dutch generators provided capacity and energy to distributors in
exchange for regulated production payments. In addition, during 2001 REPGB
received payments from NEA totaling $14 million related to environmental tax
subsidies for previous periods.

During 2001 and 2002, we purchased entitlements to some of the generation
capacity of electric generation assets of Texas Genco, LP (Texas Genco), a
subsidiary of CenterPoint. We purchased these entitlements in capacity auctions
conducted by Texas Genco and pursuant to rights granted to us under the Master
Separation Agreement, see note 4(b). As of December 31, 2002, we had purchased
entitlements to capacity of Texas Genco averaging 5,865 MW per month in 2003.
Our anticipated capacity payments related to these capacity entitlements are
$336 million in 2003. During the first quarter of 2003, through March 20, 2003,
we purchased additional entitlements to some of the generation capacity of
electric generation assets of Texas Genco averaging 879 MW per month for 2003
with capacity payments of $84 million. For additional information regarding
agreements relating to Texas Genco, see note 4 (b).

During 2000, 2001 and the nine months ended September 30, 2002, CenterPoint
made equity contributions to us of $1.4 billion, $1.8 billion and $21 million,
respectively. For the three months ended December 31, 2002, we recorded equity
contributions to us from CenterPoint of $26 million, which CenterPoint funded
in January 2003, for a total of $47 million during 2002. The contributions
received by us in 2000 primarily related to (a) conversion of $1 billion of the
borrowings from CenterPoint used to fund the acquisition of REMA (see note
5(b)), (b) the forgiveness of $284 million of debt held by subsidiaries that
were transferred from RERC Corp. to us (see note 1) and (c) general operating
costs. The contributions in 2001 primarily related to the conversion into
equity of debt owed to CenterPoint and some related interest expense totaling
$1.7 billion and the contribution of net benefit assets and liabilities, net of
deferred income taxes. The contributions in 2002 primarily related to benefit
obligations, net of deferred income taxes, pursuant to the Master Separation
Agreement.

(4) AGREEMENTS BETWEEN CENTERPOINT AND US
(a) Transition Agreements.

We entered into various written agreements with CenterPoint that were
required to facilitate an orderly separation of our businesses and operations
from those of CenterPoint in contemplation of our IPO and the Distribution. The
agreements, which are described below, address, among other things, the
provision of certain services and the leasing of facilities on an interim
basis, as well as the allocation of certain liabilities and obligations.
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CenterPoint has agreed to provide us various corporate support services,
information technology services and other previously shared services such as
corporate security, facilities management, accounts receivable, accounts
payable and payroll, office support services and purchasing and logistics
services. Certain of these arrangements will continue until December 31, 2004;
however, we have the right to terminate categories of services at an earlier
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date. The charges we pay to CenterPoint for these services allow CenterPoint to
recover its fully allocated costs of providing the services, plus out-of-pocket
costs and expenses. It is not anticipated that termination of any these
arrangements will have a material effect on our business, results of
operations, financial condition or cash flows.

We agreed to provide CenterPoint customer service call center operations,
credit and collection and revenue accounting services for CenterPoint's
electric utility division, and receiving and processing payment services for
the accounts of CenterPoint's electric utility division and two of
CenterPoint's natural gas distribution divisions. CenterPoint provided the
office space and equipment for us to perform these services. The charges
CenterPoint paid us for these services allowed us to recover our fully
allocated costs of providing the services, plus out-of-pocket costs and
expenses. As of December 31, 2001, we no longer provide these services to
CenterPoint.

We lease office space in CenterPoint's corporate headquarters and in various
other CenterPoint facilities in Houston, Texas. Our lease on our corporate
headquarters primarily expires in January 2004. We also have various agreements
with CenterPoint relating to ongoing commercial arrangements, including the
leasing of optical fiber and related maintenance activities, gas purchasing and
agency matters and subcontracting energy services under existing contracts.

We have agreements with CenterPoint providing for mutual indemnities and
releases with respect to our respective businesses and operations, corporate
governance matters, the responsibility for employee compensation and benefits,
and the allocation of tax liabilities. The agreements also require us to
indemnify CenterPoint for any untrue statement of a material fact, or omission
of a material fact necessary to make any statement not misleading, in the
registration statement or prospectus that we filed with the SEC in connection
with our IPO. We have also guaranteed, in the event CenterPoint becomes
insolvent, certain non-qualified benefits of CenterPoint's and its
subsidiaries' existing retirees at the Distribution totaling approximately $58
million.

(b) Agreements Relating to Texas Genco.

Texas Genco owns the Texas generating assets formerly held by CenterPoint's
electric utility division. Texas Genco, as the affiliated power generator of
CenterPoint, is required by law to sell at auction 15% of the output of its
installed generating capacity. These auction obligations will continue until
January 2007, unless at least 40% of the electricity consumed by residential
and small commercial customers in CenterPoint's service territory is being
served by retail electric providers other than us. Texas Genco has agreed to
auction all of its capacity that remains subsequent to the capacity auctioned
mandated under PUCT rules and after certain other adjustments. We have the
right to purchase 50% (but not less than 50%) of such remaining capacity at the
prices established in such auctions. We also have the right to participate
directly in such auctions. Texas Genco's obligation to auction its capacity and
our associated rights terminate (a) if we do not exercise our option to acquire
CenterPoint's ownership interest in Texas Genco by January 24, 2004 and (b) if
we exercise our option to acquire CenterPoint's ownership interest in Texas
Genco, on the earlier of (i) the closing of the acquisition or (ii) if the
closing has not occurred, the last day of the sixteenth month after the month
in which the option is exercised. For a discussion of our purchases of capacity
from Texas Genco in 2001 and 2002, see note 3.

In January 2003, CenterPoint distributed approximately 19% of the common
stock of Texas Genco. CenterPoint has granted us an option to purchase all of
the remaining shares of common stock of Texas Genco
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held by CenterPoint. We may exercise the option between January 10, 2004 and
January 24, 2004. The per share exercise price under the option will be the
average daily closing price on the national exchange for publicly held shares
of common stock of Texas Genco for the 30 consecutive trading days with the
highest average closing price during the 120 trading days immediately preceding
January 9, 2004, plus a control premium, up to a maximum of 10%, to the extent
a control premium is included in the valuation determination made by the PUCT.
The exercise price is also subject to adjustment based on the difference
between the per share dividends paid during the period there is a public
ownership interest in Texas Genco and Texas Genco's per share earnings during
that period. We have agreed that if we exercise the Texas Genco option, we will
also purchase all notes and other receivables from Texas Genco then held by
CenterPoint, at their principal amount, plus accrued interest. Similarly, if
Texas Genco holds notes or receivables from CenterPoint, we will assume
CenterPoint's obligations in exchange for a payment to us by CenterPoint of an
amount equal to the principal, plus accrued interest.

We have entered into a support agreement with CenterPoint, pursuant to which
we provide engineering and technical support services and environmental, safety
and industrial health services to support operations and maintenance of Texas
Genco's facilities. We also provide systems, technical, programming and
consulting support services and hardware maintenance (but excluding
plant-specific hardware) necessary to provide dispatch planning, dispatch and
settlement and communication with the independent system operator. The fees we
charge for these services are designed to allow us to recover our fully
allocated direct and indirect costs and reimbursement of out-of-pocket
expenses. Expenses associated with capital investment in systems and software
that benefit both the operation of Texas Genco's facilities and our facilities
in other regions are allocated on an installed MW basis. The term of this
agreement will end on the first to occur of (a) the closing date of our
acquisition of Texas Genco under the option, (b) CenterPoint's sale of Texas
Genco, or all or substantially all of the assets of Texas Genco, if we do not
exercise the Texas Genco option, or (c) May 31, 2005 if we do not exercise the
option; however, Texas Genco may extend the term of this agreement until
December 31, 2005.

On October 1, 2002, we entered into a master power purchase contract with
Texas Genco covering, among other things, our purchases of capacity and/or
energy from Texas Genco's generating units, under an unsecured line of credit.
This contract contains covenants that restrict the activities of several of our
retail energy segment's subsidiaries. These restrictions include limitations on
the ability of these subsidiaries to (a) sell assets (including customers); (b)
consolidate or merge with other companies, including affiliated companies
outside the retail energy segment; (c) grant liens on their properties (other
than permitted liens); (d) borrow money in excess of agreed upon levels (other
than securitizations of customer accounts); (e) enter into or guarantee certain
trading arrangements; and (f) incur liabilities outside the ordinary course of
their businesses. In addition, there are restrictions involving transactions
with affiliated companies outside the retail energy segment. The primary term
of this contract ends on December 31, 2003.

(5) BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS
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(a) Orion Power Holdings, Inc.

In February 2002, we acquired all of the outstanding shares of common stock
of Orion Power for an aggregate purchase price of $2.9 billion and assumed debt
obligations of $2.4 billion. We funded the Orion Power acquisition with a $2.9
billion credit facility (see note 9(a)) and $41 million of cash on hand. As a
result of the acquisition, our consolidated debt obligations also increased by
the amount of Orion Power's debt obligations. As of February 19, 2002, Orion
Power's debt obligations were $2.4 billion ($2.1 billion net of restricted cash
pursuant to debt covenants). Orion Power is an electric power generating
company with a diversified portfolio of generating assets, both geographically
across the states of New York, Pennsylvania, Ohio
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and West Virginia, and by fuel type, including gas, oil, coal and hydro. The
primary reason for the acquisition was to enhance our then current domestic
power generation position by combining our domestic generation capacity and
Orion Power's domestic generation capacity. The Orion Power acquisition
expanded our market presence into the New York and East Central Area
Reliability Coordinating Counsel power markets. As of February 19, 2002, Orion
Power had 81 generating facilities with a total generating capacity of 5,644 MW
and two development projects with an additional 804 MW of capacity under
construction. As of December 31, 2002, both projects under construction had
reached commercial operation.

We accounted for the acquisition as a purchase with assets and liabilities
of Orion Power reflected at their estimated fair values. Our fair value
adjustments primarily included adjustments in property, plant and equipment,
contracts, severance liabilities, debt, unrecognized pension and postretirement
benefits liabilities and related deferred taxes. We finalized these fair value
adjustments in February 2003, based on final valuations of property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets and other assets and obligations. There were no
additional material modifications to the preliminary adjustments from December
31, 2002.

The net purchase price of Orion Power was allocated and the fair value
adjustments to the seller's book value were as follows:

Purchase
Price Fair Value
Allocation Adjustments

CUrrent asSetS .. .u.ieeeeeeneeneenn S 636 S (8)
Property, plant and equipment.... 3,823 519
Goodwill. ...t 1,324 1,220
Other intangibles................ 477 282
Other long-term assets........... 103 34
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Total assets acquired......... 6,363 2,047
Current liabilities.............. (1,777) (51)
Current contractual obligations.. (29) (29)
Long-term contractual obligations (86) (86)
Long-term debt................... (1,006) (45)
Other long-term liabilities...... (501) (396)

Total liabilities assumed..... (3,399) (607)

Net assets acquired....... $ 2,964 $1,440

Adjustments to property, plant and equipment and other intangibles,
excluding contractual rights, are based primarily on valuation reports prepared
by independent appraisers and consultants.

The following factors contributed to the recognized goodwill of $1.3
billion: commercialization value attributable to our marketing and trading
capabilities, commercialization and synergy value associated with fuel
procurement in conjunction with existing generating plants in the region, entry
into the New York power market, general and administrative cost synergies with
existing Pennsylvania-New Jersey-Maryland power market generating assets and
headquarters, and risk diversification value due to increased scale, fuel
supply mix and the nature of the acquired assets. Of the resulting goodwill,
all but $105 million is not deductible for United States income tax purposes.
The $1.3 billion of goodwill was assigned to the wholesale energy segment.
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The components of other intangible assets and the related weighted-average
amortization period for the Orion Power acquisition consist of the following:

Purchase Weighted-Average
Price Amortization
Allocation Period (Years)

(in millions)

Air emission regulatory allowanCesS.........eeeeennns. $314 38

Contractual rights. ...ttt it iieee e 106 8

Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) licenses 57 38
e o $477

There was no allocation of purchase price to any intangible assets that are
not subject to amortization.
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Our results of operations include the results of Orion Power for the period
beginning February 19, 2002. The following table presents selected financial
information and unaudited pro forma information for 2001 and 2002, as if the
acquisition had occurred on January 1, 2001 and 2002, as applicable:

Year Ended December 31,

Pro
Actual forma

Actual

(in millions, except per share amou

ROV ENUE S e 4 v vt ettt ettt tm et et eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeeeeenas $6,499 $7,655
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of accounting change.. 560 604
Net IncComME (L10SS) vt vt i ittt et e ettt et ettt ettt ee e 563 607
Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share before cumulative

effect of accounting change..........iiiiiiiiiiieeeennnnn. $ 2.02 $ 2.18
Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share.................. 2.03 2.19

These unaudited pro forma results, based on assumptions we deem appropriate,
have been prepared for informational purposes only and are not necessarily
indicative of the amounts that would have resulted if the acquisition of Orion
Power had occurred on January 1, 2001 and 2002, as applicable. Purchase-related
adjustments to the results of operations include the effects on revenues, fuel
expense, depreciation and amortization, interest expense, interest income and
income taxes. Adjustments that affected revenues and fuel expense were a result
of the amortization of contractual rights and obligations relating to the
applicable power and fuel contracts that were in existence at January 1, 2001
or January 1, 2002, as applicable. Such amortization included in the pro forma
results above was based on the value of the contractual rights and obligations
at February 19, 2002. The amounts applicable to 2002 were retroactively applied
to January 1, 2002 through February 19, 2002 and the year ended December 31,
2001, to arrive at the pro forma effect on those periods. The unaudited pro
forma condensed consolidated financial statements reflect the acquisition of
Orion Power in accordance with SFAS No. 141 and SFAS No. 142. For additional
information regarding our adoption of SFAS No. 141 and SFAS No. 142, see notes
2(t) and 6.

(b) Reliant Energy Mid-Atlantic Power Holdings, LLC.
On May 12, 2000, one of our subsidiaries purchased entities owning electric
power generating assets and development sites located in Pennsylvania, New

Jersey and Maryland having an aggregate net generating
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capacity of approximately 4,262 MW. With the exception of development entities

that were sold to another subsidiary in July 2000, the assets of the entities
acquired are held by REMA. The purchase price for the May 2000 transaction was

$11,558
(326)
(560)
$ (1.12)
(1.93)
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$2.1 billion. In 2002, we made an $8 million payment to the prior owner for
post-closing adjustments, which resulted in an adjustment to the purchase
price. We accounted for the acquisition as a purchase with assets and
liabilities of REMA reflected at their estimated fair values. Our fair wvalue
adjustments related to the acquisition primarily included adjustments in
property, plant and equipment, air emissions regulatory allowances, specific
intangibles, materials and supplies inventory, environmental reserves and
related deferred taxes. The air emissions regulatory allowances of $153 million
are being amortized on a units-of-production basis as utilized. The specific
intangibles that relate to water rights and permits of $43 million will be
amortized over the estimated life of the related facility of 35 years. The
excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the net assets acquired of
$7 million was recorded as goodwill and was amortized over 35 years through
December 31, 2001. See note 6 regarding the cessation of goodwill amortization.
We finalized these fair value adjustments in May 2001. There were no additional
material modifications to the preliminary adjustments from December 31, 2000.
Funds for the acquisition of REMA were made available through loans from
CenterPoint. In May 2000, $1.0 billion of these loans were subsequently
converted to equity.

The net purchase price of REMA was allocated and the fair value adjustments
to the seller's book value are as follows:

Purchase
Price Fair Value
Allocation Adjustments

(in millions)

Current assetsS...oueeeeeeennnnnn S 85 S (27)
Property, plant and equipment.. 1,898 627
Goodwill. .. ii ittt it ie e 7 (144)
Other intangibles.............. 196 33
Other long-term assets......... 3 (5)
Total assets acquired....... 2,189 484
Current liabilities............ (50) (13)
Other long-term liabilities.... (39) (15)
Total liabilities assumed... (89) (28)
Net assets acquired..... $2,100 $ 456

Adjustments to property, plant and equipment, other intangibles, which
include air emissions regulatory allowances, and other specific intangibles,
and environmental reserves included in other liabilities are based primarily on
valuation reports prepared by independent appraisers and consultants.

In August 2000, we entered into separate sale-leaseback transactions with
each of three owner-lessors covering our respective 16.45%, 16.67% and 100%
interests in the Conemaugh, Keystone and Shawville generating stations,
respectively, acquired as part of the REMA acquisition. As lessee, we lease an
interest in each facility from each owner-lessor under a leveraged facility
lease agreement. As consideration for the sale of our interest in the
facilities, we received $1.0 billion in cash. We used the $1.0 billion of sale
proceeds to repay intercompany indebtedness owed by us to CenterPoint.
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Our results of operations include the results of REMA for the period
beginning May 12, 2000. The following table presents selected actual financial
information and unaudited pro forma information for 2000, as if
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the acquisition had occurred on January 1, 2000. Pro forma amounts also give
effect to the sale and leaseback of interests in three REMA generating plants
discussed above.

Year Ended
December 31, 2000
Pro
Actual forma

(in millions)

REVENUES . « vttt vttt e e eeenneeeennn $3,475 $3,641
Income before extraordinary item 216 207
Net income.......ccoiiiiiiinnnnn. 223 214

These unaudited pro forma results, based on assumptions deemed appropriate
by our management, have been prepared for informational purposes only and are
not necessarily indicative of the amounts that would have resulted if the
acquisition of the REMA entities had occurred on January 1, 2000.
Purchase-related adjustments to the results of operations include the effects
on depreciation and amortization, interest expense and income taxes.

(c) Reliant Energy Power Generation Benelux N.V.

Effective October 7, 1999, we acquired REPGB, a Dutch electric generation
company, for a total net purchase price, payable in Dutch Guilders (NLG), of
$1.9 billion based on an exchange rate on October 7, 1999 of 2.06 NLG per U.S.
dollar. The aggregate purchase price paid in 1999 by us consisted of $833
million in cash. On March 1, 2000, under the terms of the acquisition
agreement, we funded the remaining purchase obligation for $982 million. A
portion of this obligation ($596 million) was financed with a three-year term
loan facility obtained in the first quarter of 2000 (see note 9(a)). We
recorded the REPGB acquisition under the purchase method of accounting, with
assets and liabilities of REPGB reflected at their estimated fair values.

(6) GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLES

In July 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 142, which states that goodwill and
certain intangibles with indefinite lives will not be amortized into results of
operations, but instead will be reviewed periodically for impairment and
written down and charged to results of operations only in the periods in which
the recorded value of goodwill and certain intangibles with indefinite lives is
more than their fair values. We adopted the provisions of the statement, which
apply to goodwill and intangible assets acquired prior to June 30, 2001 on
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January 1, 2002, and thus discontinued amortizing goodwill into our results of
operations. A reconciliation of previously reported net income (loss) and
earnings (loss) per share to the amounts adjusted for the exclusion of goodwill
amortization follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2000 2001 2002

(in millions, except pe
share amounts)

Reported Net InCOomME (L1OSS) v vt v v v ettt eeeeeeeneeeeeeeeeeeeenenneeeeeeenenns $223 $ 563 S (560)
Add: Goodwill amortization, net oOf taxX.....c. ittt tteteeeeneenenn 35 51 ——
Less: Goodwill impairment relating to exiting communications business (1) —— (19) ——
Adjusted nNet INCOME (L10OSS) vt vttt it ittt et et eeeeeeeeeeeeeeneeeeeeeeeenennaes $258 $ 595 S (560)

Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share:

Reported Net InComME (L1OSS) v v vt v v ieee et eeeeeeeneeeeeeeeeeeeeneneeeeeeeenenns $ 2.03 $(1.93)
Add: Goodwill amortization, net oOf taxX.....c.i ittt teeteeeeneenenn 0.18 -
Less: Goodwill impairment relating to exiting communications business (1) (0.07) ——
Adjusted basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share..........cceiiieee... $ 2.14 $(1.93)

(1) This impairment of $19 million, net of tax, 1s included in the annual
goodwill amortization amount, net of tax, of $51 million.
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The components of other intangible assets consist of the following:

December 31, 2001 December 31, 2002
Weighted-Average ——————————=—=————"—"——"= ————————————————————
Amortization Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated
Period (Years) Amount Amortization Amount Amortization

(in millions)

Air emission regulatory allowances 36 $255 $(78) $586 $(120)
Contractual rights................ 8 —— —— 106 (26)
Power generation site permits..... 35 77 (3) 77 (6)
Water rights....... ... . . .. 35 68 (4) 68 (6)
FERC 1iCeNSEeS . i ittt tetennnenn 38 —— —— 57 (1)
Other . ittt e et e e e e e e e e e e e 5 —= —= 5 (3)

Total.. et $400 $(85) $899 $(162)
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We recognize specifically identifiable intangibles, including air emissions
regulatory allowances, contractual rights, power generation site permits, water
rights and FERC licenses, when specific rights and contracts are acquired. We
have no intangible assets with indefinite lives recorded as of December 31,
2002. We amortize air emissions regulatory allowances primarily on a
units-of-production basis as utilized. We amortize other acquired intangibles,
excluding contractual rights, on a straight-line basis over the lesser of their
contractual or estimated useful lives. All intangibles, excluding goodwill, are
subject to amortization.

In connection with the acquisition of Orion Power, we recorded the fair
value of certain fuel and power contracts acquired. We estimated the fair value
of the contracts using forward pricing curves as of the acquisition date over
the life of each contract. Those contracts with positive fair values at the
date of acquisition (contractual rights) were recorded to intangible assets and
those contracts with negative fair values at the date of acquisition
(contractual obligations) were recorded to other current and long-term
liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet.

Contractual rights and contractual obligations are amortized to fuel expense
and revenues, as applicable, based on the estimated realization of the fair
value established on the acquisition date over the contractual lives. There may
be times during the life of the contract when accumulated amortization exceeds
the carrying value of the recorded assets or liabilities due to the timing of
realizing the fair value established on the acquisition date.

Estimated amortization expense, excluding contractual rights and
obligations, for the next five years is as follows (in millions):

2003..... $ 36
2004..... 28
2005..... 28
2006..... 27
2007..... 24

RELIANT RESOURCES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-- (Continued)
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We amortized $26 million and $29 million of contractual rights and
contractual obligations, respectively, for a net amount of $3 million, during

2002. Estimated amortization of contractual rights and contractual obligations
for the next five years is as follows:
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Contractual Contractual Net Decrease
Rights Obligations in Income

2003..... $ 36 $(33) $ 3
2004..... 35 (31) 4
2005..... 17 (9) 8
2006..... 13 (3) 10
2007..... 21 (1) 20

As of December 31, 2001 and 2002, we had $32 million and $135 million,
respectively, of net goodwill recorded in our consolidated balance sheets that
is deductible for United States income tax purposes for future periods.

The following tables show the composition of goodwill by reportable segment
as of December 31, 2001 and 2002 and changes in the carrying amount of goodwill
for 2001 and 2002, by reportable segment:

Foreign
As of Currency As of
January 1, Amortization Exchange December 31,
2001 Expense Impairment Impact Other 2001

Retail energy... $ 34 $ (2) $ - $ - $ — $ 32
Wholesale energy 194 (4) —— —— (6) 184
European energy. 760 (26) - (60) 1 675
Other........... 19 - (19) - -— -
Total........ $1,007 $  (32) S (19) $(60) $ (5) $ 891
Goodwill Foreign

As of Acquired Currency As of

January 1, During the Exchange December 31,
2002 Period Impairments Impact Other 2002

Retail energy... $ 32 $ - $ - -= $ — $ 32
Wholesale energy 184 1,324 - - 1 1,509
European energy. 675 —— (716) 68 (27) ——

Total........ $ 891 $1,324 $(716) $ 68 $(26) $1,541

During the fourth quarter of 2002, we reached an agreement with the Dutch
tax authorities on the tax basis of property, plant and equipment as of the
date of our acquisition of REPGB and accordingly we recorded a $27 million
reduction to deferred tax liability with the offset recorded to goodwill.

During the third quarter of 2002, we completed the transitional impairment
test for the adoption of SFAS No. 142 on our consolidated financial statements,
including the review of goodwill for impairment as of
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January 1, 2002. This impairment test is performed in two steps. The initial
step is designed to identify potential goodwill impairment by comparing an
estimate of the fair value of the applicable reporting unit to its carrying
value, including goodwill. If the carrying value exceeded fair value, a second
step is performed, which compares the implied fair value of the applicable
reporting unit's goodwill with the carrying amount of that goodwill, to measure
the amount of the goodwill impairment, if any. Based on this impairment test,
we recorded an impairment of our European energy segment's goodwill of $234
million, net of tax. This impairment loss was recorded retroactively as a
cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle for the quarter ended
March 31, 2002. Based on the first step of this goodwill impairment test, no
goodwill was impaired for our other reporting units.

The circumstances leading to the goodwill impairment of our European energy
segment included a significant decline in electric margins attributable to the
deregulation of the European electricity market in 2001, lack of growth in the
wholesale energy trading markets in Northwest Europe, continued regulation of
certain European fuel markets and the reduction of proprietary trading in our
European operations. Our measurement of the fair value of the European energy
segment was based on a weighted-average approach considering both an income
approach, using future discounted cash flows, and a market approach, using
acquisition multiples, including price per MW, based on publicly available data
for recently completed European transactions.

As of March 31, 2002, we completed our assessment of intangible assets and
no indefinite lived intangible assets were identified. No related impairment
losses were recorded in the first quarter of 2002 and no changes were made to
the expected useful lives of our intangible assets as a result of this
assessment.

SFAS No. 142 also requires goodwill to be tested annually and between annual
tests i1if events occur or circumstances change that would more likely than not
reduce the fair value of a reporting unit below its carrying amount. We have
elected to perform our annual test for indications of goodwill impairment as of
November 1, in conjunction with our annual planning process. In estimating the
fair value of our European energy segment for the annual impairment test, we
considered the sales price in the agreement that we signed in February 2003 to
sell our European energy operations to a Netherlands-based electricity
distributor (see note 21(b)). We concluded that the sales price reflects the
best estimate of fair value of our European energy segment as of November 1,
2002, to use in our annual impairment test. Based on our annual impairment
test, we determined that an impairment of the full amount of our European
energy segment's net goodwill of $482 million should be recorded in the fourth
quarter of 2002. For additional information regarding this transaction and its
impacts, see note 21 (b).

Based on our annual impairment test, no goodwill was impaired for our other
reporting units. Our impairment analyses for our other reporting units include

numerous assumptions, including but not limited to:

increases in demand for power that will result in the tightening of
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supply surpluses and additional capacity requirements over the next three
to eight years, depending on the region;

improving prices in electric energy, ancillary services and existing
capacity markets as the power supply surplus is absorbed; and

our expectation that more balanced, fair market rules will be
implemented, which provide for the efficient operations of unregulated
power markets, including capacity markets or mechanisms in regions where
they currently do not exist.

These assumptions are consistent with our fundamental belief that long run
market prices must reach levels sufficient to support an adequate rate of
return on the construction of new power generation.
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An impairment analysis requires estimates of future market prices, valuation
of plant and equipment, growth, competition and many other factors as of the
determination date. The resulting impairment analysis is highly dependent on
these underlying assumptions. Such assumptions are consistent with those
utilized in our annual planning process and industry valuation and appraisal
reports. If the assumptions and estimates underlying this goodwill impairment
evaluation differ greatly from the actual results or to the extent that such
assumptions change through time, there could be additional goodwill impairments
in the future.

(7) DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS, INCLUDING ENERGY TRADING, MARKETING, PRICE RISK
MANAGEMENT SERVICES AND POWER ORIGINATION ACTIVITIES.

Effective January 1, 2001, we adopted SFAS No. 133, which establishes
accounting and reporting standards for derivative instruments, including
certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts and for hedging
activities. This statement requires that derivatives be recognized at fair
value in the balance sheet and that changes in fair value be recognized either
currently in earnings or deferred as a component of accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss), net of applicable taxes, depending on the intended
use of the derivative, its resulting designation and its effectiveness. If
certain conditions are met, an entity may designate a derivative instrument as
hedging (a) the exposure to changes in the fair value of an asset or liability
(fair value hedge), (b) the exposure to variability in expected future cash
flows (cash flow hedge) or (c) the foreign currency exposure of a net
investment in a foreign operation. For a derivative not designated as a hedging
instrument, the gain or loss is recognized in earnings in the period it occurs.
During 2001 and 2002, we did not enter into any fair value hedges.

Adoption of SFAS No. 133 on January 1, 2001 resulted in an after-tax
increase in net income of $3 million and a cumulative after-tax increase in
accumulated other comprehensive loss of $460 million. The adoption also
increased current assets, long-term assets, current liabilities and long-term
liabilities by $566 million, $127 million, $811 million and $339 million,
respectively, in our consolidated balance sheet. During 2001, $249 million of
the initial after-tax transition adjustment recorded in accumulated other

47



Edgar Filing: RELIANT RESOURCES INC - Form 10-K/A
comprehensive loss was recognized in net income.

We are exposed to various market risks. These risks arise from transactions
entered into in the normal course of business and are inherent in our
consolidated financial statements. We have utilized derivative instruments such
as futures, physical forward contracts, swaps and options (energy derivatives)
to mitigate the impact of changes in electricity, natural gas and fuel prices
on our operating results and cash flows. We have utilized (a) cross-currency
swaps, forward contracts and options to hedge our net investments in and cash
flows of our foreign subsidiaries, (b) interest rate swaps to mitigate the
impact of changes in interest rates and (c) other financial instruments to
manage various other market risks.

Trading, marketing and hedging operations often involve risk associated with
managing energy commodities and in certain circumstances establishing open
positions in the energy markets, primarily on a short-term basis. These risks
fall into three different categories: price and volume volatility, credit risk
of trading counterparties and adequacy of the control environment for trading.
We routinely enter into energy derivatives to hedge sale commitments, fuel
requirements and inventories of natural gas, coal, electricity, crude oil and
products and other commodities to minimize the risk of market fluctuations in
our trading, marketing, power origination and risk management services
operations.

The primary types of energy derivatives we use are described below:

Futures contracts are exchange-traded standardized commitments to
purchase or sell an energy commodity or financial instrument, or to make
a cash settlement, at a specific price and future date.
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Physical forward contracts are commitments to purchase or sell energy
commodities in the future.

Swap agreements require payments to or from counterparties based upon the
differential between a fixed price and variable index price (fixed price
swap) or two variable index prices (variable price swap) for a
predetermined contractual notional amount. The respective index may be an
exchange quotation or an industry pricing publication.

Option contracts convey the right to buy or sell an energy commodity or a
financial instrument at a predetermined price or settlement of the
differential between a fixed price and a variable index price or two
variable index prices.

(a) Energy Trading, Marketing, Price Risk Management Services and Certain
Power Origination Activities.

Trading and marketing activities include (a) transactions establishing open
positions in the energy markets, primarily on a short-term basis, (b)
transactions intended to optimize our power generation portfolio, but which do
not qualify for hedge accounting and (c) energy price risk management services
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to customers primarily related to natural gas, electric power and other
energy-related commodities. We provide these services by utilizing a variety of
derivative instruments (trading energy derivatives).

See note 2(t), which discusses the EITF's rescission of EITF No. 98-10 by
issuance of EITF No. 02-03. All new contracts entered into on or after October
25, 2002, can no longer be marked-to-market through earnings, unless the
contract is within the scope of SFAS No. 133. Note 2(t) also discusses the
estimated cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle to be recorded
effective January 1, 2003.

We applied mark-to-market accounting for our energy trading, marketing,
price risk management services to customers and certain origination activities
in our operations in North America and Europe. We also applied mark-to-market
accounting to contracted sales by our retail energy segment to large
commercial, industrial and institutional customers and the related energy
supply contracts for contracts entered into prior to October 25, 2002.
Accordingly, these contracts are recorded at fair value with net realized and
unrealized gains (losses) recorded as a component of revenues. The recognized,
unrealized balances are recorded as trading and marketing assets/liabilities in
the consolidated balance sheets. In addition, trading and marketing
assets/liabilities include option premiums for trading activities. Contracted
sales by our retail energy segment to large commercial, industrial and
institutional customers and the related energy supply contracts entered into
after October 25, 2002, will, for the most part, no longer be marked-to-market
through earnings. For contracted sales by our retail energy segment to large
commercial, industrial and institutional customers and the related energy
supply contracts entered into after October 25, 2002 that are derivatives
pursuant to SFAS No. 133, we will apply hedge accounting or designate them as
"normal," as further described below.

The fair values as of December 31, 2001 and 2002, are estimated by using
quoted prices where available and other valuation techniques when market data
is not available, for example in illigquid markets. Our alternative pricing
methodologies include, but are not limited to, extrapolation of forward pricing
curves using historically reported data from illiquid pricing points. These
same pricing techniques are used to evaluate a contract prior to taking a
position.

Other factors affecting our estimates of fair values include valuation
adjustments relating to time value, the volatility of the underlying
commitment, the cost of administering future obligations under existing
contracts, and the credit risk of counterparties. Volatility wvaluation
adjustments are calculated by utilizing observed market price volatility and
represent the estimated impact on fair values resulting from potential
fluctuations in current prices. Credit adjustments are based on estimated
defaults by counterparties and are calculated using historical default ratings
for corporate bonds for companies with similar credit ratings.
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The fair values are subject to significant changes based on fluctuating
market prices and conditions. Changes in the assets and liabilities from
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trading, marketing, power origination and price risk management services result
primarily from changes in the valuation of the portfolio of contracts, newly
originated transactions and the timing of settlements. The most significant
parameters impacting the value of our portfolio of contracts include natural
gas and power forward market prices, volatility and credit risk. For the
contracted retail electric sales to large commercial, industrial and
institutional customers, significant variables affecting contract values also
include the variability in electricity consumption patterns due to weather and
operational uncertainties (within contract parameters). Insufficient market
liquidity could significantly affect the values that could be obtained for
these contracts, as well as the costs at which these contracts could be hedged.

The weighted-average term of the trading portfolio, based on fair values, is
approximately one year. The maximum term of any contract in the trading
portfolio is 15 years. These maximum and average terms are not indicative of
likely future cash flows, as these positions may be changed by new transactions
in the trading portfolio at any time in response to changing market conditions,
market liquidity and our risk management portfolio needs and strategies. Terms
regarding cash settlements of these contracts vary with respect to the actual
timing of cash receipts and payments.

(b) Non-Trading Activities.

Cash Flow Hedges. To reduce the risk from market fluctuations in revenues
and the resulting cash flows derived from the sale of electric power, we may
enter into Energy Derivatives in order to hedge some expected purchases of
electric power, natural gas and other commodities and sales of electric power
(non-trading energy derivatives). The non-trading energy derivative portfolios
are managed to complement the physical transaction portfolio, reducing overall
risks within authorized limits.

We apply hedge accounting for our non-trading energy derivatives utilized in
non-trading activities only if there is a high correlation between price
movements in the derivative and the item designated as being hedged. This
correlation, a measure of hedge effectiveness, is measured both at the
inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, with an acceptable level of
correlation of at least 80% to 125% for hedge designation. If and when
correlation ceases to exist at an acceptable level, hedge accounting ceases and
prospective changes in fair value are recognized currently in our results of
operations. During 2001 and 2002, the amount of hedge ineffectiveness
recognized in revenues from derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash
flow hedges, including interest rate swaps, was a gain of $37 million and a
loss of $8 million, respectively. For 2001 and 2002, no component of the
derivative instruments' gain or loss was excluded from the assessment of
effectiveness. If it becomes probable that an anticipated transaction will not
occur, we realize in net income (loss) the deferred gains and losses recognized
in accumulated other comprehensive loss. During 2001 and 2002, there were zero
and $16 million, respectively, which is excluded from the hedge ineffectiveness
above, of losses recognized in earnings as a result of the discontinuance of
cash flow hedges because it was no longer probable that the forecasted
transaction would occur. The losses reclassified into earnings in 2002
primarily related to deferred losses of interest rate swaps. Once the
anticipated transaction occurs, the accumulated deferred gain or loss
recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss 1is reclassified and included
in our statements of consolidated operations under the captions (a) fuel
expenses, in the case of natural gas purchase transactions, (b) purchased
power, in the case of electric power purchase transactions, (c) revenues, in
the case of electric power and natural gas sales transactions and financial
electric power or natural gas derivatives and (d) interest expense, in the case
of interest rate swap transactions. As of December 31, 2002, we expect $12
million of accumulated other comprehensive loss to be reclassified into net
income during the next twelve months.
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As of December 31, 2001 and 2002, the maximum length of time we are hedging
our exposure to the wvariability in future cash flows for forecasted
transactions excluding the payment of variable interest on existing financial
instruments is 11 years and 10 years, respectively. As of December 31, 2001 and
2002, the maximum length of time we are hedging our exposure to the payment of
variable interest rates is four years and seven years, respectively.

For a discussion of our interest rate swaps, see note 9(d).

As of December 31, 2001 and 2002, our European energy segment has entered
into forward and swap contracts to purchase $271 million and $143 million,
respectively, at a fixed exchange rate in order to hedge future fuel purchases
payable in U.S. dollars.

Hedge of the Foreign Currency Exposure of Net Investment in Foreign
Subsidiaries. During the normal course of business, we review our currency
hedging strategies and determine the hedging approach deemed appropriate based
upon the circumstances of each situation. Until December 2002, we substantially
hedged our entire net investment in our European subsidiaries against a
material decline of the Euro through a combination of Euro-denominated
borrowings, foreign currency swaps, options and forward contracts to reduce our
exposure to changes in foreign currency rates. In December 2002, we reduced our
hedged position by approximately $1.1 billion to $1.4 billion and are using a
combination of Euro-denominated borrowings and foreign currency options to
reduce our exposure to changes in foreign currency rates. In March 2003, we
adjusted the hedge of our net investment in our European energy operations; see
note 21 (b).

We record the changes in the value of the foreign currency hedging
instruments and Euro-denominated borrowings as foreign currency translation
adjustments included as a component of accumulated other comprehensive loss.
The effectiveness of the hedging instruments can be measured by the net change
in foreign currency translation adjustments attributed to our net investment in
our European subsidiaries. Euro-denominated borrowings and foreign currency
swaps and forward contracts generally offset amounts recorded in stockholders'
equity as adjustments resulting from translation of the hedged investment into
U.S. dollars while foreign currency options partially offset such amounts.
During 2001 and 2002, the derivative and non-derivative instruments designated
as hedging the net investment in our European subsidiaries resulted in a gain
of $31 million and a loss of $210 million, respectively, which are included in
the balance of the cumulative translation adjustment.

Other Derivatives. In December 2000, the Dutch parliament adopted
legislation allocating to the Dutch generation sector, including REPGB,
financial responsibility for various stranded costs contracts and other
liabilities. In particular, the legislation allocated to the Dutch generation
sectors, including REPGB, financial responsibility to purchase electricity and
gas under gas supply and electricity contracts. For additional information
regarding these stranded cost contracts and the related accounting pursuant to
SFAS No. 133, see note 14(7j).
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During 2001, we entered into two structured transactions, which were
recorded in the consolidated balance sheet in non-trading derivative assets and
liabilities involving a series of forward contracts to buy and sell an energy
commodity in 2001 and to buy and sell an energy commodity in 2002. The change
in fair value of these derivative assets and liabilities must be recorded in
the statement of consolidated operations for each reporting period. As of
December 31, 2001 we have recorded $118 million of net non-trading derivative
assets related to these transactions. During 2001 and 2002, $117 million of net
non-trading derivative assets and $121 million of net non-trading derivative
assets, respectively, were settled related to these transactions; $1 million
and $3 million, respectively, of pre-tax unrealized gains were recognized.
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(c) Credit Risks.

In addition to the risk associated with price movements, credit risk is
inherent in our risk management activities and hedging activities. Credit risk
relates to the risk of loss resulting from non-performance of contractual
obligations by a counterparty. We have broad credit policies and parameters. It
is our policy that all transactions must be within approved counterparty or
customer credit limits. We seek to enter into contracts that permit us to net
receivables and payables with a given counterparty. We also enter into
contracts that enable us to obtain collateral from a counterparty as well as to
terminate contracts upon the occurrence of certain events of default. We
periodically review the financial condition of our counterparties. If the
counterparties to these arrangements failed to perform, we would exercise our
legal rights to obtain contractual remedies related to such non-performance. We
might be forced to acquire alternative hedging arrangements or be required to
replace the underlying commitment at then-current market prices. In this event,
we might incur additional losses to the extent of amounts, if any, already paid
to the counterparties. For information regarding the provision related to
energy sales in California, see note 14(i). For information regarding the net
provision recorded in 2001 related to energy sales to Enron, see note 17.

The following table shows the combined composition of our trading and
marketing assets and our non-trading derivative assets, after taking into
consideration netting within each contract and any master netting contracts
with counterparties, as of December 31, 2001 and 2002:

December 31, 2001 December 31, 2002

Investment Investment
Trading and Marketing Assets and Grade Grade
Non-Trading Derivative Assets (1) (2) Total (1) (2) Total

(in millions)

Energy marketers.........cceueeeennnn. $ 488 $ 571 $258 $ 417
Financial institutions............... 58 58 133 133
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Gas and electric utilities........... 346 348 138 148
0il and gas pProdUCerS......eeeeeennn. 95 118 12 106
Industrial. ...t in i eennnnns 32 54 16 33
Others. ...ttt e ettt 81 127 29 44
Total. ittt ettt $1,100 1,276 $586 881
Collateral held (3) ..., (167) (188)
Total exposure, net of collateral. 1,109 693
Credit and other reserves............ (114) (68)

$ 995 $ 625

(1) "Investment Grade" is primarily determined using publicly available credit

ratings along with the consideration of credit support (such as parent
company guarantees) .
(2) For unrated counterparties, we perform credit analyses, considering
contractual rights and restrictions to create an internal credit rating.
(3) Collateral consists of cash and standby letters of credit.

Trading and marketing assets and liabilities and non-trading derivative
assets and liabilities are presented separately in our consolidated balance
sheets. The trading and non-trading derivative asset and trading and
non-trading derivative liability balances were offset separately for trading
and non-trading activities although in certain cases contracts permit the
offset of trading and non-trading derivative assets and liabilities with a
given counterparty. For the purpose of disclosing credit risk, trading and
non-trading derivative assets and liabilities with a given counterparty were
offset if the counterparty has entered into a contract with us which permits
netting.

RELIANT RESOURCES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
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For the Three Years Ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002

As of December 31, 2001, no individual counterparty accounted for more than
10% of our total credit exposure, net of collateral. As of December 31, 2002,
one counterparty with a credit rating below investment grade represented 12% of
our total credit exposure, net of collateral.

(d) Trading and Non-trading--General Policy.

We have established a risk oversight committee. The risk oversight
committee, which is comprised of corporate officers and includes a working
group of corporate and business segment officers, oversees all of our trading,
marketing and hedging activities and other activities involving market risks.
These activities expose us to commodity price, credit, foreign currency and
interest rate risks. The committee's duties are to approve our commodity risk
policies, allocate risk capital within limits established by our board of
directors, approve trading of new products and commodities, monitor risk
positions and monitor compliance with our risk management policies and
procedures and trading limits established by our board of directors.
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Our policies prohibit the use of leveraged financial instruments. A
leveraged financial instrument, for this purpose, is a transaction involving a
derivative whose financial impact will be based on an amount other than the
notional amount or volume of the instrument.

(8) EQUITY INVESTMENTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

We have a 50% interest in a 470 MW electric generation plant in Boulder
City, Nevada. The plant became operational in May 2000. We have a 50%
partnership interest in a 108 MW cogeneration plant in Orange, Texas. In
addition, we, through REPGB, have a 22.5% interest in NEA.

Currently, NEA does not have on-going operations and is in the process of
resolving its existing contingencies and liquidating its remaining assets.
Prior to 2001, NEA acted as the national electricity pooling and coordinating
body for the generation output of REPGB and the three other large-scale
national Dutch generation companies. During 2001, NEA sold its national grid
transmission company, TenneT, to the Dutch government. As of December 31, 2001
and 2002, NEA's assets primarily consisted of proceeds held by NEA related to
the sale of TenneT. Prior to 2001, NEA's operating results were derived from
operating as the national electricity pooling and coordinating body for the
generation output of the large-scale Dutch generation companies. Beginning in
2001, NEA no longer served in this capacity. During 2001 and 2002, NEA's income
was derived from interest income from proceeds held by NEA related to the sale
of TenneT and in addition, in 2001 from the gain on the sale of TenneT. In
connection with the sale of our European energy operations (see note 21 (b)),
our investment in NEA will be sold. For additional information regarding our
investment in NEA and financial impacts, see note 14 (7).

Our equity investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries are as follows:

As of
December 31,

2001 2002

(in millions)

Nevada generation plant....c...e e e e e et eeeeennnnnns $ 57 $ 73

Texas cogeneration plant........c.oiiiiiiinnnnnnnn. 31 30

N A . i ittt e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 299 210

Equity investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries. $387 $313
F-39
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Our income from equity investments of unconsolidated subsidiaries is as
follow:

54



Edgar Filing: RELIANT RESOURCES INC - Form 10-K/A

Year Ended
December 31,

(in millions)

Nevada generation pPlant....... et e i iie ettt teeeeenenneeeeeeeenenns $42 $ 5 $le6
Texas cogeneration plant........ui ittt ttneeeeeeeennenneeeens 1 1 2
N A . i it et e et e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e - 51 5

Income from equity investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries. $43 $57

I <
N
w

During 2000, 2001 and 2002, the net distributions were $18 million, $27
million and $140 million, respectively, from these investments. The 2002 net
distributions include a $137 million distribution from NEA.

As of December 31, 2002, the companies, in which we have an unconsolidated
equity investment, carry debt that is currently estimated to be $326 million
($113 million based on our proportionate ownership interests of the
investments) .

Summarized financial information for our equity method investments'
operating results is as follows:

Year Ended
December 31,

2000 2001 2002

(in millions)

Nevada Generation Plant:

REVENUES .t ettt v e e eennns $ 260 $133 $101
Gross profit............ 127 22 19
Operating income (loss). 114 (5) (5)
Net income (loss)....... 108 (12) 31

Texas Cogeneration Plant:

REVENUES . ettt v v e e eennns $ 39 $ 45 $ 41
Gross profit............ 11 11 12
Operating income........ 3 3 4
Net income.............. 3 3 4
NEA:
REVENUES .+ vttt ee e eennnn $2,776 $ —— $ ——
Gross profit............ 54 - -
Operating income (loss). 245 81 (8)
Net income.............. 292 774 20
F-40
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Summarized financial information for our equity method investments'
financial position is as follows:

As of
December 31,

Nevada Generation Plant:

Current assets......... $ 22 $ 53
Noncurrent assets...... 247 243

Total...oveveeennnn. $ 269 $ 296
Current liabilities.... $ 12 S 14
Noncurrent liabilities. 145 142
Equity...cooeeen.. 112 140

Total...ooeveeennnn. $ 269 $ 296

Texas Cogeneration Plant:

Current assets......... $ 6 $ 11
Noncurrent assets...... 63 60
Total...oveeuunenn. $ 69 $ 71
Current liabilities.... $ 6 $ 10
Noncurrent liabilities. —— ——
Equity...coeevo.. 63 61
Total...oeeeennonn. $ 69 $ 71
NEA:
Current assets......... $1,590 $1,201
Noncurrent assets...... 18 23
Total...vovveeennnn. $1,608 $1,224
Current liabilities.... $ 611 $ 49
Noncurrent liabilities. 195 188
Equity...coeivo.. 802 987
Total...oovveeennnn. $1,608 $1,224
F-41
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For the Three Years Ended

(9) BANKING OR DEBT FACILITIES,

As more fully described in note 21 (a),

facilities in March 2003.

December 31,

2000,

2001 and 2002

OTHER SHORT-TERM DEBT AND OTHER LONG-TERM DEBT

we refinanced certain credit

The following table presents the components of our banking or debt

facilities,

of December 31, 2001 and 2002:

Banking or Debt Facilities
Other Operations Segment:
Orion acquisition term loan
364-day revolver/term loan
Three-year revolver
Wholesale Energy Segment:
Orion Power and Subsidiaries:

Orion MidWest and Orion NY term loans
Orion MidWest working capital facility
Orion NY working capital facility

Liberty Generating Project:
Floating rate debt

Fixed rate debt
Reliant Energy Channelview LP:
Equity bridge loan

Term loan and working capital

Floating rate debt
Fixed rate debt

REMA letter of credit facilities

European Energy Segment:
Reliant Energy Capital (Europe)
REPGB 364-day revolver (4)
REPGB letter of credit facility

Total facilities

Other Short-term Debt
European Energy Segment:

, Inc.

Short-term arrangements via brokers and

financial institutions

Total other short-term

Other Long-term Debt
Wholesale Energy Segment:
Orion Power senior notes

debt

other short-term debt and other long-term debt to third parties as

2001 2
Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Interest Interest
Rate (1) Long-term Current (2) Rate (1) Long-

(in millions, excluding interest r

- $ — $ —- 3.68% $2,9
- - - 3.20 8
- - - 3.13 2
- - - 3.96 1,2
- - - 3.92
- - - 3.02
- - - 9.02
2.63% - 92 -
3.56 235 2 2.81 2
9.547 60 - 9.547
4.64 534 - 4.19
4.18 - 155 -
829 249 5,4
3.51 —— 50 __
- 50
- - - 12.0 4
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[ o - - -
Retail Energy Segment:
[ 0 - - -
European Energy Segment:
REPGB debentures (4) (7) « v e ittt et et e eeeenenn 7.35 38 22
Adjustment to fair value of debt(7)............. —— 1 —=
Other
Adjustment to fair value of interest rate
SWAPS (D) o e e e ettt e e e e e et et e e ettt —= —= —=
Total other long-term debt............. 39 22
Total debt...v.irin e enennnn.. $868 $321
F-42
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(1) The weighted average interest rate is for borrowings outstanding as of
December 31, 2001 or 2002, as applicable.

(2) Includes amounts due within one year of the date noted, as well as loans
outstanding under revolving and working capital facilities classified as
current liabilities.

(3) See note 21 (a) for a discussion of the facilities refinanced in March 2003.
As a result of the refinancing, $3.9 billion has been classified as
long-term.

(4) Borrowings were primarily denominated in Euros and the assumed exchange
rate was 0.8895 U.S. dollar per Euro and 1.0492 U.S. dollar per Euro at
December 31, 2001 and 2002, respectively. The results of our European
energy segment are consolidated on a one-month lag basis.

(5) In March 2003, we extended the maturity of this facility. See notes 21 (b)
and 21 (c) .

(6) Debt and interest rate swaps acquired in the Orion Power acquisition are
adjusted to fair market value as of the acquisition date. Included in
interest expense is amortization of $5 million and $25 million for
valuation adjustments for debt and interest rate swaps, respectively, for
2002. These valuation adjustments are being amortized over the respective
remaining terms of the related financial instruments.

(7) REPGB debt was adjusted to fair market value as of the acquisition date.
The fair value adjustments are being amortized over the respective
remaining term of the related long-term debt.

As of December 31, 2002, maturities of all facilities, other short-term debt
and other long-term debt were $1.4 billion in 2003, $170 million in 2004, $1.1
billion in 2005, $515 million in 2006, $3.4 billion in 2007 and $720 million in
2008 and beyond.

RELIANT RESOURCES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
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For the Three Years Ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002

(a) Banking or Debt Facilities.

The following table provides a summary of the amounts owed and amounts
available as of December 31, 2002 under our various committed credit facilities:

Commitments
Total Letters Expiring By
Committed Drawn of Unused December 31,
Credit Amount Credit Amount 2003
(in millions)
Other Operations Segment:
Orion acquisition term loan............ $2,908 $2,908 $ —— S —— $2,908(1)
364-day revolver/term loan............. 800 800 —— —— 800 (1)
Three-year revolver.... ..o ee e eeennenn. 800 558 235 7 — (1)
Wholesale Energy Segment:
Orion Power and Subsidiaries:
Orion MidWest and Orion NY
term 10ANS . v vttt ittt et tneeennnn 1,320 1,320 —— —— 109
Orion MidWest working capital
o 0 5 1wl 75 51 14 10 -
Orion NY working capital
o 0 1 1wl 30 —= - 30 -
Liberty Generating Project.......... 290 268 17 5 8
Reliant Energy Channelview LP:
Term loan and working capital
B o 0 1wl 7R 382 373 - 9 3
REMA letter of credit facilities....... 51 - 38 13 51
European Energy Segment:
Reliant Energy Capital (Europe), Inc... 630 630 —— —— 630(2) (3)
REPGB 364-day revolver........ceueeeee.o.. 194 —— 18 (4) 176 194 (2)
REPGB letter of credit facility........ 420 —— 355 65 420 (2)
Total. . ettt et e et e e $7,900 $6,908 $677 $315 $5,123

(1) In March 2003, these facilities were refinanced to mature in March 2007.
See note 21 (a) for further discussion.

(2) The results of our European energy segment are consolidated on a one-month
lag basis.

(3) In March 2003, we extended the maturity of this facility. See notes 21 (b)
and 21 (c) .

(4) This amount excludes $12 million of cash collateralized letters of credit
as they do not affect our availability under the facility.

As of December 31, 2002, we had $7.9 billion in committed credit facilities
of which $315 million was unused. These facilities expired as follows (in
millions) :

Febru
Augus
Augus

March
Octob
Octob
Janua
Janua
Augus
March

July
July
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2004....... ... 940
2005..... ... 1,210
2006........... 24
2007 ... 61

RELIANT RESOURCES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-- (Continued)

For the Three Years Ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002

As of December 31, 2002, committed credit facilities aggregating $5.2
billion were unsecured and $5.1 billion were scheduled to expire by December
31, 2003. As part of the refinancing in March 2003, the debt related to our
construction agency agreements (see note 14 (b)) together with the Orion
acquisition term loan and the 364-day revolver/term loan and the three-year
revolver were combined into a single credit facility which is now secured.

As of December 31, 2002, letters of credit outstanding under these
facilities aggregated $677 million and borrowings aggregated $6.9 billion of
which $5.5 billion were classified as long-term debt, based upon the
refinancing as described in note 21 (a) or the availability of committed credit
facilities coupled with management's intention to maintain these borrowings in
excess of one year.

As of December 31, 2001, we had $5.6 billion in committed credit facilities
of which $4.1 billion remained unused. Credit facilities aggregating $4.6
billion were unsecured. As of December 31, 2001, letters of credit outstanding
under these facilities aggregated $396 million. As of December 31, 2001,
borrowings of $1.1 billion were outstanding under these facilities of which
$829 million were classified as long-term debt, based upon the availability of
committed credit facilities and management's intention to maintain these
borrowings in excess of one year.

Orion Acquisition Term Loan. Reliant Resources entered into an unsecured
$2.2 billion term loan facility during the fourth quarter of 2001, which was
amended in January 2002 to provide for $2.9 billion in funding to finance the
purchase of Orion Power. For discussion of the acquisition of Orion Power, see
note 5(a). Interest rates on the borrowings under this facility are based on
either (a) the London inter-bank offered rate (LIBOR) plus a margin based on
Reliant Resources' credit rating and length of time outstanding, which was 2.0%
at December 31, 2002 or (b) a base rate. This facility was funded on February
19, 2002 for $2.9 billion. The credit agreement contained affirmative and
negative covenants, including a negative pledge, and a requirement to maintain
a ratio of net debt to the sum of net debt, stockholders' equity and
subordinated affiliate debt not to exceed 0.60 to 1.00. The maturity of this
term loan was one year from the date on which it was funded. The maturity date
was extended from February 19, 2003 to March 31, 2003. During March 2003, we
refinanced this term loan facility (see note 21(a)).

364-day Revolver/Term Loan and Three-year Revolver. In 2001, Reliant
Resources entered into two unsecured syndicated revolving credit facilities
with a group of financial institutions, which provided for $800 million each or
an aggregate of $1.6 billion in committed credit. The one-year term-out
provision in the $800 million unsecured 364-day revolving credit facility was
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exercised before it matured on August 22, 2002, resulting in a one-year term
loan with a maturity of August 22, 2003. The three-year revolver had a maturity
date of August 22, 2004. As of December 31, 2001 and 2002, there were $0 and
$1.4 billion in borrowings outstanding, respectively, under these facilities.
At December 31, 2001 and 2002, letters of credit outstanding under these two
facilities aggregated $51 million and $235 million, respectively. Interest
rates on the borrowings were based on (a) LIBOR plus a margin based on our
credit rating, (b) a base rate or (c) a rate determined through a bidding
process. The LIBOR margin as of December 31, 2002 was 1.375% for the 364-day
facility and 1.075% for the three-year facility. The credit agreements
contained affirmative and negative covenants, including a negative pledge, that
had to be met to borrow funds or obtain letters of credit and which required us
to maintain a ratio of net debt to the sum of net debt, stockholders' equity
and subordinated affiliate debt not to exceed 0.60 to 1.00. The revolving
credit facilities were subject to facility and usage fees that were calculated
based on the amount of the facility commitments and on the amounts outstanding
under the facilities relative to the commitments, respectively. As of the
term-out, the 364-day facility was subject to a facility fee that was based on
the amount outstanding under the facility. During March 2003, we refinanced
these facilities (see note 21(a)).

RELIANT RESOURCES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-- (Continued)

For the Three Years Ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002

Orion Power's Debt Obligations. As a result of our acquisition of Orion
Power in early 2002, our consolidated net debt obligations also increased by
the amount of Orion Power's net debt obligations, which are discussed below. In
October 2002, a portion of this debt was refinanced, the terms of which are
also discussed below.

Orion Power Revolving Senior Credit Facility. Orion Power had an unsecured
revolving senior credit facility. This facility was prepaid and terminated in
October 2002 in connection with the execution of the amended and restated Orion
MidWest and Orion NY credit facilities. See below for further discussion of the
debt refinancing. The amount of this facility was reduced on September 6, 2002,
from $75 million to $62 million in conjunction with a reduction of the total
letters of credit outstanding. Amounts outstanding under the facility bore
interest at a floating rate.

Orion MidWest Credit Agreement. Orion MidWest, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of Orion Power, had a secured credit agreement, which included a
$988 million acquisition facility and a $75 million revolving working capital
facility, including letters of credit. This debt was refinanced in October
2002; see below for further discussion. The loans bore interest at the
borrower's option at LIBOR plus 2.00% or a base rate plus 1.00%.

Orion New York Credit Agreement. Orion NY, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of Orion Power, had a secured credit agreement, which included a
$412 million acquisition facility and a $30 million revolving working capital
facility, including letters of credit. This debt was refinanced in October
2002; see below for further discussion. The loans bore interest at the
borrower's option at LIBOR plus 1.75% or a base rate plus 0.75%.

In connection with the Orion Power acquisition, the existing interest rate
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swaps for the Orion MidWest credit facility and the Orion NY credit facility
were bifurcated into a debt component and a derivative component. The fair
values of the debt components, approximately $59 million for the Orion MidWest
credit facility and $31 million for the Orion NY credit facility, were based on
our incremental borrowing rates at the acquisition date for similar types of
borrowing arrangements. The value of the debt component will be reduced as
interest rate swap payments are made. For the period from February 20, 2002
through December 31, 2002, the value of the debt component was reduced by $17
million and $8 million for Orion MidWest and Orion NY, respectively. See note 7
for information regarding our derivative financial instruments. See note 9(d)
for further discussion regarding our interest-rate swaps.

Orion Power's Refinanced Debt. During October 2002, the Orion Power
revolving credit facility was prepaid and terminated and, as part of the same
transaction, we refinanced the Orion MidWest and Orion NY credit facilities,
which refinancing included an extension of the maturities by three years to
October 2005. In connection with these refinancings, we applied excess cash of
$145 million to prepay and terminate the Orion Power revolving credit facility
and to reduce the term loans and revolving working capital facilities at Orion
MidWest and Orion NY. As of the refinancing date, the amended and restated
Orion MidWest credit facility includes a term loan of approximately $974
million and a $75 million revolving working capital facility. As of the
refinancing date, the amended and restated Orion NY credit facility includes a
term loan of approximately $353 million and a $30 million revolving working
capital facility. The loans under each facility bear interest at LIBOR plus a
margin or at a base rate plus a margin. The LIBOR margin is 2.50% during the
first twelve months, 2.75% during the next six months, 3.25% for the next six
months and 3.75% thereafter. The base rate margin is 1.50% during the first
twelve months, 1.75% for the next six months, 2.25% for the next six months and
2.75% thereafter. The amended and restated Orion NY credit facility is secured
by a first lien on a substantial portion of the assets of Orion NY and its
subsidiaries (excluding certain plants) and a second lien on substantially
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all of the assets of Orion MidWest and its subsidiary. The amended and restated
Orion MidWest credit facility is, in turn, secured by a first lien on
substantially all of the assets of Orion MidWest and its subsidiary and a
second lien on a substantial portion of the assets of Orion NY and its
subsidiaries (excluding certain plants). Both the Orion MidWest and Orion NY
credit facilities contain affirmative and negative covenants, including
negative pledges, that must be met by each borrower under its respective
facility to borrow funds or obtain letters of credit, and which require Orion
MidWest and Orion NY to maintain a combined debt service coverage ratio of 1.5
to 1.0. These covenants are not anticipated to materially restrict either
borrower's ability to borrow funds or obtain letters of credit under its
respective credit facility. The facilities also provide for any available cash
under one facility to be made available to the other borrower to meet
shortfalls in the other borrower's ability to make certain payments, including
operating costs. This is effected through distributions of such available cash
to Orion Power Capital, LLC, a direct subsidiary of Orion Power formed in
connection with the refinancing. Orion Power Capital, LLC, as indirect owner of
each of Orion MidWest and Orion NY, can then contribute such cash to the other
borrower. Although cash sufficient to make the November and December 2002
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payments on Orion Power's 12% senior notes and 4.5% convertible senior notes
(each described below) was provided in connection with the refinancing, the
ability of the borrowers to make subsequent dividends to Orion Power for such
interest payments or otherwise is subject to certain requirements (described
below) that are likely to restrict such dividends.

As of December 31, 2002, Orion MidWest had $969 million and $51 million of
term loans and revolving working capital facility loans outstanding,
respectively. A total of $14 million in letters of credit were also outstanding
under the Orion MidWest credit facility. As of December 31, 2002, Orion NY had
$351 million of term loans outstanding. There were no loans or letters of
credit outstanding under the Orion NY working capital facility. As of December
31, 2002, restricted cash under the Orion MidWest and the Orion NY credit
facilities was $72 million and $73 million, respectively, and $27 million at
Orion Capital. Such restricted cash may be dividended to Orion Power if Orion
MidWest and Orion NY have made certain prepayments and a number of distribution
tests have been met, including satisfaction of certain debt service coverage
ratios and the absence of events of default. It is likely that these tests will
restrict a dividend of such restricted cash to Orion Power. Any restricted cash
which is not dividended will be applied on a quarterly basis to prepay on a pro
rata basis outstanding loans at Orion MidWest and Orion NY. No distributions
may be made under any circumstances after October 28, 2004. Orion MidWest's and
Orion NY's obligations under the respective facilities are non-recourse to
Reliant Resources.

Liberty Credit Agreement. In July 2000, Liberty Electric Power, LLC (LEP)
and Liberty Electric PA, LLC (Liberty), indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of
Orion Power, entered into a facility that provides for (a) a construction/term
loan in an amount of up to $105 million; (b) an institutional term loan in an
amount of up to $165 million; (c) a revolving working capital facility for an
amount of up to $5 million; and (d) a debt service reserve letter of credit
facility of $17 million. The outstanding borrowings related to the Liberty
credit agreement are non-recourse to Reliant Resources.

In May 2002, the construction loans were converted to term loans. As of the
conversion date, the term loans had an outstanding principal balance of $270
million, with $105 million having a final maturity in 2012 and the balance
having maturities through 2026. On the conversion date, Orion Power made the
required cash equity contribution of $30 million into Liberty, which was used
to repay a like amount of equity bridge loans advanced by the lenders. A
related $41 million letter of credit furnished by Orion Power as credit support
was returned for cancellation. In addition, on the conversion date, a $17
million letter of credit was issued in satisfaction of Liberty's obligation to
provide a debt service reserve. The facility also provides for a $5 million
working capital line of credit. The debt service reserve letter of credit
facility and the working capital facility expire in May 2007.
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As of December 31, 2002, amounts outstanding under the Liberty credit
agreement bear interest at a floating rate, which may be either LIBOR plus

1.25% or a base rate plus 0.25%, except for the institutional term loan which
bears interest at a fixed rate of 9.02%. For the floating rate term loan, the
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LIBOR margin is 1.25% during the first 36 months from the conversion date,
1.375% during the next 36 months and 1.625% thereafter. The base rate margin is
0.25% during the first 36 months from the conversion date, 0.375% during the
next 36 months and 0.625% thereafter. The LIBOR margin for the revolving
working capital facility is 1.25% during the first 36 months from the
conversion date and 1.375% thereafter. The base rate margin is 0.25% during the
first 36 months from the conversion date and 0.375% thereafter. As of December
31, 2002, Liberty had $103 million and $165 million of the floating rate and
fixed rate portions of the facility outstanding, respectively. A $17 million
letter of credit was also outstanding under the Liberty credit agreement.

The lenders under the Liberty credit agreement have a security interest in
substantially all of the assets of Liberty. The Liberty credit agreement
contains affirmative and negative covenants, including a negative pledge, that
must be met to borrow funds or obtain letters of credit. Liberty is currently
unable to access the working capital facility (see note 14(1l)). Additionally,
the Liberty credit agreement restricts Liberty's ability to, among other
things, make dividend distributions unless Liberty satisfies wvarious
conditions. As of December 31, 2002, restricted cash under the Liberty credit
agreement totaled $27 million.

For additional information regarding the Liberty credit agreement related
issues and concerns, see note 14(1l). Given that we believe that it is probable
that a default will occur and thus make the obligation callable before December
31, 2003, we have classified the debt as a current liability.

Reliant Energy Channelview L.P. In 1999, a special purpose project
subsidiary of Reliant Energy Power Generation, Inc. (REPG), Reliant Energy
Channelview L.P., entered into a $475 million syndicated credit facility to
finance the construction and start-up operations of an electric power
generation plant located in Channelview, Texas. The maximum availability under
this facility was (a) $92 million in equity bridge loans for the purpose of
paying or reimbursing project costs, (b) $369 million in loans to finance the
construction of the project and (c) $14 million in revolving loans for general
working capital purposes.

As of December 31, 2001, the project subsidiary had drawn $389 million in
equity bridge and construction loans. In November 2002, the construction loans
were converted to term loans. On the conversion date, subsidiaries of REPG
contributed cash equity and subordinated debt of $92 million into Channelview,
which was used to repay a like amount of equity bridge loans advanced by the
lenders. As of December 31, 2002, Channelview had $368 million and $5 million
of term loans and revolving working capital facility loans outstanding,
respectively. The outstanding borrowings related to the Channelview credit
agreement are non-recourse to Reliant Resources. The term loans have final
maturities ranging from 2017 to 2024. The revolving working capital facility
matures in 2007.

As of December 31, 2002, with the exception of two tranches which total $91
million, the term loans and revolving working capital facility loans bear a
floating rate interest at the borrower's option of either (a) a base rate of
prime plus a margin of 0.25% or (b) LIBOR plus a margin of 1.25%. For $252
million of the term loans and the working capital facility loans, the LIBOR
margin is 1.25% during the first 60 months from the conversion date, 1.45%
during the next 48 months, 1.75% during the following 48 months and 2.125%
thereafter. The base rate margin is 0.25% during the first 60 months from the
conversion date, 0.45% during the next 48 months, 0.75% during the following 48
months and 1.125% thereafter. For $30 million of the term loans, the LIBOR
margin is 1.25% during the first 60 months from the conversion date, 1.45%
during the next 48 months, 1.875% during the following 48 months and 2.25%
thereafter. The base rate margin is 0.25% during the first 60
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months from the conversion date, 0.45% during the next 48 months, 0.875% during
the following 48 months and 1.25% thereafter. One tranche of $16 million bears
a floating rate interest at the borrower's option of either (a) a base rate
plus a margin of 2.407% or (b) LIBOR plus a margin of 3.407% throughout its
term. A second tranche of $75 million bears interest at a fixed rate of 9.547%
throughout its term.

Obligations under the term loans and revolving working capital facility are
secured by substantially all of the assets of the borrower. The Channelview
credit agreement contains affirmative and negative covenants, including a
negative pledge, that must be met to borrow funds. These covenants are not
anticipated to materially restrict Channelview's ability to borrow funds under
the credit facility. Additionally, the Channelview credit agreement allows
Channelview to pay dividends or make restricted payments only if specified
conditions are satisfied, including maintaining specified debt service coverage
ratios and debt service reserve account balances. As of December 31, 2002,
restricted cash under the credit agreement totaled $13 million.

REMA Letter of Credit Facilities. REMA's lease obligations are currently
supported by three letters of credit issued under three separate unsecured
letter of credit facilities. See note 14 (a) for a discussion of REMA's lease
obligations. The letter of credit facilities expire in August 2003. The amount
of each letter of credit is equal to an amount representing the greater of (a)
the next six months' scheduled rental payments under the related lease, or (b)
50% of the scheduled rental payments due in the next twelve months under the
related lease. Under the letter of credit facilities, REMA pays a fee based on
its assigned credit rating. As of December 31, 2002, the fee equaled 2.75% of
the total amount of the outstanding letters of credit. As of December 31, 2001
and 2002, there were $73 and $38 million, respectively, in letters of credit
outstanding under the facilities. While borrowings under the letter of credit
facilities are non-recourse to Reliant Resources, the guarantee issued by
REMA's subsidiaries relating to the lease obligations also covers REMA's
obligations under these facilities. REMA anticipates refinancing or replacing
the letter of credit facilities prior to their maturity. REMA anticipates that
the terms may be more restrictive and may include higher fees.

Reliant Energy Capital (Europe), Inc. In February 2000, one of our
subsidiaries, Reliant Energy Capital (Europe), Inc., established a Euro 600
million term loan facility ($630 million assuming the December 31, 2002
exchange rate of 1.0492 U.S. dollar per Euro) that was to terminate in March
2003. The facility bears interest at the inter-bank offered rate for Euros
(EURIBOR) plus 1.25%. At December 31, 2001 and 2002, $534 million and $630
million, respectively, under this facility was outstanding. This facility is
secured by a pledge of the shares of REPGB's indirect holding company.
Borrowings under this facility are non-recourse to Reliant Resources. This
facility contains affirmative and negative covenants, including a negative
pledge, and a requirement for Reliant Energy Capital (Europe), Inc. to, among
other things, maintain a ratio of net balance sheet debt to the sum of net
balance sheet debt and total equity of 0.60 to 1.00. In March 2003, we extended
the maturity of this facility (see notes 21 (b) and 21(c)).

REPGB 364-day Revolver and REPGB Letter of Credit Facility. In July 2000,
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REPGB entered into two unsecured credit facilities, which included (a) a
364-day revolving credit facility for Euro 250 million, which was initially
extended one year in July 2001 and (b) a three-year letter of credit facility
for $420 million. These credit facilities will be used by REPGB for working
capital purposes and to support REPGB's contingent obligations under its cross
border leases (see note 14(d)). Under the two facilities, there is no recourse
to Reliant Resources.

During July 2002, REPGB renewed its 364-day revolving credit facility for
another year. The term of this facility is now scheduled to expire in July
2003. The amount of the revolving credit facility was reduced from Euro 250
million (approximately $262 million) to Euro 184 million (approximately $194
million). An option was added that permits REPGB to utilize up to Euro 100
million (approximately $105 million) of the facility for
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letters of credit. The 364-day revolving credit facility bears interest at
EURIBOR plus a margin depending on REPGB's credit rating. The EURIBOR margin as
of December 31, 2002 was 2.00%. At December 31, 2001 and 2002, borrowings of
$155 million and $0, respectively, were outstanding under this facility. At
December 31, 2001 and 2002, there were $0 and $18 million, respectively, of
letters of credit outstanding under the 364-day revolving credit facility. At
December 31, 2001 and 2002, under the $420 million letter of credit facility,
letters of credit of $272 million and $355 million, respectively, were
outstanding under the facility. These facilities contain affirmative and
negative covenants, including a negative pledge, that must be met by REPGB to
borrow funds or obtain letters of credit and that require REPGB to, among other
things, maintain a ratio of net balance sheet debt to the sum of net balance
sheet debt and total equity of 0.60 to 1.00. These covenants are not
anticipated to materially restrict REPGB from borrowing funds or obtaining
letters of credit, as applicable, under these facilities. If the sale of our
European energy operations (see note 21 (b)) does not close prior to the
maturity of these facilities, REPGB anticipates extending these credit
facilities.

(b) Other Short-term Debt.

As of December 31, 2001, we, through REPGB, had $50 million of short-term
borrowings arranged via brokers or directly from financial institutions. These
borrowings were used by REPGB to meet its short-term liquidity needs.

(c) Other Long-term Debt.

Orion Convertible Senior Notes. As of the acquisition date, Orion Power had
outstanding $200 million of aggregate principal amount of 4.5% convertible
senior notes, due on June 1, 2008. Pursuant to certain change of control
provisions, Orion Power commenced an offer to repurchase the convertible senior
notes on March 1, 2002, which expired on April 10, 2002. During the second
quarter of 2002, we repurchased $189 million in principal amount under the
offer to repurchase. During the fourth quarter of 2002, the remaining $11
million aggregate principal amount of the convertible senior notes were
repurchased for $8 million.
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Orion Power Senior Notes. Orion Power has outstanding $400 million
aggregate principal amount of 12% senior notes due 2010. The senior notes are
senior unsecured obligations of Orion Power. Orion Power is not required to
make any mandatory redemption or sinking fund payments with respect to the
senior notes. The senior notes are not guaranteed by any of Orion Power's
subsidiaries and are non-recourse to Reliant Resources. In connection with the
Orion Power acquisition, we recorded the senior notes at an estimated fair
value of $479 million. The $79 million premium is amortized against interest
expense over the life of the senior notes. For the period February 20, 2002 to
December 31, 2002, $5 million was amortized to interest expense for the senior
notes. The fair value of the senior notes was based on our incremental
borrowing rates for similar types of borrowing arrangements as of the
acquisition date. The senior notes indenture contains covenants that include,
among others, restrictions on the payment of dividends by Orion Power.

Pursuant to certain change of control provisions, Orion Power commenced an
offer to repurchase the senior notes on March 21, 2002. The offer to repurchase
expired on April 18, 2002. There were no acceptances of the offer to repurchase
and the entire $400 million aggregate principal amount remains outstanding.
Before May 1, 2003, Orion Power may redeem up to 35% of the senior notes issued
under the indenture at a redemption price of 112% of the principal amount of
the notes redeemed, plus accrued and unpaid interest and special interest, with
the net cash proceeds of an equity offering provided that certain provisions
under the indenture are met.

European Energy. Outstanding long-term indebtedness of REPGB of $61 million
and $38 million at December 31, 2001 and 2002, respectively, consisted
primarily of medium term notes and loans maturing
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through 2006. This debt is unsecured and non-recourse to Reliant Resources.
Some covenants under these loans restrict some actions by REPGB. During the
second quarter of 2000, REPGB negotiated the repurchase of $272 million
aggregate principal amount of its long-term debt for a total cost of $286
million, including $14 million in expenses. The book value of the debt
repurchased was $293 million, resulting in an extraordinary gain on the early
extinguishment of long-term debt of $7 million. Borrowings under a short-term
banking facility and proceeds from the sale of trading securities by REPGB were
used to finance the debt repurchase.

(d) Interest-rate Swaps.

Certain of our subsidiaries are party to interest rate swap contracts with
an aggregate notional amount of $200 million and $1.1 billion as of December
31, 2001 and 2002, respectively, that fix the interest rate applicable to
floating rate long-term debt. As of December 31, 2002, floating rate
LIBOR-based interest payments are exchanged for weighted fixed rate interest
payments of 6.97%. These swaps qualify for hedge accounting as cash flow hedges
under SFAS No. 133 and the periodic settlements are recognized as an adjustment
to interest expense in the statements of consolidated operations over the term
of the swap agreements. See note 7 for further discussion of our cash flow
hedges.
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In January 2002, we entered into forward-starting interest rate swaps having
an aggregate notional amount of $1.0 billion to hedge the interest rate on a
portion of future offerings of long-term fixed-rate notes. On May 9, 2002, we
liquidated $500 million of these forward-starting interest rate swaps. The
liquidation of these swaps resulted in a loss of $3 million, which was recorded
in accumulated other comprehensive loss and will be amortized into interest
expense in the same period during which the forecasted interest payment affects
earnings. In November 2002, we liquidated the remaining $500 million of swaps
at a loss of $52 million that was recorded in accumulated other comprehensive
loss and will be amortized into interest expense in the same period during
which the forecasted interest payment affects earnings. For 2002, we recognized
$16 million as interest expense relating to the reclassification of the
deferred components in accumulated other comprehensive loss for forecasted
interest payments that were probable of not occurring. Should other forecasted
interest payments become probable of not occurring, any applicable deferred
amounts will be recognized immediately as an expense. At December 31, 2002, the
unamortized balance of such loss was $39 million.

(10) STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
(a) Initial Public Offering.

In May 2001, Reliant Resources offered 59.8 million shares of its common
stock to the public at an IPO price of $30 per share and received net proceeds
from the IPO of $1.7 billion. Pursuant to the terms of the Master Separation
Agreement, we used $147 million of the net proceeds to repay certain
indebtedness owed to CenterPoint. We used the remainder of the net proceeds of
our IPO for repayment of third party borrowings, capital expenditures,
repurchases of our common stock and payment of taxes, interest and other
payables.

(b) Treasury Stock Purchases.

In July 2001, our board of directors authorized us to purchase up to one
million shares of our common stock in anticipation of funding benefit plan
obligations expected to be funded prior to the Distribution. On September 18,
2001, our board of directors authorized us to purchase up to 10 million
additional shares of our common stock through February 2003. During 2001, we
purchased 11 million shares of our common stock at an average price of $17.22
per share, or an aggregate purchase price of $189 million. The 11 million
shares in
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treasury stock purchases increased CenterPoint's percentage ownership in us
from approximately 80% to approximately 83%. CenterPoint recorded the
acquisition of treasury shares under the purchase method of accounting and
pushed down the effect to us. As such, we recorded a decrease in property,
plant and equipment of $67 million and an increase in accumulated deferred
income tax assets of $24 million related to REPGB and a decrease in additional
paid-in capital of $43 million.

On December 6, 2001, our board of directors authorized us to purchase up to
an additional 10 million shares of our common stock through June 2003. Any
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purchases will be made on a discretionary basis in the open market or otherwise
at times and in amounts as determined by management subject to market
conditions, legal requirements and other factors. Since the date of
authorization, we have not purchased any shares of our common stock under this
program. Based on the refinancing of certain credit facilities in March 2003,
we are restricted from purchasing treasury stock, see note 21(a).

(c) Treasury Stock Issuances and Transfers.

We did not issue or transfer any treasury stock during 2001. During 2002, we
issued 1,326,843 shares of treasury stock to employees under our employee stock
purchase plan. In addition, during 2002, we transferred 308,936 shares of
treasury stock to our employee savings plan and issued 165,455 shares of
treasury stock to fund a portion of our restricted stock awards. See note 12 (a)
for further discussion.

(11) EARNINGS PER SHARE
The following table presents Reliant Resources' basic and diluted earnings

(loss) per share (EPS) calculation for 2001 and 2002. There were no dilutive
reconciling items to net income (loss).

Year Ended
December 31,

(shares in thousands)

Diluted Weighted Average Shares Calculation:

Weighted average shares outstanding.............ccciiiieeeennnn.. 277,144 289,953
Plus: Incremental shares from assumed conversions:
SEOCK OPLIONS . ittt e e e e e e e e e e 2 -
Restricted StoCK. ...ttt ittt et et e et eeeeeenn 244 -
Employee stock purchase plan..........ouiiiieeeennnnnnens 83 -
Weighted average shares assuming dilution................... 277,473 289,953

Basic and Diluted EPS:

Income (loss) before cumulative effect of accounting change. $ 2.02 S (1.12)
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax.......... 0.01 (0.81)
Net 1NCOME (L10SS) v v ittt ittt ettt ettt et ettt eeeeneeeneenes S 2.03 S (1.93)

For 2001, the computation of diluted EPS excludes purchase options for
8,528,098 shares of common stock that have an exercise price (ranging from
$23.20 to $34.03) greater than the per share average market price ($22.11) for
the period and would thus be anti-dilutive if exercised.

For 2002, as we incurred a loss from continuing operations, we do not assume
any potentially dilutive shares in the computation of diluted EPS. The

computation of diluted EPS excludes incremental shares from assumed
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conversions for stock options of 273,921 shares, restricted stock of 1,120,865
shares, and employee stock purchase plan rights of 132,580 shares for 2002.
These incremental shares from assumed conversions exclude purchase options for
15,875,183 shares of common stock that have an exercise price (ranging from
$8.50 to $34.03) greater than the per share average market price ($8.15) for
the period and would thus be anti-dilutive if exercised.

Prior to August 9, 2000, Reliant Resources, Inc. was not a separate legal
entity and therefore had no historical capital structure. Accordingly, earnings
per share have not been presented for 2000.

Reliant Resources' Certificate of Incorporation was amended to affect a
240,000 to 1 stock split of our common stock on January 5, 2001.

(12) STOCK-BASED INCENTIVE COMPENSATION PLANS AND RETIREMENT PLANS
(a) Stock-Based Incentive Compensation Plans.

At December 31, 2002, our eligible employees participate in four incentive
plans described below.

The Long-Term Incentive Plan of Reliant Resources, Inc. (2001 LTIP) and
Reliant Resources, Inc. 2002 Long-Term Incentive Plan (2002 LTIP) permit us to
grant awards (stock options, restricted stock, stock appreciation rights,
performance awards and cash awards) to all of our employees, non-employee
directors and other eligible individuals. Subject to adjustment as provided in
each plan, the aggregate number of shares of our common stock that may be
issued under each plan may not exceed 16,000,000 shares and 17,500,000 shares,
respectively. Upon the adoption of the 2002 LTIP plan, the shares remaining
available for grant under the 2001 LTIP, totaling approximately 3.5 million,
were effectively cancelled and considered in determining the authorized shares
available for grant under the 2002 LTIP.

The Reliant Resources, Inc. 2002 Stock Plan (2002 Stock Plan) permits us to
grant awards (stock options, restricted stock, stock appreciation rights,
performance awards and cash awards) to all of our employees (excluding
officers). The shares available for grant are based on the 6,000,000 shares
authorized upon adoption of the 2002 Stock Plan plus an additional number of
shares to be added to the plan on January 1/st/ of each year, adjusted for new
grants, exercises, forfeitures, cancellations and terminations of outstanding
awards under the plan throughout the year.

Prior to the IPO, eligible employees participated in a CenterPoint Long-Term
Incentive Compensation Plan and other incentive compensation plans
(collectively, the CenterPoint Plans) that provided for the issuance of
stock-based incentives including performance-based shares, restricted shares,
stock options and stock appreciation rights, to key employees including
officers. The Reliant Resources, Inc. Transition Stock Plan (Transition Plan)
was adopted to govern the outstanding restricted shares and options of
CenterPoint common stock held by our employees prior to the Distribution date,
under the CenterPoint Plans. There were 9,100,000 shares authorized under the
Transition Plan and as of December 31, 2002, no additional shares will be
issued.

In addition, in conjunction with the Distribution, we entered into an

employee matters agreement with CenterPoint. This agreement covered the
treatment of outstanding CenterPoint equity awards (including performance-based
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shares, restricted shares and stock options) under the CenterPoint Plans held
by our employees and CenterPoint employees. According to the agreement, each
CenterPoint equity award granted to our employees and CenterPoint employees
prior to the agreed upon date of May 4, 2001, that was outstanding
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under the CenterPoint Plans as of the Distribution date, was adjusted. This
adjustment resulted in each individual, who was a holder of a CenterPoint
equity award, receiving an adjusted equity award of our common stock and
CenterPoint common stock, immediately after the Distribution. The combined
intrinsic value of the adjusted CenterPoint equity awards and our equity
awards, immediately after the record date of the Distribution, was equal to the
intrinsic value of the CenterPoint equity awards immediately before the record
date of the Distribution.

Performance-based Shares and Restricted Shares. Performance-based shares
and restricted shares have been granted to employees without cost to the
participants. The performance-based shares generally vest three years after the
grant date based upon performance objectives over a three-year cycle, except as
discussed below. The restricted shares vest to the participants at various
times ranging from immediate vesting to vesting at the end of a five-year
period. During 2000, 2001 and 2002, we recorded compensation expense of $6.7
million, $8.2 million and $3.6 million, respectively, related to
performance-based and restricted share grants.

Prior to the Distribution, our employees and CenterPoint employees held
outstanding performance-based shares and restricted shares of CenterPoint's
common stock under the CenterPoint Plans. On the Distribution date, each
performance-based share of CenterPoint common stock outstanding under the
CenterPoint Plans, for the performance cycle ending December 31, 2002, was
converted to restricted shares of CenterPoint's common stock based on a
conversion ratio provided under the employee matters agreement. Immediately
following this conversion, outstanding restricted shares of CenterPoint common
stock were converted to restricted shares of our common stock, which shares
were subject to their original vesting schedule under the CenterPoint Plans.
The conversion ratio was determined using the intrinsic value approach
described above. As such, our employees and CenterPoint's employees held
302,306 and 87,875 restricted shares, respectively, outstanding under
CenterPoint Plans which were converted to 238,457 and 69,334 restricted shares,
respectively, of our common stock, of which a majority vested on December 31,
2002.

The following table summarizes Reliant Resources' performance-based shares
and restricted shares grant activity for 2001 and 2002:

Performance-based Restric
Shares Share

Outstanding at December 31, 2000. .. ..ttt ittt eeeeeeeeeenneeeeeeens -
(a7 o B o =T 693,135 156, 6
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Outstanding at December 31, 2001 ... .. ittt tineeeeeeeeneneeeeens 693,135 156, 6
(a7 o B o =T 754,182 671, 8
Shares relating to conversion of CenterPoint's restricted shares at
Il T 1 i X AR —— 307, 7
Released to participants. ...ttt ittt ettt e ee et eaeeeeeeeenn - (253,0
CanCeled. v v ittt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e (361,785) (127, 9
Outstanding at December 31, 2002. ... . ittt ittt teneeeeeeeenneeeeneens 1,085,532 755, 2
Weighted average grant date fair value of shares granted for 2001...... $ 30.00 S 33.
Weighted average grant date fair value of shares granted for 2002...... $ 10.59 S 9.
Stock Options. Under both CenterPoint's and our plans, stock options
generally vest over a three-year period and expire after ten years from the
date of grant. The exercise price is based on the fair market value of the
applicable common stock on the grant date.
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As of the record date of the Distribution, CenterPoint converted all
outstanding CenterPoint stock options granted prior to May 4, 2001 (totaling
7,761,960 stock options) to a combination of CenterPoint stock options totaling
7,761,960 stock options at a weighted average exercise price of $17.84 and
Reliant Resources stock options totaling 6,121,105 stock options with a
weighted-average exercise price of $8.59. The conversion ratio was determined
using an intrinsic value approach as described above.
The following table summarizes Reliant Resources stock option activity for
2001 and 2002:
Wei
Ave
Exe
Options Pr
Outstanding at December 31, 2000. ...ttt in ettt tneeeeeeeeoeeeeeeeeeaeeeeeneens -
€= o i =Y 8,826,432 $2
[O=15'a X7 =20 X =Y (245, 830) 2
Outstanding at December 31, 2001 . ... ittt ittt it ettt eeaeeeeeeeeeaeeeeeneens 8,580,602 2
[ o= 5's it Y 7,141,267 1
Options relating to conversion of CenterPoint's stock options at Distribution. 6,121,105
[O=15'a X7 =20 X =Y (2,674,238) 2
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Outstanding at December 31, 2002. ... ittt ittt tteeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaneeeeneens 19,168,736 1
Options exercisable at December 31, 2001 . ... ..ttt iiit e eeeeeeeeeeaneeeeneens 6,500 3
Options exercisable at December 31, 2002. .. ..ttt iiiii ittt eeeeeeeeeaneeeeneens 8,232,294 1

The following table summarizes, with respect to Reliant Resources, the range
of exercise prices and the weighted-average remaining contractual life of the
options outstanding and the range of exercise prices for the options
exercisable at December 31, 2002:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted-

Weighted- Average Weighted

Average Remaining Average

Options Exercise Contractual Options Exercise

Outstanding Price Life (Years) Outstanding Price

Ranges of Exercise Prices Exercisable at:

$ 1.83-S10.00. .. i 5,607,360 $ 7.84 6.1 4,276,541 $ 8.26
$10.01-820.00. .. i it 6,636,731 11.19 8.3 1,136,293 11.66
$20.01-834.03. . ittt e 6,924,645 29.95 7.5 2,819,460 29.95

Total. .t i i 19,168,736 16.99 7.4 8,232,294 16.16

Of the outstanding and exercisable stock options as of December 31, 2002,
17,438,954 and 6,931,212, respectively, relate to our employees. The remainder
of outstanding and exercisable stock options as of December 31, 2002, primarily
relate to employees of CenterPoint.
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Exercise prices for CenterPoint stock options outstanding and held by our
employees ranged from $12.87 to $36.25. The following table provides

information with respect to outstanding and exercisable CenterPoint stock
options held by our employees at December 31, 2001 and 2002:

December 31, 2001 December 31, 2002

Weighted- Weighted-

Average Average

Exercise Exercise
Options Price Options Price
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Outstanding 5,886,119 $24.81 5,449,021 $18.05

Exercisable 2,683,755 25.62 4,535,211 18.28

Employee Stock Purchase Plan. In the second quarter 2001, we established
the Reliant Resources, Inc. Employee Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP) under which we
are authorized to sell up to 3,000,000 shares of our common stock to our
employees. Under the ESPP, employees may contribute up to 15% of their
compensation, as defined, towards the purchase of shares of our common stock at
a price of 85% of the lower of the market value at the beginning of the
offering period or end of each six-month offering period. The initial purchase
period began on the date of the IPO and ended December 31, 2001. The market
value of the shares acquired in any year may not exceed $25,000 per individual.
Under the ESPP, 550,781 shares, 776,062 shares and 717,931 shares of our common
stock were sold to employees at a price of $14.07, $7.44 and $2.66 per share
related to the January 2002, July 2002 and January 2003 purchase, respectively.

Pro Forma Effect on Net Income (Loss). In accordance with SFAS No. 123, we
apply the intrinsic value method contained in APB No. 25 and disclose the
required pro forma effect on net income (loss) and earnings (loss) per share as
if the fair value method of accounting for stock compensation was used. The
weighted average grant date fair value for an option to purchase our common
stock granted during 2001 and 2002 was $13.35 and $5.09, respectively. The
weighted average grant date fair value of a purchase right issued under our
ESPP during 2001 and 2002 was $9.24 and $4.51, respectively. The weighted
average grant date fair value for an option to purchase CenterPoint common
stock granted during 2000 and 2001 was $5.07 and $9.25, respectively. The fair
values were estimated using the Black-Scholes option valuation model with the
following weighted-average assumptions:

Reliant Resources
Stock Options

2001 2002
Expected life in years........ 5 5
Risk-free interest rate....... 4.94% 4.43%
Estimated volatility.......... 42.65% 46.99%
Expected common stock dividend % %

Reliant Resources
Purchase Rights
under ESPP

2001 2002
Expected life in months....... 8 6
Risk-free interest rate....... 3.92% 1.89%
Estimated volatility.......... 46.48% 71.32%
Expected common stock dividend % %
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CenterPoint
Stock Options

2000 2001
Expected life in yvears.......oiiiiiiiiiiinnnnnn. 5 5
Risk-free interest rate......... .. 6.57% 4.87%
Estimated volatility of CenterPoint common stock 24.00% 31.91%
Expected common stock dividend.................. 3.46% 5.75%

The Black-Scholes option valuation model was developed for use in estimating
the fair value of traded options, which have no vesting restrictions and are
fully transferable. In addition, option valuation models require the input of
highly subjective assumptions including the expected stock price volatility.
Because our employee stock options and purchase rights have characteristics
significantly different from those of traded options, and because changes in
the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate,
in our opinion, the existing models do not necessarily provide a reliable
single measure of the fair value of our employee stock options and purchase
rights.

For the pro forma computation of net income (loss) and earnings (loss) per
share as if the fair value method of accounting had been applied to all stock
awards, see note 2 (h).

(b) Pension.

We sponsor multiple noncontributory defined benefit pension plans covering
certain union and non-union employees. Depending on the plan, the benefit
payment is either based on years of service with final average salary and
covered compensation, or in the form of a cash balance account which grows
based on a percentage of annual compensation and accrued interest.

Prior to March 1, 2001, we participated in CenterPoint's noncontributory
cash balance pension plan. Effective March 1, 2001, we no longer accrued
benefits under this noncontributory pension plan for our domestic non-union
employees (Resources Participants). Effective March 1, 2001, each Resources
Participant's unvested pension account balance became fully vested and a
one-time benefit enhancement was provided to some qualifying participants.
During the first quarter of 2001, we incurred a charge to earnings of $83
million (pre-tax) for a one-time benefit enhancement and a gain of $23 million
(pre-tax) related to the curtailment of CenterPoint's pension plan. In
connection with the Distribution, we incurred a loss of $65 million (pre-tax)
related to the accounting settlement of the pension obligation. In connection
with recording the accounting settlement, CenterPoint contributed certain
benefit plan deferred losses, net of taxes, totaling $18 million that were
deemed to be associated with our benefit obligation. Upon the Distribution, we
effectively transferred to CenterPoint our pension obligation. After the
Distribution, each Resources Participant may elect to have his accrued benefit
(a) left in the CenterPoint pension plan for which CenterPoint is the plan
sponsor, (b) rolled over to our savings plan or an individual retirement
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account, or (c) paid in a lump-sum or annuity distribution.

Our funding policy is to review amounts annually in accordance with
applicable regulations in order to achieve adequate funding of projected
benefit obligations. The assets of the pension plans consist principally of
short-term investments, common stocks and high-quality, interest-bearing
obligations.

REPGB is a foreign subsidiary and participates along with other companies in
the Netherlands in making payments to pension funds, which are not administered
by us. We treat these as a defined contribution pension plan which provides

retirement benefits for most of our REPGB employees. The contributions are
principally

RELTIANT RESOURCES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-- (Continued)
For the Three Years Ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002
based on a percentage of the employee's base compensation and charged against
income as incurred. This expense was $6 million, $6 million and $5 million for

2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively.

Net pension cost (excluding REPGB) includes the following components:

Year Ended December 31,

Service cost--benefits earned during the period $ 3.6 $ 3.5 $ 6.4
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation.. 2.1 8.2 10.1
Expected return on plan assets............c.v... (3.3) (11.9) (12.9)
Curtailment and benefits enhancements.......... - 44.9 0.6
Accounting settlement charge................... - - 64.9
Net amortization.....u. ittt te e (0.3) 0.6 0.1
Net pension COStL.vvi it ettt ieeeennnaneens $ 2.1 $ 45.3 $ 69.2
The significant weighted-average assumptions include the following:
Year Ended December 31,
2000 2001 2002
Discount rate...... ..o, 7.5% 7.25% 6.75%
Rate of increase in compensation levels.... 3.5-5.5% 3.5-5.5% 4.0-4.5%
Expected long-term rate of return on assets 10.0% 9.5% 8.5%
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Following are reconciliations of our beginning and ending balances of our
retirement plans' benefit obligation, plans' assets and funded status for 2001

and 2002 (excluding REPGB). The prepaid pension asset as of December 31, 2001
was primarily recorded in other long-term assets.

Year Ended
December 31,

(in millions)

Change in Benefit Obligation

Benefit obligation, beginning of year........ $ 28.7 $ 137.6
SErVICE COST it ittt it ittt et et ettt e 3.5 6.4
Interest COSt ...ttt ittt ittt et 8.2 10.1
Curtailments and benefits enhancement........ 55.8 0.6
Transfers from affiliates.................... 35.4 (125.7)
ACUisitions. ..ttt e e e e e - 39.8
Benefits paid. ... .ottt —= (6.2)
Plan amendment S. . vt i i i i e et enneeeeeeeannnn - 2.0
ACtuUarial 10SS . iiii ettt ettt 6.0 7.9
Benefit obligation, end of year.......... $137.6 $ 72.5
Change in Plans Assets
Plans assets, beginning of year.............. $ 27.3 $ 152.8
Transfers/allocations from affiliates........ 124.8 (147.0)
Employer contributions............... .. ... 0.7 7.8
Benefits paid. ... .ottt —= (6.2)
ACUisSitions. ..ttt e e e e e - 20.9
Actual investment return..................... - 1.2
Plans assets, end of year........cc...... $152.8 $ 29.5
Reconciliation of Funded Status
Funded StatUsS .. uueve ettt eeeeeeneenneeneen $ 15.2 $ (43.0)
Unrecognized transition asset................ (0.2)
Unrecognized prior service cost.............. - 2.0
Unrecognized actuarial 10SS.....cuoeieeeeennnn. 14.8 18.2
Net amount recognized at end of year..... $ 29.8 $ (22.8)

As all distributions from the CenterPoint noncontributory plan to Resources
Participants after the Distribution will be made from CenterPoint plan assets,
actual investment returns on those plan assets above or below expected returns
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on those plan assets are included in "transfers/allocations from affiliates" in
the above reconciliation in 2001.

The projected benefit obligation, accumulated benefit obligation, and fair
value of plan assets for the pension plans with accumulated benefit obligations
in excess of plan assets were $70.9 million, $48.7 million and $28.0 million,
respectively, as of December 31, 2002. The projected benefit obligation,
accumulated benefit obligation, and fair value of plan assets for one of our
pension plans, which had accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan
assets as of December 31, 2001, was $6.6 million, $4.7 million and $1.7
million, respectively.

The actuarial loss during 2002 was primarily due to the decrease in the
economic assumptions used to value the benefit obligations as well as discount
rate and changes in demographics of the participants.
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Prior to the Distribution, we participated in CenterPoint's non-qualified
pension plan which allowed participants to retain the benefits to which they
would have been entitled under CenterPoint's qualified noncontributory pension
plan except for the federally mandated limits on these benefits or on the level
of salary on which these benefits may be calculated. Effective March 1, 2001,
we no longer provide future non-qualified pension benefits to our employees. In
connection with the Distribution, we assumed CenterPoint's obligation under the
non-qualified pension plan. The expense associated with this non-qualified plan
was $0.2 million, $2 million and $3 million in 2000, 2001 and 2002,
respectively. The accrued benefit liability for the non-qualified pension plan
was $30 million and $19 million as of December 31, 2001 and 2002, respectively.
In addition, the accrued benefit liabilities as of December 31, 2001 and 2002
include the recognition of minimum liability adjustments of $11 million and $4
million, respectively, which is reported as a component of comprehensive income
(loss), net of income tax effects. After the Distribution, participants in the
non-qualified pension plan were given the opportunity to elect to receive
distributions or have their account balance funded into a rabbi trust.
Accordingly, $14 million of the non-qualified pension plan account balances
were transferred to the rabbi trust, as discussed below.

(c) Savings Plan.

We have employee savings plans that are tax—qualified plans under Section
401 (a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (Code), and include a
cash or deferred arrangement under Section 401 (k) of the Code for substantially
all our employees except for our foreign subsidiaries' employees. Prior to
February 1, 2002, our non-union employees, except for REMA non-union employees
and our foreign subsidiaries' employees, participated in CenterPoint's employee
savings plan that is a tax qualified plan under Section 401 (a) of the Code, and
included a cash or deferred arrangement under Section 401 (k) of the Code.

Under the various plans, participating employees may contribute a portion of
their compensation, pre-tax or after-tax, generally up to a maximum of 16% of
compensation with the exception of the Orion Power savings plan which
contributions are generally up to a maximum of 18% of compensation. Our savings
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plans match and any payroll period discretionary employer contribution will be
made in cash; any discretionary annual employer contribution, as applicable,
may be made in our common stock, cash or both. All prior and future employer
contributions on behalf of such employees are fully vested, except some of
Orion Power employees' employer matching contributions, which may be subject to
a vesting schedule, and except some union employees as defined in their
collective bargaining agreement. Through March 1, 2001, a substantial portion
of CenterPoint's employee savings plan match was made in CenterPoint common
stock.

Our savings plans benefit expense was $6 million, $20 million and $24
million in 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively.

(d) Postretirement Benefits.

Effective March 1, 2001, we discontinued providing subsidized postretirement
benefits to our domestic non-union employees. We incurred a pre-tax loss of $40
million during the first quarter of 2001 related to the curtailment of our
postretirement obligation. In connection with the Distribution, we incurred a
pre-tax gain of $18 million related to the accounting settlement of
postretirement benefit obligations. Prior to March 1, 2001, through a
CenterPoint subsidized postretirement plan, we provided some postretirement
benefits for substantially all of our retired employees. We continue to provide
subsidized postretirement benefits to certain union employees and Orion Power
employees. REPGB provides some postretirement benefits (primarily medical care
and life insurance benefits) for its retired employees, substantially all of
who may become eligible for these benefits when they retire. We fund our
portion of the postretirement benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis.
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Net postretirement benefit cost includes the following components:

Year Ended
December 31,

(in millions)

Service cost--benefits earned during the period $1.4 $ 2.0 $ 4.4
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation.. 2.0 2.7 5.1
Curtailment charge...... .t iiieeeeeeennnn -- 39.5 -
Accounting settlement gain........... ... ... - -—  (17.6)
Net amortization.........iuiiiiiiiiiiiinnneen. 0.4 0.1 0.3

Net postretirement benefit cost (benefit)... $3.8 $44.3 $ (7.8)

The significant assumptions include the following:
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Year Ended December 31,

2000 2001 2002
Discount rate........ .. 6.6-7.5% 6.6-7.25% 6.6-6.75%
Rate of increase in compensation levels 2.0% 2.0% 3.5-4.5%

Following are reconciliations of our beginning and ending balances of our
postretirement benefit plans' benefit obligation and funded status for 2001 and
2002:

Year Ended
December 31,

Change in Benefit Obligation

Benefit obligation, beginning of year........ $ 35.0 $ 48.5
Service COSt . vttt ittt ittt et e et e 2.0 4.4
Interest COSt .ttt ittt ittt ee et eeaeenn 2.7 5.1
Benefit payments. . ...ttt (1.4) (1.1)
Transfers from affiliates.................... 9.8 -
ACOUIsSIitionS. . vttt ittt e e e e e - 31.0
Plan amendment S. . v v i i e i ettt eeeeeeeeeennenns - 9.5
Foreign exchange impact................. (2.5) 6.0
Accounting settlement gain................... - (22.2)
Actuarial 10SS ..t iiii ittt 2.9 4.8

Benefit obligation, end of year.......... $ 48.5 $ 86.0

Reconciliation of Funded Status

Funded StatusS . cvu ettt teeteeeneennenn $(48.5) $(86.0)
Unrecognized prior service cost.............. - 9.5
Unrecognized actuarial 10SS....cueiieeeeennnenn. 5.7 6.6

Net amount recognized at end of year..... $(42.8) $(69.9)

In 2001, we assumed health care rate increases of 9.0% that gradually
decline to 5.5% by 2010. In 2002, we assumed health care rate increases of
12.0% that gradually decline to 5.5% by 2012. The actuarial loss is due to
changes in actuarial assumptions.
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If the health care cost trend rate assumptions were increased by 1%, the
accumulated postretirement benefit obligation as of December 31, 2002 would
increase by approximately 18.2%. The annual effect of the 1% increase on the
total of the service and interest costs would be an increase of approximately
17.1%. If the health care cost trend rate assumptions were decreased by 1%, the
accumulated postretirement benefit obligation as of December 31, 2002 would
decrease by approximately 14.5%. The annual effect of the 1% decrease on the
total of the service and interest costs would be a decrease of 14.1%.

During 2002, the retiree medical benefits for certain union employees were
redesigned to allow for a company-provided subsidy for premium coverage
attributable to qualifying employees. This resulted in a $9.5 million increase
in the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation during 2002.

(e) Postemployment Benefits.

We record postemployment benefits based on SFAS No. 112, "Employer's
Accounting for Postemployment Benefits," which requires the recognition of a
liability for benefits provided to former or inactive employees, their
beneficiaries and covered dependents, after employment but before retirement
(primarily health care and life insurance benefits for participants in the
long-term disability plan). Net postemployment benefit costs were insignificant
for 2000, 2001 and 2002.

(f) Other Non-qualified Plans.

Effective January 1, 2002, select key and highly compensated employees are
eligible to participate in our non-qualified deferred compensation and
restoration plan. The plan allows eligible employees to elect to defer up to
80% of their annual base salary and/or up to 100% of their eligible annual
bonus. In addition, the plan allows participants to retain the benefits which
they would have been entitled to under our qualified savings plans, except for
the federally mandated limits on these benefits or on the level of salary on
which these benefits may be calculated. We fund these deferred compensation and
restoration liabilities by making contributions to a rabbi trust. Plan
participants direct the allocation of their deferrals and restoration benefits
between one or more of our designated investment funds within the rabbi trust.

Through 2001, certain eligible employees participated in CenterPoint's
deferred compensation plans, which permit participants to elect each year to
defer a percentage of that year's salary and up to 100% of that year's annual
bonus. Interest generally accrued on deferrals made in 1989 and subsequent
years at a rate equal to the average Moody's Long-Term Corporate Bond Index
plus 2%, determined annually until termination when the rate is fixed at the
greater of the rate in effect at age 64 or at age 65. Fixed rates of 19% to 24%
were established for deferrals made in 1985 through 1988. We recorded interest
expense related to these deferred compensation obligations of $1 million, $4
million and $2 million in 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively. Each of our
employees that participated in this plan has elected to have his CenterPoint
non—-qualified deferred compensation plan account balance, after the
Distribution: (a) paid in a lump-sum distribution, (b) placed in a new deferred
compensation plan established by us, which generally mirrors the former
CenterPoint deferred compensation plans, or (c) rolled over to our deferred
compensation and restoration plan discussed above.

Our discounted deferred compensation obligation recorded by us was $29
million as of December 31, 2001 related to the CenterPoint deferred
compensation plan. Our discounted deferred compensation obligation related to
the deferred compensation obligation under the plan that mirrors the
CenterPoint plan was $12 million as of December 31, 2002. Our deferred
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compensation and restoration liability related to the deferred compensation and
restoration plan established effective January 1, 2002 (discussed above) was
$23 million and the related investment in the rabbi trust was $23 million as of
December 31, 2002.
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(g) Other Employee Matters.

As of December 31, 2002, approximately 32% of our employees are subject to
collective bargaining arrangements, of which contracts covering 6% of our
employees will expire prior to December 31, 2003.

(13) INCOME TAXES

The components of income (loss) before income taxes, cumulative effect of
accounting change and extraordinary item are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

(in millions)

United States
Foreign

......................................................... $198.5 $729.2 § 215.3
............................................................... 112.6 105.5 (327.4)

Income (loss) before income taxes, cumulative effect of accounting
change and extraordinary d1tem.. ... ...ttt eeeeneeeeeennnnn $311.1 $834.7 $(112.1)

Our current and deferred components of income tax expense (benefit) were as
follows:

Year Ended December 31,

(in millions)

Current
Federal................ $106.5 $240.8 $(74.9)
State. ..t 16.9 3.8 31.9
Foreign................ - (2.7) 2.0
Total current...... 123.4 241.9 (41.0)
Deferred
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Federal......oovvvuunu.. (28.2) 20.8 204.5

State. .ot 0.7 15.7 (4.7)

Foreign................ —— (4.0) 55.3

Total deferred..... (27.5) 32.5 255.1

Income tax expense........ $ 95.9 $274.4 $214.1
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A reconciliation of the federal statutory income tax rate to the effective
income tax rate is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

(in millions)

Income (1loss) before 1nCoOmEe LaAXES .. v e ettt ttteeeeeeeeeneeeens $311.1 $834.7 $(112.1)
Federal statutory rate. ... ...ttt ittt et 35% 35% 35%
Income tax expense at statutory rate............c.iiiiiiiiiii.. 108.9 292.1 (39.2)

Net addition (reduction) in taxes resulting from:
State income taxes, net of valuation allowances and federal

income tax benefit.... ...t e e e e 11.4 12.7 17.7
European energy goodwill impairment.............c.cciiiiie.... - - 168.7
REPGB tax holiday. ...ttt ittt eeeeeeeeeeaaeeeeeeens (37.8) (49.9) (5.1)
Goodwill amortization..... ..ttt e e e 2.1 8.6 -
Federal and foreign valuation allowancCe...........oeueeeeeeen. 12.8 3.3 22.6
Future distributions from foreign equity investment......... - - 44.6
(@} ol o 1l o 1 Y (1.5) 7.6 4.8

i P (13.0) (17.7) 253.3
TNCOME LAX EXPEINSE e v v v v v vt e e e s e eaennaeeesseenenenenenanaeeseeenenns $ 95.9 $274.4 $ 214.1
s Y o w1 VS o= i =Y 30.8% 32.9% NM (1

(1) Not meaningful as we had a pre-tax loss of $112.1 million and income tax
expense of $214.1 million. The primary reason is due to the European energy
segment's goodwill impairment of $482 million, for which no tax benefit can
be recognized as the goodwill is non-deductible.

REPGB Tax Holiday. Under 1998 Dutch tax law relating to the Dutch
electricity industry, REPGB qualifies for a zero percent tax rate through
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December 31, 2001. The tax holiday applies only to the Dutch income earned by
REPGB. Beginning January 1, 2002, REPGB is subject to Dutch corporate income
tax at standard statutory rates, which is currently 34.5%, which was enacted in
2001. Prior to 2001, the enacted rate was 35%. During 2002, there was a $5.1
million reconciling item as a result of the tax holiday as the results of our
European energy segment are consolidated on a one-month-lag basis. The effect
of the change in the enacted tax rate was not material to our results of
operations.

Future Distributions from Foreign Equity Investments. During 2002, we
accrued a $46 million United States federal tax provision for future cash
distributions from our equity investment in NEA. Based on our current tax
position, during 2002, we determined that we would be obligated to pay United
States taxes on future cash distributions from NEA in excess of our tax basis.
As of December 31, 2002, our investment in NEA was $210 million. For further
discussion of our investment in NEA, see notes 8 and 14 (7).

Undistributed Earnings of Foreign Subsidiaries. The undistributed earnings
of foreign subsidiaries aggregated $266 million and $319 million as of December
31, 2001 and 2002, respectively, which, under existing tax law, will not be
subject to United States income tax until distributed. Provisions for United
States income taxes have not been accrued on these undistributed earnings, as
these earnings have been, or are intended to be, permanently reinvested. In the
event of a distribution of these earnings in the form of dividends, we will be
subject to United States income taxes net of allowable foreign tax credits.
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Following were our tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and
their respective tax bases:

Year Ended
December 31,

(in millions)

Deferred tax assets:

Current:
Allowance for doubtful accounts and credit provisions. $ 59.5 $ 30.7
Contractual rights and obligations.................... - 13.7
Adjustment to fair value for debt..................... - 10.9
Operating loss carryforwards. . ... ..ot iieeeeeeeennns - 66.6
[ oL 4.8 7.0
Total current deferred tax assets.........ccuuvu... 64.3 128.9

Non-current:
Employee benefits. ...ttt ittt 44.3 55.3
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Operating loss carryforwards. . ... ..ot iineneeeeennns 18.1 75.5
Environmental reServVe S . ... i u et eeeeeeeenneeeeeeeenns 15.0 26.5
Foreign exchange gains. ... ....uuiiiii it itneeeeeeennns 11.1 11.6
Non-trading derivative liabilities, net............... 133.7 24.5
Non-derivative stranded costs liability............... 73.1 -
Accrual for payment to CenterPoint Energy, Inc........ —= 48.7
Adjustment to fair value for debt..................... - 50.4
Equity method investments..........iii ittt ennnn 4.0 10.0
(5 o L 26.1 31.2
Valuation alloWanCe . v it it ittt ettt ettt ee e eeeeeeaeann (15.06) (71.3)

Total non-current deferred tax assets............. 309.8 262 .4

Total deferred tax aSSELS. . i it e it ieeeennnneeens $374.1 $ 391.3

Deferred tax liabilities:

Current:
Trading and marketing assets, net..................... $ 48.4 $ 37.0
Non-trading derivative assets, net........... ... 0.8 23.7
Hedges of net investment in foreign subsidiaries...... 52.1 20.6
Other. . e e e e 7.3
Total current deferred tax liabilities............ 101.3 88.6

Non—-current:

Depreciation and amortization............c.coiiiiiiennn. 133.6 653.6
Trading and marketing assets, net............... .. 27.5 25.9
Stranded costs indemnification receivable............. 73.1 -
Contractual rights and obligations.................... - 10.3
Future distributions from foreign equity investment... - 46.4
[ oL 29.3 25.8
Total non-current deferred tax liabilities........ 263.5 762.0
Total deferred tax liabilities...........iieo.... $364.8 $ 850.6
Accumulated deferred income taxes, net............ S 9.3 $(459.3)
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Tax Attribute Carryovers. At December 31, 2002, we had approximately $184
million, $893 million, $144 million and $0.5 million of federal, state and
foreign net operating loss carryovers and capital loss carryforwards,
respectively. The federal and state loss carryforwards can be carried forward
to offset future income through the year 2022. The foreign losses can be
carried forward indefinitely.

The valuation allowance reflects a net decrease of $5 million in 2001 and
$56 million net increase in 2002. The net increase in 2002 results primarily
from increased state and foreign net operating losses and impairments on
capital assets. In addition, in connection with the Orion Power acquisition,

a

we
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recorded a valuation allowance of $30 million due to state net operating
losses. These net changes for 2001 and 2002 also resulted from a reassessment
of our future ability to use federal, state and foreign tax net operating loss
and capital loss carryforwards.

As discussed in note 14 (j), the Dutch parliament has adopted legislation
allocating to the Dutch generation sector, including REPGB, financial
responsibility for certain stranded costs and other liabilities incurred by NEA
prior to the deregulation of the Dutch wholesale market. These obligations
include NEA's obligations under a stranded cost gas supply contract and three
stranded cost electricity contracts. As a result, we recorded an out-of-market,
net stranded cost liability of $369 million and a related deferred tax asset of
$127 million at December 31, 2001 for our statutorily allocated share of these
gas supply and electricity contracts. Prior to 2002, we believed that the costs
incurred by REPGB subsequent to the tax holiday ending in 2001 related to these
contracts would be deductible for Dutch tax purposes. However, due to the
uncertainties related to the deductibility of these costs, we recorded an
offsetting liability in other liabilities of $127 million as of December 31,
2001. We now believe, based upon discussions with the Dutch tax authorities in
2002, obtaining a tax deduction for these costs will require litigation in the
Netherlands, and accordingly, we reversed both the deferred tax asset and
related liability in 2002.

(14) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
(a) Lease Commitments.

In August 2000, we entered into separate sale-leaseback transactions with
each of three owner-lessors' respective 16.45%, 16.67% and 100% interests in
the Conemaugh, Keystone and Shawville generating stations, respectively,
acquired in the REMA acquisition. As lessee, we lease an interest in each
facility from each owner-lessor under a facility lease agreement. We expect to
make lease payments through 2029 under these leases, with total cash payments
of $1.4 billion remaining as of December 31, 2002. The lease terms expire in
2034. The equity interests in all the subsidiaries of REMA are pledged as
collateral for REMA's lease obligations and the subsidiaries have guaranteed
the lease obligations. Additionally, each of the lease obligations is backed by
an uncollateralized, irrevocable, unconditional stand-by letter of credit, see
note 9(a). In connection with the sale-leaseback transactions, we also issued
three series of pass through certificates, which represent undivided interests
in three pass through trusts. The property of each pass through trust consists
solely of nonrecourse secured lease obligation notes or lessor notes. The
amounts payable by REMA under the leases are sufficient to pay all payments of
principal and premium, if any, and interest on the lessor notes. The lessor
notes are secured by the relevant leased facility, the lease documents, and the
security for the lease obligations.

The lease documents contain restrictive covenants that restrict REMA's
ability to, among other things, make dividend distributions unless REMA
satisfies various conditions. The covenant restricting dividends would be
suspended if the direct or indirect parent of REMA, meeting specified criteria,
including having a rating on REMA's long-term unsecured senior debt of at least
BBB from Standard and Poor's and Baa2 from Moody's, guarantees the lease
obligations. As of December 31, 2001, REMA had $167 million of restricted funds
that were

RELIANT RESOURCES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
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available for REMA's working capital needs and to make future lease payments.
As of December 31, 2002, the various conditions were satisfied by REMA and
there was no restricted cash.

In the first quarter of 2001, we entered into tolling arrangements with a
third party to purchase the rights to utilize and dispatch electric generating
capacity of approximately 1,100 MW extending through 2012. Two gas-fired,
simple-cycle peaking plants generate this electricity. We did not pay any
amounts under these tolling arrangements during 2001. We paid $45 million in
tolling payments during 2002. The tolling arrangements qualify as operating
leases.

In February 2001, CenterPoint entered into a lease for office space for us
in a building under construction. CenterPoint assigned the lease agreement to
us in June 2001. The lease term, which commences in the second quarter 2003, is
15 years with two five-year renewal options.

The following table sets forth information concerning our cash obligations
under non-cancelable long-term operating leases as of December 31, 2002. Other
non-cancelable, long-term operating leases principally consist of tolling
arrangements, as discussed above, rental agreements for building space,
including the office space lease discussed above, data processing equipment and
vehicles, including major work equipment:

REMA
Sale-Lease
Obligation Other Total

(in millions)

2003. ...t $ 77 $ 85 $ 162
2004........ ... 84 91 175
2005... ... 75 89 164
2006. ... 64 87 151
2007 .o 65 62 127
2008 and beyond 1,059 390 1,449

Total....... $1,424 $804 $2,228

Total lease expense for all operating leases was $24 million, $75 million
and $120 million during 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively. During 2000, 2001
and 2002, we made lease payments related to the REMA sale-leaseback of $1
million, $259 million and $136 million, respectively. As of December 31, 2001
and 2002, we have recorded a prepaid lease obligation related to the REMA
sale-leaseback of $59 million and $59 million, respectively, in other current
assets and of $122 million and $200 million, respectively, in other long-term
assets.

(b) Construction Agency Agreements with Off-balance Sheet Special Purpose
Entities.

In 2001, we, through several of our subsidiaries, entered into operative
documents with special purpose entities to facilitate the development,
construction, financing and leasing of several power generation projects. We
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did not consolidate the special purpose entities as of December 31, 2002. As of
December 31, 2002, the special purpose entities have an aggregate financing
commitment from equity and debt participants (Investors) for three electric
generating facilities of $1.9 billion of which the last $515 million is
currently available only if cash collateralized. The availability of the $1.9
billion commitment is subject to satisfaction of various conditions, including
the obligation to provide cash collateral for the loans and letters of credit
outstanding on November 29, 2004. We, through several of our subsidiaries, act
as construction agent for the special purpose entities and are responsible for
completing construction of these projects by December 31, 2004. However, we
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have generally limited our risk during construction to an amount not to exceed
89.9% of costs incurred to date, except in certain events. Upon completion of
an individual project and exercise of the lease option, our subsidiaries will
be required to make lease payments in an amount sufficient to provide a return
to the Investors. If we do not exercise our option to lease any project upon
its completion, we must purchase the project or remarket the project on behalf
of the special purpose entities. Our ability to exercise the lease option is
subject to certain conditions. We must guarantee that the Investors will
receive an amount at least equal to 89.9% of their investment in the case of a
remarketing sale at the end of construction. At the end of an individual
project's initial operating lease term (approximately five years from
construction completion), our subsidiary lessees have the option to extend the
lease with the approval of the Investors, purchase the project at a fixed
amount equal to the original construction cost, or act as a remarketing agent
and sell the project to an independent third party. If the lessees elect the
remarketing option, they may be required to make a payment of an amount not to
exceed 85% of the project cost, if the proceeds from remarketing are not
sufficient to repay the Investors. Reliant Resources has guaranteed its
subsidiaries' obligations under the operative agreements during the
construction periods and, if the lease option is exercised, each lessee's
obligations during the lease period. At any time during the construction period
or during the lease, we may purchase a facility by paying an amount
approximately equal to the outstanding debt balance plus the equity balance and
any returns of equity plus any accrued and unpaid financing costs or we may
purchase the facility by assuming, directly or indirectly, the obligations of
the subsidiaries, in which case the guarantee must remain in place and lender
consent may be required. As of December 31, 2002, the special purpose entities
had property, plant and equipment of $1.3 billion, net other assets of $3
million and secured debt obligations of $1.3 billion. As of December 31, 2002,
$1.0 billion of the debt obligations outstanding bear interest at LIBOR plus a
margin of 2.25%, while the remaining $0.3 billion of the debt obligations
outstanding bear interest at a weekly floating interest rate. As of December
31, 2002, the special purpose entities had equity from unaffiliated third
parties of $49 million.

Due to the early adoption of FIN No. 46 (as explained in note 2(t)), we
began to consolidate these special purpose entities effective January 1, 2003.
The special purpose entities' financing agreement, the construction agency
agreements and the related guarantees were terminated as part of the
refinancing in March 2003. For information regarding the refinancing, see note
21 (a) .
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(c) Off-balance Sheet Equipment Financing Structure.

We, through a subsidiary, entered into an agreement with a bank whereby the
bank, as owner, entered into contracts for the purchase and construction of
power generation equipment and our subsidiary, or its subagent, acted as the
bank's agent in connection with administering the contracts for such equipment.
The agreement was terminated in September 2002. Our subsidiary, or its
designee, had the option at any time to purchase, or, at equipment completion,
subject to certain conditions, including the agreement of the bank to extend
financing, to lease the equipment, or to assist in the remarketing of the
equipment under terms specified in the agreement. We were required to cash
collateralize our obligation to administer the contracts. This cash collateral
was approximately equivalent to the total payments by the bank for the
equipment, interest and other fees. As of December 31, 2001, we had deposits of
$230 million in the collateral account.

In January 2002, the bank sold to the parties to the construction agency
agreements discussed above, equipment contracts with a total contractual
obligation of $258 million, under which payments and interest during
construction totaled $142 million. Accordingly, $142 million of collateral
deposits were returned to us. In May 2002, we were assigned and exercised a
purchase option for a contract for equipment totaling $20 million under which
payments and interest during construction totaled $8 million. We used $8
million of our collateral deposits to complete the purchase. After the
purchase, we canceled the contract and recorded a $10 million loss
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on the cancellation of the contract, which included a $2 million termination
fee. Immediately prior to the expiration of the agreement in September 2002, we
terminated the agreement and were assigned and exercised purchase options for
contracts for steam and combustion turbines and two heat recovery steam
generators with an aggregate cost of $121 million under which payments and
interest during construction totaled $94 million. We used $94 million of our
collateral deposits to complete the purchase.

Pursuant to SFAS No. 144, we evaluated for impairment the steam and
combustion turbines and two heat recovery steam generators purchased in
September 2002. Based on our analysis, we determined this equipment was
impaired and accordingly recognized a $37 million pre-tax impairment loss that
is recorded as depreciation expense in 2002 in our statement of consolidated
operations. The fair value of the equipment and thus the impairments was
determined using a combination of quoted market prices and prices for similar
assets.

(d) Cross Border Leases.

During the period from 1994 through 1997, under cross border lease
transactions, REPGB leased several of its power plants and related equipment
and turbines to non—-Netherlands based investors (the head leases) and
concurrently leased the facilities back under sublease arrangements with
remaining terms as of December 31, 2002 of 1 to 22 years. REPGB utilized
proceeds from the head lease transactions to prepay its sublease obligations
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and to provide a source for payment of end of term purchase options and other
financial undertakings. The initial sublease obligations totaled $2.4 billion
of which $1.6 billion remained outstanding as of December 31, 2002. These
transactions involve REPGB providing to a foreign investor an ownership right
in (but not necessarily title to) an asset, with a leaseback of that asset. The
net proceeds to REPGB of the transactions were recorded as a deferred gain and
are currently being amortized to income over the lease terms. At December 31,
2001 and 2002, the unamortized deferred gain on these transactions totaled $68
million and $73 million, respectively. The power plants, related equipment and
turbines remain on our consolidated financial statements and continue to be
depreciated. In February 2003, we signed a share purchase agreement to sell our
European energy operations to a Netherlands-based electricity distributor. See
note 21 (b) for discussion.

REPGB is required to maintain minimum insurance coverages, perform minimum
annual maintenance and, in specified situations, post letters of credit.
REPGB's shareholder is subject to some restrictions with respect to the
liquidation of REPGB's shares. In the case of early termination of these
contracts, REPGB would be contingently liable for some payments to the
sublessors, which at December 31, 2002, are estimated to be $297 million. REPGB
was required by some of the lease agreements to obtain standby letters of
credit in favor of the sublessors in the event of early termination. The amount
of the required letters of credit was $272 million and $355 million as of
December 31, 2001 and 2002, respectively. Commitments for these letters of
credit have been obtained as of December 31, 2002. As a result of REPGB's
downgrade by the credit rating agencies in November 2002, we were required to
increase the amounts of letters of credit posted as security. Further credit
rating downgrades, if any, will not require additional letters of credit to be
posted.

(e) Payment to CenterPoint in 2004.

We may be required to make a payment to CenterPoint in 2004 to the extent
the affiliated retail electric provider's price to beat for providing retail
electric service to residential and small commercial customers in CenterPoint's
Houston service territory during 2002 and 2003 exceeds the market price of
electricity. This payment is required by the Texas electric restructuring law,
unless the PUCT determines, on or prior to January 1, 2004, that 40% or more of
the amount of electric power that was consumed in 2000 by residential or small
commercial customers, as applicable, within CenterPoint's Houston service
territory is committed to be
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served by retail electric providers other than us. This amount will not exceed
$150 per customer, multiplied by the number of residential or small commercial
customers, as the case may be, that we serve on January 1, 2004 in
CenterPoint's Houston service territory, less the number of residential or
small commercial electric customers, as the case may be, we serve in other
areas of Texas. Currently, we believe it is probable that we will be required
to make such payment to CenterPoint related to our residential customers. We
believe that the payment related to our residential customers will be in the
range of $160 million to $190 million (pre-tax), with a most probable estimate
of $175 million. We will recognize the total obligation over the period we
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recognize the related revenues based on the difference between the amount of
the price to beat and the estimated market price of electricity multiplied by
the estimated energy sold through January 1, 2004 not to exceed the maximum cap
of $150 per customer. We recognized $128 million (pre-tax) during 2002. The
remainder of our estimated obligation will be recognized during 2003. In the
future, we will revise our estimates of this payment as additional information
about the market price of electricity and the market share that will be served
by us and other retail electric providers on January 1, 2004 becomes available
and we will adjust the related accrual at that time.

Currently, we believe that the 40% test for small commercial customers will
be met and we will not make a payment related to those customers. If the 40%
test 1s not met related to our small commercial customers and a payment is
required, we estimate this payment would be approximately $30 million.

(f) Other Commitments.

Property, Plant and Equipment Purchase Commitments. As of December 31,
2002, we had one generating facility under construction. Total estimated cost
of constructing this facility is $486 million. As of December 31, 2002, we had
incurred $332 million of the total forecasted project costs. In addition to
this generating facility, we are constructing facilities as construction agents
under construction agency agreements. These construction agency agreements were
terminated as part of the refinancing in March 2003 (see note 21(a)). See note
14 (b) for further discussion of these agreements and the related special
purpose entities. As of December 31, 2002, we had additional purchase
commitments related to property, plant and equipment of $23 million.

Purchase Obligations for Trading and Marketing Assets and Liabilities,
Excluding Derivatives Accounted for under SFAS No. 133. We have cash purchase
obligations relating to our trading and marketing assets and liabilities, which
are not derivatives under SFAS No. 133. In addition, we have purchase
obligations relating to our trading and marketing assets and liabilities that,
effective January 1, 2003, pursuant to the application of EITF No. 02-03, will
be classified as "normal purchases contracts" under SFAS No. 133 and will not
be marked to market through earnings (see note 2(t)). The minimum purchase
obligations under these applicable contracts for the next five years and
thereafter as of December 31, 2002 is as follows:

Purchased

Power and
Transportation Electric Capacity Other Energy
Commitments Commitments Commitments

(in millions)

2003. .0 $20 $85 $ 8
2004. .. i 16 7 5
2005. .. i 13 - 5
2006 ..t 12 - 2
2007 i 7 - -
2008 and thereafter 17 - ——

Total....ovunn.. $85 $92 $20
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Fuel Supply, Commodity Transportation, Purchase Power and Electric Capacity
Commitments. We are a party to several fuel supply contracts, commodity
transportation contracts, and purchase power and electric capacity contracts,
that have various quantity requirements and durations that are not classified
as non-trading derivatives assets and liabilities or trading and marketing
assets and liabilities in our consolidated balance sheet as of December 31,
2002, as these contracts meet the SFAS No. 133 exception to be classified as
"normal purchases contracts" (see note 7) or do not meet the definition of a
derivative. Minimum purchase commitment obligations under these agreements are
as follows, as of December 31, 2002:

Purchased
Power and
Fuel Transportation Electric Capacity
Commitments Commitments Commitments
(in millions)

2003, .0 $206 $ 83 S 784
2004 ... 130 106 174
2005. .. i 105 104 172
2006 ... 22 104 176
2007 ¢ e i i i i 13 97 -
2008 and thereafter 214 1,117 -
Total....oovvonnn $690 $1,611 $1,306

Our aggregate electric capacity commitments, including capacity auction
products, are for 17,000 Mw, 4,202 Mw, 4,420 MW, and 4,631 MW for 2003, 2004,
2005 and 2006, respectively. Included in the above purchase power and electric
capacity commitments are amounts acquired from Texas Genco. For additional
discussion of this commitment, see note 4 (b).

The maximum duration under any individual fuel supply contract,
transportation contract, purchased power and electric and gas capacity contract
is 17 years, 21 years and 4 years, respectively.

Sale Commitments. As of December 31, 2002, we have sale commitments,
including electric energy and capacity sale contracts and district heating
contracts (see note 14(j)), which are not classified as non-trading derivative
assets and liabilities or trading and marketing assets and liabilities in our
consolidated balance sheet as these contracts meet the SFAS No. 133 exception
to be classified as "normal sales contracts" or do not meet the definition of a
derivative. The estimated minimum sale commitments under these contracts are
$875 million, $446 million, $302 million, $245 million and $190 million in
2003, 2004, 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively.

In addition, in January 2002, we began providing retail electric services to
approximately 1.7 million residential and small commercial customers previously
served by CenterPoint's electric utility division. Within CenterPoint's
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electric utility division's territory, prices that may be charged to
residential and small commercial customers by our retail electric service
provider are subject to a specified price (price to beat) at the outset of
retail competition. The PUCT's regulations allow our retail electric provider
to adjust its price to beat fuel factor based on a percentage change in the
price of natural gas. In addition, the retail electric provider may also
request an adjustment as a result of changes in its price of purchased energy.
We can request up to two adjustments to our price to beat in each year. During
2002, we requested and the PUCT approved two such adjustments. For a discussion
of the increase requested in January 2003, see note 21(d). We will not be
permitted to sell electricity to residential and small commercial customers in
the incumbent's traditional service territory at a price other than the price
to beat until January 1, 2005, unless before that date the PUCT determines that
40% or more of the
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amount of electric power that was consumed in 2000 by the relevant class of
customers is committed to be served by other retail electric providers. For
further information regarding the price to beat, see note 14 (e).

Naming Rights to Houston Sports Complex. In October 2000, we acquired the
naming rights for a football stadium and other convention and entertainment
facilities included in the stadium complex. The agreement extends through 2032.
In addition to naming rights, the agreement provides us with significant
sponsorship rights. The aggregate cost of the naming rights will be
approximately $300 million. During the fourth quarter of 2000, we incurred an
obligation to pay $12 million in order to secure the long-term commitment and
for the initial advertising of which $10 million was expensed in the statement
of consolidated operations in 2000. Starting in 2002, we began to pay $10
million each year through 2032 for annual advertising under this agreement.

Long-term Power Generation Maintenance Agreements. We have entered into
long-term maintenance agreements that cover certain periodic maintenance,
including parts, on power generation turbines. The long-term maintenance
agreements terminate over the next 12 to 18 years based on turbine usage.
Estimated cash payments over the next five years for these agreements are as
follows (in millions):

2003..... $ 52
2004..... 30
2005..... 31
2006..... 31
2007..... 33

ANR Transportation Agreement. Prior to the merger of a subsidiary of
CenterPoint and RERC Corp., a predecessor of Reliant Energy Services, Inc.
(Reliant Energy Services) (a wholly-owned subsidiary) entered into a
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transportation agreement (ANR Agreement) with ANR Pipeline Company (ANR) that
contemplated a transfer to ANR of an interest in some of RERC Corp.'s pipelines
and related assets that are not a part of us. The interest represented capacity
of 250 million cubic feet (Mmcf) per day. Under the ANR agreement, an ANR
affiliate advanced $125 million to Reliant Energy Services. Subsequently, the
parties restructured the ANR Agreement and Reliant Energy Services refunded in
1993 and 1995, a total of $84 million to ANR. As of December 31, 2001 and 2002,
Reliant Energy Services had recorded $31 million and $35 million, respectively,
to reflect our discounted obligation to ANR for the use of 130 Mmcf/day of
capacity in some of RERC Corp.'s transportation facilities. The level of
transportation will decline to 100 Mmcf/day in the year 2003 with a refund of
$5 million made to ANR. The ANR Agreement will terminate in 2005 with a refund
of the remaining balance of $36 million. Prior to the IPO, Reliant Energy
Services and a subsidiary of CenterPoint entered into an agreement whereby the
subsidiary of CenterPoint agreed to reimburse Reliant Energy Services for any
transportation payments made under the ANR Agreement and for the $41 million
total refund discussed above. We have recorded a note receivable from
CenterPoint of $31 million and $35 million as of December 31, 2001 and 2002,
respectively.

Other Commitments. In addition to items discussed in our consolidated
financial statements, our other contractual commitments have various quantity
requirements and durations and are not considered material either individually

or in the aggregate to our results of operations or cash flows.
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(g) Guarantees.

We, along with certain subsidiaries, have issued guarantees, on behalf of
certain other entities, that provide financial assurance to third parties.

The following table details our various guarantees, including the maximum
potential amounts of future payments, assets held as collateral and the
carrying amount of the liabilities recorded on our consolidated balance sheet,
if applicable, as of December 31, 2002:

Carrying
Amount of
Maximum Liability
Potential Recorded on
Amount Assets Consolidated
of Future Held as Balance
Type of Guarantee Payments Collateral Sheet
(in millions)
Guarantees under construction agency agreements(l). $1,325 $—— $——
REMA sale-leaseback operating leases(2)............ 818 —= —=
Non-qualified benefits of CenterPoint's retirees(3) 58 - -
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(1) See note 14(b) for discussion of our guarantees under the construction
agency agreements. These guarantees were terminated in March 2003; see note
21 (a) .

(2) See note 14(a) for discussion of the guarantee of the lease obligations
under the REMA sale/leaseback transactions by REMA's subsidiaries. The
guarantee expires in 2034.

(3) We have guaranteed, in the event CenterPoint becomes insolvent, certain
non-qualified benefits of CenterPoint's and its subsidiaries' existing
retirees at the Distribution. See note 4(a).

Unless otherwise noted, failure by the primary obligor to perform under the
terms of the various agreements and contracts guaranteed may result in the
beneficiary requesting immediate payment from the relevant guarantor. To the
extent liabilities exist under the various agreements and contracts that we or
our subsidiaries guarantee, such liabilities are recorded in our consolidated
balance sheet at December 31, 2002. We believe the likelihood that we would be
required to perform or otherwise incur any significant losses associated with
any of these guarantees is remote.

We have entered into contracts that include indemnification provisions as a
routine part of our business activities. Examples of these contracts include
asset purchase and sale agreements, commodity purchase and sale agreements,
operating agreements, lease agreements, procurement agreements and certain debt
agreements. In general, these provisions indemnify the counterparty for matters
such as breaches of representations and warranties and covenants contained in
the contract and/or against third party liabilities. In the case of commodity
purchase and sale agreements, generally damages are limited through liquidated
damages clauses whereby the parties agree to establish damages as the costs of
covering any breached performance obligations. In the case of debt agreements,
we generally indemnify against liabilities that arise from the preparation,
administration or enforcement of the agreement. Under our indemnifications, the
maximum potential amount is not estimable given that the magnitude of any
claims under the indemnifications would be a function of the extent of damages
actually incurred, which is not practicable to estimate unless and until the
event occurs. We consider the likelihood of making any material payments under
these provisions to be remote. For additional discussion of certain
indemnifications by us, see notes 4(a) and 14 (h).

RELTIANT RESOURCES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
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(h) Environmental and Legal Matters.

We are involved in environmental and legal proceedings before various courts
and governmental agencies, some of which involve substantial amounts. In
addition, we are subject to a number of ongoing investigations by various
governmental agencies. Certain of these proceedings and investigations are the
subject of intense, highly charged media and political attention. As these
matters progress, additional issues may be identified that could expose us to
further proceedings and investigations. Our management regularly analyzes

95



Edgar Filing: RELIANT RESOURCES INC - Form 10-K/A

current information and, as necessary, provides accruals for probable
liabilities on the eventual disposition of these matters that can be estimated.

We have an agreement with CenterPoint that requires us to indemnify
CenterPoint for matters relating to our business and operations prior to the
Distribution, as well as for any untrue statement of a material fact, or
omission of a material fact necessary to make any statement not misleading, in
the registration statement or prospectus that we filed with the SEC in
connection with our IPO. CenterPoint has been named as a defendant in many
legal proceedings relative to such matters and has requested indemnification
from us.

Legal Matters.

Unless otherwise indicated, the ultimate outcome of the following lawsuits,
proceedings and investigations cannot be predicted at this time. The ultimate
disposition of some of these matters could have a material adverse effect on
our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

California Class Actions. We, as well as certain of our present and former
officers, have been named as defendants in a number of class action lawsuits in
California. The plaintiffs allege that we conspired to increase the price of
wholesale electricity in California in violation of California's antitrust and
unfair and unlawful business practices laws. The lawsuits seek injunctive
relief, treble the amount of damages alleged, restitution of alleged
overpayments, disgorgement of alleged unlawful profits for sales of
electricity, costs of suit and attorneys' fees. In general, these lawsuits can
be segregated into two groups based on their pre-trial status. The first group
consists of (a) three lawsuits filed in the Superior Court of the State of
California, San Diego County filed on November 27, 2000, November 29, 2000 and
January 16, 2001; (b) two lawsuits filed in the Superior Court of the State of
California, San Francisco County on January 18, 2001 and January 24, 2001; and
(c) one lawsuit filed in the Superior Court of the State of California, Los
Angeles County on May 2, 2001. These six lawsuits were consolidated and removed
to the United States District Court for the Southern District of California. In
December 2002, the court ordered these six lawsuits be remanded to state court
for further consideration. We, and our co-defendants, filed a petition with the
United States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit seeking a review of the
order to remand. The petition is under consideration by the court. The second
group consists of two lawsuits filed in the Superior Court of the State of
California, San Mateo County filed on April 23, 2002 and May 15, 2002, two
lawsuits filed in the Superior Court of the State of California, San Francisco
County on May 14, 2002 and May 24, 2002, two lawsuits filed in the Superior
Court of the State of California, Alameda County on May 21, 2002, one lawsuit
filed in the Superior Court of the State of California, San Joaquin County on
May 10, 2002 and one lawsuit filed in the Superior Court of the State of
California, Los Angeles County on October 18, 2002. These eight lawsuits were
consolidated in the United States District Courts, six of which were removed to
the United States District Court for the Northern District of California, one
was removed to the United States District Court for the Eastern District of
California, and one was removed to the United States District Court for the
Central District of California. Additionally, on July 15, 2002, the Snohomish
County Public Utility District filed a class action lawsuit against us in
United States District Court for the Central District of California. In January
2003, the court granted our motion to dismiss this lawsuit on the
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grounds that the plaintiffs' claims are barred by federal preemption and the
FERC filed rate doctrine. The plaintiffs have appealed to the United States
Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit.

Oregon Class Actions. On December 16, 2002, a class action lawsuit was
filed against us in the Circuit Court of the State of Oregon, County of
Multnomah. The plaintiffs allege that we conspired to increase the price of
wholesale electricity in Oregon in violation of Oregon's consumer protection,
fraud and negligence laws. The lawsuit seeks injunctive relief, treble the
amount of damages alleged, restitution of alleged overpayments, disgorgement of
alleged unlawful profits for sales of electricity, costs of suit and attorneys'
fees. This lawsuit was removed to the United States District Court for the
Northern District of California.

Washington Class Actions. On December 20, 2002, a class action lawsuit was
filed against us in United States District Court for the Western District of
Washington. The plaintiffs allege that we conspired to increase the price of
wholesale electricity in Washington in violation of Washington's consumer
protection, fraud and negligence laws. The lawsuit seeks injunctive relief,
treble the amount of damages alleged, restitution of alleged overpayments,
disgorgement of alleged unlawful profits for sales of electricity, costs of
suit and attorneys' fees.

California Attorney General Actions. On March 11, 2002, the California
Attorney General filed a lawsuit against us in Superior Court of the State of
California, San Francisco County. The California Attorney General alleges
various violations of state laws against unfair and unlawful business practices
arising out of transactions in the markets for ancillary services run by the
California Independent System Operator (Cal ISO). The lawsuit seeks injunctive
relief, disgorgement of our alleged unlawful profits for sales of electricity
and civil penalties. We removed this lawsuit to the United States District
Court for the Northern District of California. In March 2003, the court granted
our motion to dismiss this lawsuit on the grounds that the plaintiffs' claims
are barred by federal preemption and the FERC filed rate doctrine.

On March 19, 2002, the California Attorney General filed a complaint against
us with the FERC. The complaint alleges that we, as a seller with market-based
rates, violated our tariffs by not filing with the FERC transaction-specific
information about all of our sales and purchases at market-based rates. The
California Attorney General argued that, as a result, all past sales should be
subject to a refund if they are found to be above just and reasonable levels.
In May 2002, the FERC issued an order that largely denied the complaint and
required only that we file revised transaction reports regarding prior sales in
California spot markets. In September 2002, the California Attorney General
petitioned the United States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit for review
of the FERC orders. The California Attorney General's petition is under
consideration by the court.

On April 15, 2002, the California Attorney General filed a lawsuit against
us in San Francisco County Superior Court. The lawsuit is substantially similar
to the complaint described above filed by the California Attorney General with
the FERC. The lawsuit also alleges that we consistently charged unjust and
unreasonable prices for electricity and that each unjust charge violated
California law. The lawsuit seeks fines of up to $2,500 for each alleged
violation and such other equitable relief as may be appropriate. We removed
this lawsuit to the United States District Court for the Northern District of
California. In March 2003, the court granted our motion to dismiss this lawsuit
on the grounds that the plaintiffs' claims are barred by federal preemption and
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the FERC filed rate doctrine.

On April 15, 2002, the California Attorney General and the California
Department of Water Resources filed a lawsuit against us in the United States
District Court for the Northern District of California. The plaintiffs allege
that our acquisition of electric generating facilities from Southern California
Edison in 1998 violated
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Section 7 of the Clayton Act, which prohibits mergers or acquisitions that
substantially lessen competition. The lawsuit alleges that the acquisitions
gave us market power, which we then exercised to overcharge California
consumers for electricity. The lawsuit seeks injunctive relief against alleged
unfair competition, divestiture of our California facilities, disgorgement of
alleged illegal profits, damages, and civil penalties for each alleged exercise
of illegal market power. In March 2003, the court dismissed the plaintiffs'
claim for damages and Section 7 of the Clayton Act but declined to dismiss the
plaintiffs' injunctive claim for divestiture of our California facilities.

California Lieutenant Governor Class Action. On November 20, 2002, the
California Lieutenant Governor filed a taxpayer representative lawsuit against
us in Superior Court of the State of California, Los Angeles County on behalf
of purchasers of gas and power in California. The plaintiffs allege that we
manipulated the pricing of gas and power by reporting false prices and
fraudulent trades to the publishers of various price indices. The lawsuit seeks
injunctive relief, disgorgement of profits and funds acquired by the alleged
unlawful conduct.

FERC Complaints. On April 11, 2002, the FERC set for hearing a series of
complaints filed by Nevada Power Company, which seek reformation of certain
forward power contracts with several companies, including two contracts with us
that have since been terminated. In December 2002, the presiding administrative
law judge in these consolidated proceedings issued recommended findings of fact
favorable to our positions and upholding the contracts. Those recommendations
are pending before the FERC for final decision. PacifiCorp Company filed a
similar complaint challenging two 90-day contracts with us. In February 2003,
the presiding administrative law judge issued an initial decision recommending
the dismissal of PacifiCorp Company's complaint and upholding the contracts.
The FERC has stated that it intends to issue final decisions in both complaints
in May 2003.

Trading and Marketing Proceedings and Investigations. We are party to the
following proceedings and investigations relating to our trading and marketing
activities, including our round trip trades and certain structured transactions.

In June 2002, the SEC advised us that it had issued a formal order in
connection with its investigation of our financial reporting, internal controls
and related matters. The investigation is focused on our round trip trades and
certain structured transactions. We are cooperating with the SEC staff.

As part of the Commodity Futures Trading Commission's (CFTC) industry-wide

investigation of so-called round trip trading, the CFTC has subpoenaed
documents, requested information and conducted discovery relating to our
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natural gas and power trading activities, including round trip trades and
alleged price manipulation, occurring since January 1999. The CFTC is also
looking into the facts and circumstances surrounding certain events in June
2000 that were the subject of a settlement with FERC in January 2003 described
below. We are cooperating with the CFTC staff.

On March 26, 2003, the FERC staff issued a report entitled "Final Report on
Price Manipulation in Western Markets," which expanded and finalized the FERC
staff's August 13, 2002 initial report. Certain findings, conclusions and
observations in the FERC staff report, if adopted or otherwise acted on by the
FERC, could have a material adverse affect on us. The report recommends the
institution of proceedings directing certain entities, including us, to show
cause why bids submitted in markets operated by the Cal ISO and California
Power Exchange (Cal PX) from May to October 2000 did not constitute economic
withholding or inflated bidding in violation of the Cal ISO and Cal PX tariffs.
If adopted, such proceedings could require a disgorgement of revenues related
to some sales for the period May to October 2000. The report also recommends
the institution of proceedings directing certain entities, including us, to
show cause why certain behavior identified in a January 6, 2003 report by the
Cal ISO, entitled "Analysis of Trading and Scheduling Strategies Described in
the Enron
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Memos, " did not constitute gaming in violation of the tariffs of the Cal ISO
and Cal PX, and if adopted, such proceedings could require a disgorgement of
revenues from certain transactions from the period January 1, 2000 through June
21, 2001, which the Cal ISO report identified as an amount less than $30.00
potentially attributable to us. We will have an opportunity to provide comments
on these recommendations before formal proceedings are commenced. Finally, the
report recommends that certain entities, including us, demonstrate that we no
longer sell natural gas at wholesale or have instituted certain practices with
regards to reporting natural gas price information, have disciplined employees
that participated in manipulation or attempted manipulation of public price
indices, and are cooperating fully with any government agency investigating our
prior price reporting practices. We do not know when FERC intends to act on the
staff's recommendations.

Also on March 26, 2003, the FERC instituted proceedings directing our
trading company and BP Energy Company (BP) to show cause why each company's
market-based rate authority should not be revoked. These proceedings arose in
connection with certain actions taken by one of our traders and one of BP's
traders relating to sales of electricity at the Palo Verde hub. If FERC were to
prospectively revoke our trading company's market-based rate authority, it
could have a material adverse affect on us. We must respond to the FERC within
twenty-one days and intend to contest the FERC's proposed remedy for the
alleged conduct.

On January 31, 2003, in connection with the FERC's investigation of
potential manipulation of electricity and natural gas prices in the Western
United States, the FERC approved a stipulation and consent agreement between
the FERC staff and us relating to certain actions taken by some of our traders
over a two-day period in June 2000. Under the agreement, we agreed to pay $14
million directly to customers of the Cal PX and certain other terms, including
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a requirement to abide by a must offer obligation to submit bids for all of our
uncommitted, available capacity from our plants located in California into a
California spot market one additional year following termination of our
existing must offer obligation or until December 31, 2006, whichever is later.

We have received subpoenas and informal requests for information from the
United States Attorney for the Southern District of New York and the Northern
District of California for documents, interviews and other information
pertaining to the round trip trades, and our energy trading activities. We are
cooperating with both offices of the United States Attorney.

In connection with the PUCT's industry-wide investigation into potential
manipulation of the ERCOT market, we have provided information to the PUCT
concerning our scheduling and trading practices on and after July 31, 2001.
Also, we, and four other qualified scheduling entities in ERCOT, reached a
settlement relating to scheduling issues that arose during August 2001. The
PUCT approved the settlement on November 7, 2002.

Shareholder Class Actions. We, as well as certain of our present and former
officers and directors, have been named as defendants in 11 class action
lawsuits filed on behalf of purchasers of our securities and the securities of
CenterPoint. CenterPoint is also named as a defendant in three of the lawsuits.
Two of the lawsuits name as defendants the underwriters of our IPO, which we
have agreed to indemnify. One of those two lawsuits names our independent
auditors as a defendant. The dates of filing of these lawsuits are as follows:
two lawsuits on May 15, 2002; two lawsuits on May 16, 2002; one lawsuit on May
17, 2002; one lawsuit on May 20, 2002; one lawsuit on May 21, 2002; one lawsuit
on May 23, 2002; one lawsuit on June 19, 2002; one lawsuit on June 20, 2002;
and one lawsuit on July 1, 2002. Ten of the lawsuits were filed in the United
States District Court, Southern District of Texas, Houston Division. One
lawsuit was filed in the United States District Court, Eastern District of
Texas, Texarkana Division and subsequently transferred to the United States
District Court, Southern District of Texas, Houston Division. The lawsuits
allege that the defendants overstated revenues by including
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transactions involving the purchase and sale of commodities with the same
counterparty at the same price and that we improperly accounted for certain
other transactions. The lawsuits seek monetary damages and, in one of the
lawsuits rescission, on behalf of a supposed class. In eight of the lawsuits,
the class is composed of persons who purchased or otherwise acquired our
securities and/or the securities of CenterPoint during specified class periods.
The three lawsuits that include CenterPoint as a named defendant were also
filed on behalf of purchasers of our securities and/or the securities of
CenterPoint during specified class periods.

Four class action lawsuits were filed on behalf of purchasers of the
securities of CenterPoint. CenterPoint and several of its officers are named as
defendants. The dates of filing of the four lawsuits are as follows: one on May
16, 2002; one on May 21, 2002; one on June 13, 2002; and one on June 17, 2002.
The lawsuits were filed in the United States District Court, Southern District
of Texas, Houston Division. The lawsuits allege that the defendants violated
federal securities laws by issuing false and misleading statements to the
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public. The plaintiffs allege that the defendants made false and misleading
statements as part of an alleged scheme to artificially inflate trading volumes
and revenues by including transactions involving the purchase and sale of
commodities with the same counterparty at the same price, to use the spin-off
to avoid exposure to our liabilities and to cause the price of our stock to
rise artificially, among other things. The lawsuits seek monetary damages on
behalf of persons who purchased CenterPoint securities during specified class
periods. The court consolidated all of the lawsuits pending in the United
States District Court, Southern District of Texas, Houston Division and
appointed the Boca Raton Police & Firefighters Retirement System and the
Louisiana School Employees Retirement System to be the lead plaintiffs in these
lawsuits. The lead plaintiffs seek monetary relief purportedly on behalf of
purchasers of CenterPoint common stock from February 3, 2000 to May 13, 2002,
purchasers of our common stock in the open market from May 1, 2001 to May 13,
2002 and purchasers of our common stock in our IPO or purchasers of common
stock that are traceable to our IPO. The lead plaintiffs allege, among other
things, that the defendants misrepresented our revenues and trading volumes by
engaging in round trip trades and improperly accounted for certain structured
transactions as cash flow hedges, which resulted in earnings from these
transactions being accounted for as future earnings rather than being accounted
for as earnings in 2001.

On February 7, 2003, a lawsuit was filed against us in United States
District Court for the Northern District of Illinois, Eastern Division. The
plaintiffs allege that we violated federal securities law, Illinois common law
and the Illinois Consumer Fraud and Deceptive Trade Practices Act. The lawsuit
makes allegations similar to those made in the above-described class action
lawsuits and seeks treble the amount of damages alleged, costs of suit and
attorneys' fees.

ERISA Action. On May 30, 2002, a class action lawsuit was filed in the
United States District Court, Southern District of Texas, Houston Division
against us, certain of our present and former officers and directors,
CenterPoint, certain of the present and former directors and officers of
CenterPoint and certain present and former members of the benefits committee of
CenterPoint on behalf of participants in various employee benefits plans
sponsored by CenterPoint. The lawsuit alleges that the defendants breached
their fiduciary duties to various employee benefits plans sponsored by
CenterPoint, in violation of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act. The
plaintiffs allege that the defendants permitted the plans to purchase or hold
securities issued by CenterPoint when it was imprudent to do so, including
after the prices for such securities became artificially inflated because of
alleged securities fraud engaged in by the defendants. The lawsuit seeks
monetary damages for losses suffered by a class of plan participants whose
accounts held CenterPoint securities or our securities, as well as equitable
relief in the form of restitution.

Shareholder Derivative Actions. On May 17, 2002, a derivative lawsuit was
filed against our directors and independent auditors in the 269th Judicial

District, Harris County, Texas. The lawsuit alleges that the defendants
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breached their fiduciary duties to us. The shareholder plaintiff alleges that
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the defendants caused us to conduct our business in an imprudent and unlawful
manner, including allegedly failing to implement and maintain an adequate
internal accounting control system, engaging in transactions involving the
purchase and sale of commodities with the same counterparty at the same price,
and disseminating materially misleading and inaccurate information regarding
our revenue and trading volume. The lawsuit seeks monetary damages on behalf of
us.

On October 25, 2002, a derivative lawsuit was filed against the directors
and officers of CenterPoint. The lawsuit was filed in the United States
District Court for the Southern District of Texas, Houston Division. The
lawsuit alleges breach of fiduciary duty, waste of corporate assets, abuse of
control and gross mismanagement by the defendants causing CenterPoint to
overstate the revenues through round trip and structured transactions and
breach of fiduciary duty in connection with the Distribution and our IPO. The
lawsuit seeks monetary damages on behalf of CenterPoint as well as equitable
relief in the form of a constructive trust on the compensation paid to the
defendants. A special litigation committee appointed by the board of directors
of CenterPoint is investigating similar allegations made in a June 28, 2002
demand letter from a stockholder of CenterPoint. The letter states that certain
shareholders of CenterPoint are considering filing a derivative suit on behalf
of CenterPoint and demands that CenterPoint take several actions in response to
the alleged round trip trades and structured transactions. The special
litigation committee is investigating the allegations made in the demand letter
to determine whether pursuit of a derivative lawsuit is in the best interest of
CenterPoint.

Environmental Matters.

REMA Ash Disposal Site Closures and Site Contaminations. Under the
agreement to acquire REMA (see note 5(b)), we became responsible for
liabilities associated with ash disposal site closures and site contamination
at the acquired facilities in Pennsylvania and New Jersey prior to a plant
closing, except for the first $6 million of remediation costs at the Seward
Generating Station. A prior owner retained liabilities associated with the
disposal of hazardous substances to off-site locations prior to November 24,
1999. As of December 31, 2002, REMA had liabilities associated with six future
ash disposal site closures and six current site investigations and
environmental remediations. We have recorded our estimate of these
environmental liabilities in the amount of $35 million as of December 31, 2002.
We expect approximately $13 million will be paid over the next five years.

REPGB Asbestos Abatement and Environmental Remediation. Prior to our
acquisition of REPGB (see note 5(c)), REPGB had a $25 million obligation
primarily related to asbestos abatement, as required by Dutch law, and soil
remediation at six sites. During 2000, we initiated a review of potential
environmental matters associated with REPGB's properties. REPGB began
remediation in 2000 of the properties identified to have exposed asbestos and
soilil contamination, as required by Dutch law and the terms of some leasehold
agreements with municipalities in which the contaminated properties are
located. As of December 31, 2002, the recorded undiscounted liability for
asbestos abatement, soil remediation and plant water system compliance was $20
million. We expect approximately $8 million will be paid over the next five
years.

Orion Power Environmental Contingencies. In connection with Orion Power's
acquisition of 70 hydro plants in northern and central New York and four
gas—fired or oil-fired plants in New York City, Orion Power assumed the
liability for the estimated cost of environmental remediation at several
properties. Orion Power developed remediation plans for each of these
properties and entered into Consent Orders with the New York State Department
of Environmental Conservation at two New York City sites and one hydro site for
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releases of petroleum and other substances by the prior owners. As of December
31, 2002, the undiscounted liability assumed and recorded by us for these
assets was approximately $8 million, which we expect to pay out through 2006.
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In connection with the acquisition of Midwest assets by Orion Power, Orion
Power became responsible for the liability associated with the closure of three
ash disposal sites in Pennsylvania. As of December 31, 2002, the liability
assumed and recorded by us for these disposal sites was approximately $14
million, with $1 million to be paid over the next five years.

Other Matters.

We are involved in other legal and environmental proceedings before various
courts and governmental agencies regarding matters arising in the ordinary
course of business, some of which involve substantial amounts. We believe that
the effects on our consolidated financial statements, if any, from the
disposition of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on our
financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

(i) California Energy Sales Credit and Refund Provisions.

During portions of 2000 and 2001, prices for wholesale electricity in
California increased dramatically as a result of a combination of factors,
including higher natural gas prices and emission allowance costs, reduction in
available hydroelectric generation resources, increased demand, decreased net
electric imports and limitations on supply as a result of maintenance and other
outages. Although wholesale prices increased, California's deregulation
legislation kept retail rates frozen at 10% below 1996 levels for two of
California's public utilities, Pacific Gas and Electric (PG&E) and Southern
California Edison Company (SCE), until rates were raised by the California
Public Utilities Commission early in 2001. Due to the disparity between
wholesale and retail rates, the credit ratings of PG&E and SCE fell below
investment grade. Additionally, PG&E filed for protection under the bankruptcy
laws in April 2001. As a result, PG&E and SCE are no longer considered
creditworthy, and since January 17, 2001, have not directly purchased power
from third-party suppliers through the Cal ISO to serve that portion of the
power demand that cannot be met from their own supply sources (net short load).
Pursuant to emergency legislation enacted by the California legislature, the
California Department of Water Resources (CDWR) negotiated and purchased power
through short and long-term contracts and through real-time markets operated by
the Cal ISO to serve the net short load requirements of PG&E and SCE. In
December 2001, the CDWR began making payments to the Cal ISO for real-time
transactions. In May 2002, the FERC issued an order stating that wholesale
suppliers, including us, should receive interest payments on past due amounts
owed by the Cal ISO and the CDWR. As a result, we recorded $5 million of net
interest receivable during 2002, discussed below. The CDWR has now made payment
through the Cal ISO for its real-time energy deliveries subsequent to January
17, 2001, although the Cal ISO's distribution of the CDWR's payment for the
month of January 2001, and the allocation of interest to past due amounts, are
the subjects of motions that we have filed with the FERC objecting to the Cal
ISO's failure to allocate the January payment and interest solely to post

103



Edgar Filing: RELIANT RESOURCES INC - Form 10-K/A

January 17, 2001 transactions. In addition, we are prosecuting a lawsuit in
California to recover the market value of forward contracts seized by
California Governor Gray Davis in violation of the Federal Power Act. Governor
Davis' actions prevented the liquidation of the contracts by the Cal PX to
satisfy the outstanding obligations of SCE and PG&E to wholesale suppliers,
including us. The timing and ultimate resolution of this claim is uncertain at
this time.

California Credit Provision. We were owed a total receivable, including
interest, of $302 million (net of estimated refund provision of $15 million) as
of December 31, 2001, and $120 million (net of estimated refund provision of
$191 million) as of December 31, 2002, by the Cal ISO, the Cal PX, the CDWR,
and California Energy Resources Scheduling for energy sales in the California
wholesale market during the fourth quarter of 2000 through December 31, 2002.
From January 1, 2003 through March 31, 2003, we have collected $7 million of
these receivable balances.
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During 2000 and 2001, we recorded net pre-tax credit provisions against
receivable balances related to energy sales in California of $39 million and
$29 million, respectively. As of December 31, 2001, we had a pre-tax credit
provision of $68 million against receivable balances related to energy sales in
the California market. During 2002, $62 million of a previously accrued credit
provision for energy sales in California was reversed. The reversal resulted
from collections of outstanding receivables during the period, a determination
that credit risk had been reduced on the remaining outstanding receivables as a
result of payments in 2002 to the Cal PX and due to the write-off of
receivables as a result of a May 15, 2002 FERC order and related
interpretations and a March 26, 2003 FERC order on proposed findings on refund
liability, discussed below. As of December 31, 2002, we had a remaining pre-tax
credit provision of $6 million against these receivable balances. We will
continue to assess the collectability of these receivables based on further
developments.

FERC Refunds. 1In response to the filing of a number of complaints
challenging the level of wholesale prices in California, the FERC initiated a
staff investigation and issued a number of orders implementing a series of
wholesale market reforms. In these orders, the FERC also instituted a refund
proceedings, described below. Prior to proposing a methodology for calculating
refunds in the refund proceeding discussed below, the FERC identified amounts
charged by us for sales in California to the Cal ISO and the Cal PX for the
period January 1, 2001 through June 19, 2001 as being subject to possible
refunds. Accordingly, during 2001, we accrued refunds of $15 million.

The FERC issued an order in July 2001 adopting a refund methodology and
initiating a hearing schedule to determine (a) revised mitigated prices for
each hour from October 2, 2000 through June 20, 2001, (b) the amount owed in
refunds by each electric wholesale supplier according to the methodology and
(c) the amount currently owed to each electric wholesale supplier. The FERC
issued an order on March 26, 2003, adopting in most respects the proposed
findings of the presiding administrative law judge that had been issued in
December 2002 following a hearing to apply the refund formula. The most
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consequential change involved the adoption of a different methodology for
determining the gas price component of the refund formula. Instead of using
California gas indices, the FERC ordered the use of a proxy gas price based on
producing area price indices plus the posted transportation costs. In addition,
the order allows generators to petition for a reduction of the refund
calculation upon a submittal to the FERC of their actual gas costs and
subsequent FERC approval. Based on the proposed findings of the administrative
law judge, discussed above, adjusted for the March 2003 FERC decision to revise
the methodology for determining the gas price component of the formula, we
estimate our refund obligation to be between $191 million and $240 million for
energy sales in California (excluding the $14 million refund related to the
FERC settlement in January 2003, as discussed in note 14 (h)). The low range of
our estimate is based on a refund calculation factoring in a reduction in the
total FERC refund based on the actual cost paid for gas over the proposed proxy
gas price. Our estimate of the range will be revised further as all components
of the FERC order can be analyzed. We cannot currently predict whether that
will result in an increase or decrease in our high and low points in the range.
The high range of our estimate of the refund obligation assumes that the refund
obligation is not adjusted for the actual cost paid for gas over the proposed
proxy gas price. During 2002, we recorded reserves for refunds of $176 million
related to energy sales in California. As discussed above, $15 million was
recognized during 2001. As of December 31, 2002, our reserve for refunds
related to energy sales in California is $191 million, excluding the $14
million related to the FERC settlement in January 2003, see note 14 (h). The
California refunds, excluding the $14 million related to the FERC settlement
discussed in note 14 (h), will likely be offset against unpaid amounts owed to
us for our prior sales in California.

Interest Calculation. In the fourth quarter of 2002, we recorded net
interest income of $5 million based on the December 2002 findings of the
presiding administrative law judge. The net interest income was estimated
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using the low end of the potential refund, the receivable balance outstanding,
and the quarterly interest rates for the applicable time period designated by
the FERC.

(j) European Stranded Cost and Indemnification and Settlement of Stranded
Cost.

Background. In January 2001, the Dutch Electricity Production Sector
Transitional Arrangements Act (Transition Act) became effective. Among other
things, the Transition Act allocated to REPGB and the three other large-scale
Dutch generation companies, a share of the assets, liabilities and stranded
cost commitments of NEA. Prior to the enactment of the Transition Act, NEA
acted as the national electricity pooling and coordinating body for the
generation output of REPGB and the three other large-scale national Dutch
generation companies. REPGB and the three other large-scale Dutch generation
companies are shareholders of NEA.

The Transition Act and related agreements specify that REPGB has a 22.5%

share of NEA's assets, liabilities and stranded cost commitments. NEA's
stranded cost commitments consisted primarily of various uneconomical or
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stranded cost investments and commitments, including three gas supply contracts
and four power contracts, entered into prior to the liberalization of the Dutch
wholesale electricity market and a contract relating to the construction of an
interconnection cable between Norway and the Netherlands subject to a long-term
power exchange agreement (the NorNed Project). REPGB's stranded cost
obligations also includes uneconomical district heating contracts that were

previously administrated by NEA prior to deregulation of the Dutch power market.

In January 2001, we recognized an out-of-market, net stranded cost liability
for our gas and electric import contracts and district heating commitments. At
such time, we recorded a corresponding asset of equal amount for the
indemnification of this obligation from REPGB's former shareholders and the
Dutch government, as applicable (as further discussed below) .

The gas supply contract expires in 2016 and provides for gas imports
aggregating 2.283 billion cubic meters per year. In 2001, two of the stranded
cost power contracts were settled and terminated. In May 2002, the two
remaining stranded cost power contracts were amended. The district heating
obligations relate to three water heating supply contacts entered into with
various municipalities expiring from 2008 through 2015. Under the district
heating contracts, the municipal districts are required to take annually a
combined minimum of 5,549 terajoules (TJ) increasing annually to 7,955 TJ over
the life of the contracts.

Stranded Cost Indemnification. Until December 2001, the former shareholders
of REPGB were obligated to indemnify REPGB for up to NLG 1.9 billion
(approximately $766 million as of December 31, 2001) of its share of NEA's
stranded cost liabilities and the district heat stranded cost liabilities.

The Transition Act provided that, subject to the approval of the European
Commission, the Dutch government will provide financial compensation to the
Dutch generation companies, including REPGB, for liabilities associated with
long-term district heating contracts. In July 2001, the European Commission
ruled that under certain conditions the Dutch government can provide financial
compensation for the district heating contracts. To the extent that this
compensation is not ultimately provided to the generation companies by the
Dutch government, REPGB is entitled to claim compensation directly from the
former shareholders of REPGB as further discussed below.

Settlement of Stranded Cost Indemnification Agreement. In December 2001,
REPGB and its former shareholders agreed to settle the indemnity obligations of
the former shareholders insofar as they related to
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NEA's stranded cost gas supply and power contracts and other obligations
(excluding district heating obligations).

Under the settlement agreement, the former shareholders of REPGB paid REPGB
NLG 500 million ($202 million) in the first quarter of 2002. REPGB deposited
the settlement payment into an escrow account, withdrawals from which are at
the discretion of REPGB for use in discharging stranded cost obligations
related to the gas and electric import contracts. As of December 31, 2002, the
remaining escrow funds of $6 million are recorded in restricted cash. Any
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remaining funds as of January 1, 2004 will be distributed to REPGB.

Prior to the settlement agreement, pursuant to the purchase agreement of
REPGB, as amended, REPGB was entitled to an approximately $51 million dividend
from NEA with any remainder owing to the former shareholders. Under the
settlement agreement, the former shareholders waived all rights to
distributions of NEA.

As a result of this settlement, we recognized in the fourth quarter of 2001
a net gain of $37 million for the difference between (a) the sum of the cash
settlement payment of $202 million and the additional rights to claim
distributions of the NEA investment of $248 million and (b) the sum of the
amount recorded as stranded cost indemnity receivable related to the stranded
cost gas and electric commitments of $369 million and claims receivable related
to stranded cost incurred in 2001 of $44 million, both previously recorded in
our consolidated balance sheet.

In addition, under the settlement agreement, the former shareholders
continue to be under an obligation to indemnify REPGB for certain district
heating contracts. Under the terms of the settlement agreement, REPGB can elect
between two forms of indemnification after the Ministry of Economic Affairs of
the Netherlands publishes its regulations for compensation of stranded cost
associated with district heating projects. If the compensation to be paid by
the Netherlands under these rules is at least as much as the compensation to be
paid under the original indemnification agreement, REPGB can elect to receive a
one-time payment of approximately $28 million (assuming the December 31, 2002
exchange rate of 1.0492 U.S. dollar per Euro) and in certain circumstances this
payment can increase to approximately $36 million. If the compensation rules do
not provide for compensation at least equal to that provided under the original
indemnification agreement, REPGB can claim indemnification for stranded cost
losses up to a maximum of approximately $333 million (assuming the December 31,
2002 exchange rate of 1.0492 U.S. dollar per Euro) less the amount of
compensation provided by the new compensation rules and certain proceeds
received from arbitrations. To date, the Ministry of Economic Affairs had not
published its compensation rules. Based on current assumptions, it is
anticipated that such rules will be published in 2003. If no compensation rules
have taken effect by December 31, 2003, REPGB is entitled, but not obligated,
to elect to seek compensation from the former shareholders, and as an
alternative, 1is also entitled to wait to make an election until regulations for
compensation are published.

Amendments to Stranded Cost Electricity Import Contracts. In May 2002, NEA
and its four shareholders (including REPGB) entered into agreements amending
the terms of the two remaining power supply agreements. These two contracts
provide for the following capacities and terms: (a) 300 MW through 2003, and
(b) 600 MW through March 2002, increasing to 750 MW through March 2009.

Under the terms of the settlement agreements, NEA paid the counterparties a
net aggregate payment of Euro 485 million, approximately $446 million (of which
REPGB's proportionate share as a NEA shareholder was Euro 109 million,
approximately $100 million). In July 2002, REPGB paid its share of the
settlement payment with funds from the stranded cost indemnity escrow account,
as discussed above. In exchange for its portion of the settlement payment, the
counterparties to the power contracts replaced the existing terms with a
market-based electricity price index for comparable electricity products in
addition to other changes.

RELIANT RESOURCES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
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As a result of the settlement agreements, in the second quarter of 2002, we
recognized a pre-tax net gain of $109 million for the difference between (a)
the fair values of the original power contracts ($203 million net liability
previously recorded in non-trading derivative liabilities) and the fair values
of the amended power contracts ($6 million net asset recorded in trading and
marketing assets) and (b) the settlement payment of $100 million, as described
above. The pre-tax net gain of $109 million was recorded as a reduction of
purchased power expense in the statement of consolidated operations in the
second quarter of 2002.

Remaining Liability for Original Stranded Cost. As of December 31, 2001, we
have recorded a liability of $369 million for our stranded cost gas and
electric commitments in non-trading derivative liabilities and a liability of
$206 million for our district heating commitments in current and non-current
other liabilities. As of December 31, 2002, we have recorded a liability of
$154 million for our stranded cost gas contract in non-trading derivative
liabilities, an asset of $8 million for our amended power contracts in trading
and marketing assets, and a liability of $224 million for our district heating
commitments in current and non-current other liabilities. As of December 31,
2001 and 2002, we have recorded an indemnification receivable for the district
heating stranded cost liability of $206 million and $224 million, respectively.

Pursuant to SFAS No. 133, we mark-to-market the stranded cost gas contract.
Prior to the amendments to the remaining two power contacts, pursuant to SFAS
No. 133, the power contracts were marked-to-market. Subsequent to amending the
remaining power contracts, the power contracts are marked-to-market as a part
of our energy trading activities. Pursuant to SFAS No. 133, during 2002, we
recognized a $19 million net gain recorded in fuel expense related to changes
in the valuation of the stranded cost contracts, excluding the effects of the
gain related to amending the two power contracts discussed above and net of
derivative transactions entered into to hedge the economics of the stranded
cost gas contract. The valuation of the gas contract could be affected by,
among other things, changes in the price of coal, low sulfur fuel oil and the
value of the U.S. dollar relative to the Euro.

NorNed Project. NEA entered into commitments with certain Norwegian
counterparties (the Norwegian Counterparties) for the construction of a grid
interconnector cable between the Netherlands and Norway, subject to the
operation of a long-term power exchange agreement (25 years in duration). The
power exchange agreement contemplates, among other terms, exclusive use and
cost free access to the cable by NEA and the Norwegian counterparties. The
power exchange agreement is subject to, among other things, clearance by the
European Commission and the Dutch regulatory authorities of the terms and
conditions of the power exchange agreement. In 2001, NEA and the Norwegian
counterparties filed a notification request regarding the power exchange
agreement with the European Commission. If the European Commission or the Dutch
regulatory authorities do not unconditionally clear the terms and conditions of
the cable construction agreement or the power exchange agreement, NEA and the
Norwegian counterparties contractually will initiate a formal renegotiation
period. If the parties cannot agree within the formal renegotiation period, the
cable and power exchange agreement obligations are terminated. Under the
Transition Act, NEA is entitled to recover the cable construction costs from
TenneT, the Netherlands grid operator. However, at this early stage it is
uncertain how NEA will receive the transport tariff funds intended to recover
the construction costs of the cable. Assuming that the Transition Act is fully
implemented with respect to this matter, REPGB believes that NEA will
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ultimately recover the cost of the cable.

Investment in NEA. During the second quarter of 2001, we recognized a $51
million pre-tax gain (NLG 125 million) recorded as equity income for the
preacquisition gain contingency related to the acquisition of REPGB for the
value of its equity investment in NEA. This gain was based on our evaluation of
NEA's financial position and fair value. The fair value of our investment in
NEA is dependent upon the ultimate resolution of its
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existing contingencies and proceeds received from liquidating its remaining net
assets. In addition, during 2001 in connection with the settlement of the
stranded cost indemnity, we recorded a $248 million increase in our investment
in NEA, as discussed above. In 2002, NEA distributed to REPGB Euro 141 million,
approximately $137 million. For additional information regarding our investment
in NEA, see note 8.

(k) Reliant Energy Desert Basin Contingency.

One of our subsidiaries, Reliant Energy Desert Basin (REDB), sells power to
Salt River Project (SRP) under a long-term power purchase agreement. Reliant
Resources guarantees certain of REDB's obligations under the agreement. In the
event we are downgraded to below investment grade by two major ratings
agencies, SRP can request performance assurance in the form of cash or a letter
of credit from REDB under the agreement or us under the guarantee. The total
amount of performance assurance cannot exceed $150 million. In September 2002,
following our downgrade to below investment grade by two rating agencies, SRP
requested performance assurance from us and REDB in the aggregate amount of
$150 million. We informed SRP that the agreement does not stipulate the amount
of performance assurance required in the event of a credit downgrade. We also
communicated to SRP that under prevailing market conditions and after giving
effect to other factors, a letter of credit in the amount of $3 million would
provide commercially reasonable assurance of REDB's ability to perform its
obligations under the agreement. Accordingly, we provided SRP with a $3 million
letter of credit. SRP subsequently notified us that it deemed the amount
inadequate and returned the letter of credit to us. SRP has alleged that we
breached the agreement by failing to provide the requested $150 million letter
of credit. We have communicated to SRP that we remain of the opinion that the
provision of a $3 million letter of credit fulfills the obligation of us and
REDB to provide performance assurance and that SRP would be in breach of the
agreement and liable to REDB for damages if it were to terminate the agreement
based on our refusal to provide performance assurance in the amount of $150
million. As of March 20, 2003, neither SRP nor we have taken steps to terminate
the agreement.

(1) Tolling Agreement for Liberty's Electric Generating Station.

The output of Liberty's electric generating station is contracted under a
tolling agreement between LEP and PG&E Energy Trading-Power, L.P. (PGET) for an
initial term through September 2016, with an option by PGET to extend the
initial term for an additional two years. Under the tolling agreement, PGET has
the exclusive right to receive all electric energy, capacity and ancillary
services produced by the Liberty generating station, and PGET must pay for all
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fuel used by the Liberty generating station.

The tolling agreement requires PGET to maintain guarantees, issued by
entities having investment grade credit ratings, for its obligations under the
tolling agreement. During 2002, several rating agencies downgraded to
sub-investment grade the debt of the two guarantors of PGET, PG&E National
Energy Group, Inc. and PG&E Gas Transmission Northwest Corp. Due to the fact
that PGET did not post replacement security within the period required under
the tolling agreement, the downgrade constitutes an event of default by PGET
under the tolling agreement. The Liberty credit facility restricts the ability
of LEP to terminate the tolling agreement. There is also a requirement in the
Liberty credit facility that Liberty and LEP enforce all of their respective
rights under the tolling agreement. Liberty and LEP have received a waiver from
the lenders under the Liberty credit facility from the requirement that they
enforce all of their respective rights under the tolling agreement. In return
for this waiver, Liberty and LEP have agreed that for the term of the waiver,
they would not be able to make draws on the working capital facility that is
available under the Liberty credit facility. The current waiver expires on
April 30, 2003. There is no assurance that Liberty and LEP will be able to
receive an extension of this waiver. If Liberty is unable to obtain an
extension to the waiver, then the lenders may claim that Liberty is in breach
and, if said breach is not cured, that there is an event of default under the
Liberty credit facility.
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In addition, on August 19, 2002, and September 10, 2002, PGET notified LEP
that it believed LEP had violated the tolling agreement by not following PGET's
instructions relating to the dispatch of the Liberty station during specified
periods. The September 10, 2002 letter also claims that LEP did not timely
provide PGET with certain information to make a necessary FERC filing. While
LEP does not agree with PGET's interpretation of the tolling agreement
regarding the dispatch issue, LEP agreed to (a) compensate PGET approximately
$17,000 for the alleged damages attributable to the claims raised in the August
19, 2002 letter and (b) treat several hours of plant outages as forced outages
for purposes of the tolling agreement, thereby resolving the issues raised in
the August 19 letter (which compensation and treatment are not believed to be
material) . The tolling agreement generally provides that covenant-related
defaults must be cured within 30 business days or they will (if material)
result in an event of default, entitling the non-defaulting party to terminate.
PGET has extended this cure period (relating to the September 10, 2002 letter)
to April 11, 2003. LEP has made the necessary FERC filing and is in
negotiations with PGET regarding financial settlement for this issue for
approximately $1 million. Further, LEP also believes that it has settled the
monetary impact of any violation relating to the dispatch issue. While there
can be no assurances as to the outcome of this matter, LEP believes that it
will be able to resolve the issues raised in the September 10, 2002 letter
without causing an event of default under the tolling agreement. However, if
LEP is unable to resolve the issues and PGET declares an event of default, then
PGET would be in a position to terminate the tolling agreement. In addition to
the material adverse effect such a termination would have on Liberty as
discussed below, such a termination may also result in PGET drawing on the $35
million letter of credit posted by Reliant Resources on behalf of LEP under the
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tolling agreement.

LEP currently receives a fixed monthly payment from PGET under the tolling
agreement. If the tolling agreement is terminated, (a) LEP would need to find a
power purchaser or tolling customer to replace PGET or sell the energy and/or
capacity in the merchant energy market and (b) the gas transportation agreement
that PGET utilizes in connection with the tolling agreement will revert to LEP,
and LEP will be required to perform the obligations currently being performed
by PGET under the gas transportation agreement, including the posting of $5
million in credit support.

No assurance can be given that LEP would have sufficient cash flow to pay
all of its expenses or enable Liberty to make interest and scheduled principal
payments under the Liberty credit facility as they become due if the tolling
agreement is terminated. The termination of the tolling agreement may cause
both Liberty and LEP to seek other alternatives, including reorganization under
the bankruptcy laws. We, including Orion Power, would not be in default under
our current debt agreements if any of these events occur at Liberty.

As of December 31, 2002, the combined net book value of LEP and Liberty was
$425 million, excluding the non-recourse debt obligations of $268 million.

In December 2002, we evaluated the Liberty station and the related tolling
agreement for impairment. Based on our analyses, there were no impairments. The
fair value of Liberty station was determined based on an income approach, using
future discounted cash flows; a market approach, using acquisition multiples,
including price per MW, based on publicly available data for recently completed
transactions; and a replacement cost approach. If the tolling agreement is
terminated and there is not a waiver from the lenders for this event of
default, it is possible the lender would initiate foreclosure proceedings
against LEP and Liberty. If the lenders foreclose on LEP and Liberty, we
believe we could incur a pre-tax loss of an amount up to our recorded net book
value with the potential of an additional loss due to an impairment of goodwill
allocated to LEP as a result of the foreclosure. Under the tolling agreement, a
non-defaulting party who terminates the tolling agreement is entitled to
calculate its damages in accordance with specified criteria; the non-defaulting
party is the only party entitled to damages. The defaulting party would be
entitled to refer such damage calculation to arbitration. The institution of
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any arbitration could delay the receipt of such damages for an extended period
of time. In addition, if PGET is the defaulting party, the payment of damages,
if any, could be further delayed if PGET and one or more of the guarantors of
PGET's obligations seeks protection from creditors under the bankruptcy laws.
Such filings also may result in LEP receiving significantly less in damages
than to which it might otherwise be entitled. In the event of a termination, if
PGET 1is the defaulting party and LEP is entitled to the payment of damages as a
result of the termination, any amounts recovered from PGET would be handled in
accordance with the Liberty credit facility. The most likely result is that the
damages would be paid into an account that is managed by the lenders under the
credit facility and LEP would not recover any of such damages.

(15) RECEIVABLES FACILITY
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In July 2002, we entered into a receivables facility arrangement with a
financial institution to sell an undivided interest in our accounts receivable
and accrued unbilled revenues from residential and small commercial retail
electric customers under which, on an ongoing basis, the financial institution
could invest a maximum of $250 million for its interest in such receivables. In
November 2002, the maximum amount of the receivables facility was reduced to
$200 million. In February 2003, this was further reduced to $125 million (see
below). This receivables facility expires July 2003 and may be renewed at our
option and the option of the financial institution participating in the
facility. If the receivables facility is not renewed on its termination date,
the collections from the receivables purchased will repay the financial
institution's investment and no new receivables will be purchased under the
receivables facility. There can be no assurance that the financial institution
participating in the receivables facility will agree to a renewal. The
receivables facility may be increased to an amount greater than $200 million on
a seasonal basis, subject to the availability of receivables and approval by
the participating financial institution.

We received net proceeds in an initial amount of $230 million at the
inception of this receivables facility. The amount of funding available to us
under the receivables facility will fluctuate based on the amount of
receivables available, which in turn, is effected by seasonal changes in demand
for electricity and by the performance of the receivables portfolio. As of
December 31, 2002, the amount of funding outstanding under our receivables
facility was $95 million.

Pursuant to the receivables facility, we formed a qualified special purpose
entity (QSPE), as a bankruptcy remote subsidiary. The QSPE was formed for the
sole purpose of buying and selling receivables generated by us. The QSPE is a
separate entity and its assets will be available first and foremost to satisfy
the claims of its creditors. We, irrevocably and without recourse, transfer
receivables to the QSPE. We continue to service the receivables and receive a
fee of 0.5% of cash collected. We received total fees of $8 million for the
year ended December 31, 2002. We have no servicing assets or liabilities,
because servicing fees are based on actual costs associated with collection of
accounts receivable. The QSPE, in turn, sells an undivided interest in these
receivables to the participating financial institution. We are not ultimately
liable for any failure of payment of the obligors on the receivables. We have,
however, guaranteed the performance obligations of the sellers and the
servicing of the receivables under the related documents.

The two-step transaction described in the above paragraph is accounted for
as a sale of receivables under the provisions of SFAS No. 140 "Accounting for
Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of
Liabilities," and as a result the related receivables are excluded from the
consolidated balance sheet. Cost associated with the sale of receivables, $10
million for the year ended December 31, 2002, primarily the discount and loss
on sale, is included in other expense in our statement of consolidated
operations. As of December 31, 2002, $277 million of the outstanding
receivables had been sold and the sales have been reflected as a reduction
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of accounts receivable in our consolidated balance sheet. We have a note
receivable from the QSPE of approximately $170 million at December 31, 2002,
which is included in the consolidated balance sheet. This note is calculated as
the amount of receivables sold to the QSPE, less the interest in the
receivables sold by the QSPE to the financial institution, and the equity
investment in the QSPE, which is equal to 3% of the receivables balance. At
December 31, 2002, the equity investment balance was $8 million.

The book value of the accounts receivable is offset by the amount of the
allowance for doubtful accounts and customer security deposits. A discount rate
of 5.40% was applied to projected cash collections over a 6-month period. Our
collection experience indicated that 98% of the accounts receivables would be
collected within a 6-month period.

On December 2, 2002, we notified the financial institution under the
receivables facility of two violations of certain compliance ratio tests that
are considered amortization events whereby the financial institution has the
right to ligquidate the receivables it owns to collect the total amount
outstanding under the terms of the receivables facility. On February 7, 2003,
we were granted an amendment to our receivables facility and a waiver of these
two compliance ratio violations from the financial institution. As part of the
amendment and waiver, the size of the receivables facility was reduced from
$200 million to $125 million.

In addition, an amortization event was added that requires us to attain by
February 17, 2003 either: (a) a consensual refinancing of certain credit
facilities or (b) another financing commitment. We received waivers of this
amortization event until March 31, 2003, at which time we refinanced certain
credit facilities, see note 21 (a).

(16) RELIANT ENERGY COMMUNICATIONS

During the third quarter of 2001, management decided to exit our
communications business that served as a facility-based competitive local
exchange carrier and Internet services provider and owned network operations
centers and managed data centers in Houston and Austin. Consequently, we
determined the goodwill associated with the communications business was
impaired. We recorded a total of $54 million of pre-tax disposal charges in the
third and fourth quarters of 2001. These charges included the write-off of
goodwill of $19 million, fixed asset impairments of $22 million, and severance
accruals and other incremental costs associated with exiting the communications
business, totaling $13 million.

(17) BANKRUPTCY OF ENRON CORP AND ITS AFFILIATES

During the fourth quarter of 2001, Enron filed a voluntary petition for
bankruptcy. Accordingly, we recorded an $85 million provision, comprised of
provisions against 100% of receivables of $88 million and net non-trading
derivative balances of $52 million, offset by our net trading and marketing
liabilities to Enron of $55 million.

The non-trading derivatives with Enron were designated as cash flow hedges
(see note 7). The unrealized net gain on these derivative instruments
previously reported in other comprehensive income will remain in accumulated
other comprehensive loss and will be reclassified into earnings during the
period in which the originally designated hedged transactions occur. During
2002, $52 million was reclassified into earnings related to these cash flow
hedges.

In early 2002, we commenced an action in the United States District Court to
recover from Enron Canada Corp., the only Enron party to our netting agreement
which is not in bankruptcy, the settlement amount of $78
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million, which resulted from netting amounts owed by and among the five Enron
parties and our applicable subsidiaries. In March 2002, the United States
District Court dismissed our claim and we appealed the decision to the United
States Court of Appeals for the Fifth Circuit (the Fifth Circuit). Oral
arguments were heard in March 2003.

At this time we cannot predict whether our appeal will be successful. The
United States District Court, however, did determine that netting of amounts
owed by and among our parties and the Enron parties was proper. This portion of
the United States District Court's ruling has not been appealed. In other
proceedings initiated by Enron in the Bankruptcy Court for the Southern
District of New York, Enron is alleging that netting agreements, such as the
one it signed with us, are unenforceable. This contention is not currently at
issue in our appeal pending in the Fifth Circuit. We cannot currently predict
whether Enron will contest the enforceability of its netting agreement with us,
nor the outcome of such dispute. In January 2003, Enron filed a complaint in
the Bankruptcy Court of Southern District New York claiming that it is owed $13
million from us and disputing the enforceability of our netting agreement. Our
answer to the filed complaint is due in April 2003. We believe our netting
agreement with the Enron entities is enforceable as found by the United States
District Court, and will continue to defend such opinion.

(18) ESTIMATED FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The fair values of financial instruments, including cash and cash
equivalents, certain short-term and long-term borrowings (excluding any
fixed-rate debt and other borrowings as discussed below), trading and marketing
assets and liabilities (see note 7), and non-trading derivative assets and
liabilities (see note 7), are equivalent to their carrying amounts in the
consolidated balance sheets. The fair values of trading and marketing assets
and liabilities and non-trading derivative assets and liabilities as of
December 31, 2001 and 2002 have been determined using quoted market prices for
the same or similar instruments when available or other estimation techniques,
see note 7.

As of December 31, 2001, the carrying value of our fixed-rate debt of $121
million equaled the market value. The carrying value and related market wvalue
of our fixed-rate debt, excluding Liberty's fixed-rate debt of $165 million,
was $637 million and $448 million, respectively, as of December 31, 2002. The
market value of our fixed-rate debt is based on our incremental borrowing rates
for similar types of borrowing arrangements. There was no active market for the
fixed-rate Liberty debt of $165 million as of December 31, 2002. Due to our
current situation with Liberty (see note 14(1)), if the holder of our
fixed-rate debt of $165 million were to have tried to sell such debt instrument
to a third party, the price which could have been realized could be
substantially less than the face value of the debt instrument and substantially
less than our carrying value as of December 31, 2002.

As of December 31, 2002, we have floating-rate debt with a carrying value of

$6.7 billion. There was no active market for our floating-rate debt obligations
as of December 31, 2002. Given our current liquidity and credit situation as of
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December 31, 2002, if the holders of these borrowings were to have tried to
sell such debt instruments to third parties, the prices which could have been
realized could be substantially less than the face values of the debt
instruments and substantially less than our carrying values.

(19) RESTATED UNAUDITED QUARTERLY INFORMATION

Beginning with the quarter ended September 30, 2002, we now report all
energy trading and marketing activities on a net basis in the statements of
consolidated operations. For information regarding the presentation
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of trading and marketing activities on a net basis, see notes 2(t) and 7. The
effect of the change to reporting on a net basis on previously reported
quarterly information is discussed in note 1 to the table below. Accordingly,
the unaudited quarterly information for the interim periods for 2001 and the
interim periods ended March 31, 2002 and June 30, 2002 have been reclassified
to conform to this presentation. During the third quarter of 2002, we completed
the transitional impairment test for the adoption of SFAS No. 142 on our
consolidated financial statements, including the review of goodwill for
impairment as of January 1, 2002 (see note 6). Based on this impairment test,
we recorded an impairment of our European energy segment's goodwill of $234
million, net of tax. This impairment loss was recorded retroactively as a
cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle for the quarter ended
March 31, 2002.

In addition, as discussed in note 1, the consolidated financial statements
for 2001 have been restated from amounts previously reported and we
miscalculated the amount of hedge ineffectiveness for the first three quarters
of 2002 for hedging instruments entered into prior to the adoption SFAS No.
133. In addition, we did not record the amount of ineffectiveness for any
hedging instruments during the first three quarters of 2001. As a result, the
unaudited quarterly information for each of the quarters in 2001 and the first
three quarters of 2002 have been restated from amounts previously reported. The
restatement had no impact on previously reported consolidated operating,
investing and financing cash flows for 2001 or 2002. The following is a summary
of the principal effects of the restatement for unaudited quarterly information
for the quarters ended March 31, 2001 and 2002, June 30, 2001 and 2002,
September 30, 2001 and 2002, and December 31, 2001: (Note--Those line items for
which no change in amounts are shown were not affected by the restatement.)

Year Ended December 31, 2001

First Quarter Second Qua
As
As Previously As Prev

Restated Reported(l) Restated Repo

(in millions)
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ROV ENUE St 4 v v et et ettt ee e et aeeee e eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeennnn $1,393 $1,410
JIR =T i o e T (1= ok B 0 o = 119 119
TOtaAl FOVENMUE S . v vt ittt ettt ettt eeeteeeeeeeneeeaeeeeeeaeeaens 1,512 1,529
Operating InCOmME. & vt ittt ittt e e et ettt ettt e et eeaeeeeeean 97 114
Income before income taxes and cumulative effect of accounting
[0 2 = 1'a Y 1 93 110
TNCOME LAX EXPEIIS e v v v v e et et e e e e e e e aeeeeeeseeaeeeeeeseeaeeens 25 31
Income before cumulative effect of accounting change.......... 68 79
Net dnCOmME. @ittt ettt ittt ettt it 71 82
Basic Earnings Per Share:
Income before cumulative effect of accounting change....... $ 0.28 $ 0.33
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax......... 0.01 0.01
Net InCOmME. vttt ittt e e e e ettt et e ettt $ 0.29 $ 0.34
Diluted Earnings Per Share:
Income before cumulative effect of accounting change....... $ 0.28 $ 0.33
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax......... 0.01 0.01
Net InCOmMe. ot ittt et e e e et et e ettt $ 0.29 $ 0.34
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Year Ended December 31,

2001

Ur

Third Quarter
As
As Previously

Restated Reported(1l)

ROV BN S e v v v ettt ettt e aeee et e eeeeeeeeeeeseeeeeeeenneeens $2,473
Trading MarginS . @ e e i e ittt ittt e ettt e et eneeeeeeneanns 62
TOtaAl FOVENUE S . v vt ettt ettt et tette e eeeeneeeeeeeeeneeaens 2,535
Operating IncCome (1OSS) c v v vttt tn ettt eneeeeeeeenneenns 425
Income (loss) before income taxes and cumulative effect of
accoUNnting Change . .. i ittt i ittt ittt ettt e eeeeeeeeeennn 437
Income tax expense (benefit) ........ i iiiiinneeeennn 175
Income before cumulative effect of accounting change...... 262
Net dNCOME . i ittt ittt e et e e e e e e ettt ee ettt e 262
Basic Earnings Per Share:
Income before cumulative effect of accounting change... $ 0.87

Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax..... -

Net INCOME . vt ittt ettt e e e et eeeee e eeeeeeenaeeeeseenn $ 0.87

(in mil
$2,400
62

As Previous
Restated Reported

lions)

$ 738
57

(25)
(39)
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Diluted Earnings Per Share:
Income before cumulative effect of accounting change...
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax.....

Net InCome. . i ittt it e et e e e e et e et e e et eeaeeens

L ST o 5
JER o= T i o o T (1= ok o =

ToLal FOVEMUES . ittt ittt ittt ittt ittt ettt eeennnnas
General, administrative and development.............iieieeen..
Operating InCOmME . & vt ittt ittt e e e ettt e e et ee e eeaeeeeee e
Income before income taxes and cumulative effect of accounting

TNCOME TaAX EXPEIMS . ittt ittt ittt ettt ittt ettt ettt ettt
Income before cumulative effect of
Net (L1OSS) INCOME . vt ittt e ettt ettt et ettt ettt et eeeeeeenenens
Basic Earnings (Loss) Per Share:
Income before cumulative effect
Cumulative effect of accounting

of accounting change.......
change, net of tax.........
Net (10SS) INCOME . v it it ittt et et et ettt et ettt e teeeeenenn
Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share:
Income before cumulative effect
Cumulative effect of accounting

of accounting change.......
change, net of tax.........
InCome. .ttt e e

Net (loss)

RELIANT RESOURCES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Ended December 31, 2002

As
As Previously
Restated Reported(1l)

As Prev
Restated Repo

(in millions)

$1,754 $1,755 $2,226 $2
53 53 119
1,807 1,808 2,345 2
113 113 167
165 166 329
138 139 279
42 42 104
96 97 175
(138) (137) 175
$ 0.33 $ 0.34 $ 0.61 $
(0.81) (0.81) ——
$(0.48) $(0.47) $ 0.61 $
$ 0.33 $ 0.34 $ 0.60 $
(0.81) (0.81) ——
$(0.48) $(0.47) $0
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Year Ended December

Third Quarter
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As
Restated
ROV NI S e 4 v v e e e e e et et e e e e et aeee e eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeennneens $5,225
J o= T i o X B (1= ol B o = 119
IOt Al VMU S e v v v et vt ettt e e et e et eeeeeeoeeeeeeneeeeeeneeeneeeeeeeneeneean 5,344
General, administrative and development .. ... ...ttt iiiii it tteneeneeeeennenns 224
Operating INCOME (LOSS) v vttt it ittt et ittt e ee e ettt eeeeeeeseeaeeeeeeeeeneeens 271
Income (loss) before income taxes and cumulative effect of accounting change 189
Income tax expense (benefit) ...ttt ittt ittt ettt ee e et eaeaeeeeen 138
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of accounting change................. 51
Net INCOME (108 S) vttt ittt ittt e ettt et et et ettt ettt et ettt eeeennnn 51
Basic Earnings (Loss) Per Share:
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of accounting change.............. $ 0.17
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax.........ciiiiien.. -
NEet INCOME (105 S) v vttt ittt ettt et ettt ettt ettt eeeeeeeeeeeeeeneenns $ 0.17

Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share:
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of accounting change.............. $ 0.17
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax.........ciiiin.. -

NEet INCOME (105 S) v vttt ittt et ettt et ettt et ettt eeeeeeeeeeeeeeneenns $ 0.17

(1) Beginning with the quarter ended September 30, 2002, we now report all
energy trading and marketing activities on a net basis as allowed by EITF
No. 98-10. Comparative financial statements for prior periods have been
reclassified to conform to this presentation. For information regarding the
presentation of trading and marketing activities on a net basis, see Note
2(t). Revenues, fuel and cost of gas sold expense and purchased power
expense have been reclassified to conform to this presentation.
Accordingly, the unaudited quarterly information for each of the interim
periods for 2001 and the interim periods ended March 31, 2002 and June 30,
2002 has been reclassified to conform to this presentation. The effect on
revenues was a net reduction of $7.1 billion, $6.2 billion, $6.3 billion
and $5.0 billion for the interim periods ended March 31, 2001, June 30,
2001, September 30, 2001 and December 31, 2001, respectively. The effect on
revenues was a net reduction of $5.2 billion and $6.2 billion for the
interim periods ended March 31, 2002 and June 30, 2002, respectively.

The quarterly operating results incorporate the results of operations of
Orion Power from our February 2002 acquisition date as discussed in note 5(a).
The variances in revenues from quarter to quarter for 2001 and 2002 were
primarily due to (a) the Orion Power acquisition (for 2002 only), (b) the
seasonal fluctuations in demand for electric energy and energy services, (c)
changes in energy commodity prices and (d) hedge ineffectiveness related to
certain long-term forward contracts for the sale of power in the California
market through December 2006 (for 2001 only). Changes in operating income
(loss) and net income (loss) from quarter to quarter for 2001 and 2002 were
primarily due to:

the seasonal fluctuations in demand for electric energy and energy
services;

changes in energy commodity prices;

Previously
Reported
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the timing of maintenance expenses on electric generation plants; and
provisions related to energy sales and refunds in California.
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In addition, operating income and net income changed from quarter to quarter
in 2001 by:

Also,

a $100 million pre-tax, non-cash charge in the first quarter of 2001
relating to the redesign of some of CenterPoint's benefits plans in
anticipation of our separation;

write-offs recorded in the fourth quarter of 2001 related to Enron of $85
million;

$54 million pre-tax charges in 2001 related to exiting the communications
business;

hedge ineffectiveness related to certain long-term forward contracts for
the sale of power in the California market through December 2006;

a $51 million pre-tax gain in the second quarter of 2001 related to the
valuation of our interest in NEA; and

a $37 million gain on the stranded cost indemnification settlement in the
fourth quarter of 2001.

operating income (loss) and net income (loss) changed from quarter to
quarter in 2002 by:

the impact of the Orion Power acquisition;

a $128 million accrual recorded in the third and fourth quarters of 2002
for a payment to CenterPoint;

a one-time $109 million pre-tax gain resulting from the amendment of our
stranded cost electricity supply contracts in the second quarter of 2002;

a $47 million pre-tax, non-cash charge in the third quarter of 2002
relating to the accounting settlement of certain benefit obligations
associated with our separation from CenterPoint;

impairment charges of $32 million pre-tax relating to certain cost method
investments ($27 million pre-tax in the fourth quarter) in 2002;

change in refund reserves, credit provisions and interest income (all
net) of gain (loss) recognized of $33 million, $(29) million, $(15)
million and $(98) million (all pre-tax) in the first, second, third and
fourth quarters, respectively, during 2002 related to energy sales in the
California wholesale market in 2000 and 2001 (see note 14 (i));

costs related to plant cancellations and equipment impairments in the
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second and third quarters of 2002;

a $45 million tax accrual on future distributions from NEA in the third
quarter of 2002 (only impacted net loss);

a cumulative effect of an accounting change of $234 million, net of tax,
in the first quarter of 2002 (only impacted net loss); and

a $482 million goodwill impairment of our European energy segment in the
fourth quarter of 2002.

(20) REPORTABLE SEGMENTS

We have identified the following reportable segments: retail energy,
wholesale energy, European energy and other operations. For descriptions of the
financial reporting segments, see note 1. In February 2003, we signed a share
purchase agreement to sell our European energy operations. See note 21 (b) for
further discussion. Our determination of reportable segments considers the
strategic operating units under which we manage sales, allocate resources and
assess performance of various products and services to wholesale or retail
customers.

RELIANT RESOURCES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-- (Continued)
For the Three Years Ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002

Financial information for Orion Power and REMA are included in the segment
disclosures only for periods beginning on their respective acquisition dates.
Beginning in the first quarter of 2002, we began to evaluate segment
performance on earnings (loss) before interest expense, interest income and
income taxes (EBIT). Prior to 2002, we evaluated performance on operating
income. EBIT is not defined under accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America (GAAP), and should not be considered in isolation
or as a substitute for a measure of performance prepared in accordance with
GAAP and is not indicative of operating income (loss) from operations as
determined under GAAP. There were no material intersegment revenues during
2000, 2001 and 2002.

Long-lived assets include net property, plant and equipment, net goodwill,
net other intangibles and equity investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries.

Financial data for business segments, products and services and geographic
areas are as follows:

Retail Wholesale European Other
Energy Energy Energy Operations Elimination

As of and for the year ended December 31, 2000:

Revenues from external customersS............ S 64 $ 2,601 S 544 S 6 s —
Trading MarginS . . u.e et e e et et et eenneneeeeens - 198 2 - -
Depreciation and amortization............... 4 108 76 6 -
Operating (loss) income........o.ooieeeeennnn. (70) 505 84 (61) ——
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)2 (70) 572 89 (83) -
Total ASSEL S it ittt ettt et ettt teeeeeeean 131 10,766 2,473 105 ——
Equity investments in unconsolidated

subsidiaries.....coi ittt - 109 - - -
Expenditures for long-lived assets.......... 22 1,966 995 59 -

As of and for the year ended December 31, 2001:

Revenues from external customers............ 114 5,382 623 11 -
Trading MarginS . . u .ot e e ettt eeeeeneeeeens 74 304 (9) —= —=
Depreciation and amortization............... 11 118 76 42 -
Operating (loss) income........o.oiieeeeennnn. (13) 907 56 (180) ——
Y (13) 916 113 (158) -—
Total assetsS. .ttt et 391 7,671 3,380 645 (368)
Equity investments in unconsolidated

subsidiaries......c. ittt - 88 299 - -
Expenditures for long-lived assets.......... 117 658 21 44 -

As of and for the year ended December 31, 2002:

Revenues from external customers............ 4,201 6,433 611 3 ——
Trading MarginS . . u et i e et et eeeneneeeeens 152 137 21 - -
European energy goodwill impairment......... - - 482 - -
Depreciation and amortization............... 26 337 58 15 -
Operating income (lOSS) ¢ vv vt iimeeeeeeennnnn 524 24 (371) (57) ——
Y 520 68 (356) (80) -
Total ASSEL S it it ittt it et ettt eeeeeeean 1,517 12,803 2,811 916 (410)
Equity investments in unconsolidated

subsidiaries. ...ttt e e - 103 210 - -
Expenditures for long-lived assets.......... 33 3,495 19 77 -
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As of and for the Year
December 31,

Reconciliation of Operating Income to EBIT and EBIT to Net Income (Loss):

(0] ST ar= R w15 L S 1o Yo 11Ot $ 458 S 770 $
(Losses) gains from investments, Net.........iiiiiiiiititeeneeeeeannnn (17) 22

Income of equity investment of unconsolidated subsidiaries............ 43 57

Other INCOME, NETL . i ittt it ittt ettt ettt ettt eeeteeeeeeeneeaeeeeenan 24 9

0= 0 0 Ot 508 858

B o o et oY A D T o 1= (42) (63) (
I o o et Y A 6 o Yo ) 1O 18 27
Interest (expense) income--affiliated companies, net.................. (173) 12

Income (loss) before income taxes and cumulative effect of accounting
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[ 912 o L 1 311 834 (
TNCOME LAX EXPEINS e t v e e e ettt aee e e e et e aoeeeeeseeaneeeeeeeeeaeeeeeeeens (95) (274) (
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax.................... - 3 (
Extraordinary item, net o0f faX... ...ttt eeeeeeeenneeeennens 7 -

Net INCOME (LOSS) vt ittt ittt ettt ettt e et ettt e et eseeeeeeeeeeeeens S 223 S 563 S (
Revenues by Products and Services:
Retail energy producCts and SEerViCeS. ...t ieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeennneeeeens S 64 S 114 S 4,
Wholesale energy and energy related Sales.....c..iii it ieeeneeeeeannnn 3,205 6,005 7,
Energy £rading mMarginS . @ e et i i et ettt teeee e eeaeeeeeeseeaneeeeneens 200 369
L 0T 6 11
ol $3,475 $6,499 $11,
Revenues and Long-Lived Assets by Geographic Areas:
Revenues:

United States (L) vttt et e e e et e e e e et ettt e $2,911 $5,908 $1o0,

NetNer Lands (2) v v vttt it et ettt et ettt et ettt ettt ettt eeeeeeeeaenennn 546 614

[GF='o Y=Y = (15 1 T 18 (23)

i $3,475 $6,499 $11,
Long-lived assets:
L850 e =Y B it i == $3,078 $3,728 $ 9,
Nether lands . v v u ittt it ettt et e ettt ettt ettt eeeeeeeeeeeaeeaeeeneaan 2,371 2,424 1,
i $5,449 $6,152 $11,

(1) For 2000, 2001 and 2002, revenues include trading margins of $180 million,

$401 million and $284 million, respectively.
(2) For 2000, 2001 and 2002, revenues include trading margins of $2 million,
($9) million and $21 million, respectively.
(3) For 2000, 2001 and 2002, revenues include trading margins of $18 million,
($23) million and $5 million, respectively.
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(21) SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

(a) Domestic Refinancings.
During March 2003, we refinanced our (a)

credit facilities (see note 9(a)), (b)
term loan (see note 9(a)), and (c)

$1.6 billion senior revolving

$2.9 billion 364-day Orion acquisition
$1.425 billion construction agency financing
commitment (see note 14 (b)), and we obtained a new $300 million senior priority
revolving credit facility. The refinancing combined the existing credit
facilities into a $2.1 billion senior secured revolving credit facility, a $921
million senior secured term loan, and a $2.91 billion senior secured term loan.
The refinanced credit facilities mature in March 2007. The $300 million senior
priority revolving credit facility matures on the earlier of our acquisition of
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Texas Genco or December 15, 2004. The $300 million senior priority revolving
credit facility is secured with a first lien on substantially all of our
contractually and legally available assets. The other facilities totaling $5.93
billion are secured with a second lien on such assets. Our subsidiaries
guarantee both the refinanced credit facilities and the senior priority
revolving credit facility to the extent contractually and legally permitted.

In connection with the refinancing, we were required to make a prepayment of
$350 million under the senior revolving credit facility. This prepayment was
made from cash on hand and is available to be reborrowed under the senior
revolving credit facility. We must use the proceeds of any loans under the
senior priority revolving credit facility solely to secure or prepay our
ongoing commercial and trading obligations and not for other general corporate
or working capital purposes. We must use the proceeds of any loans under the
other senior revolving credit facility solely for working capital and other
general corporate purposes. We are not permitted to use the proceeds from loans
under any of these facilities to acquire Texas Genco.

The loans under the refinanced credit facilities bear interest at LIBOR plus
4.0% or a base rate plus 3.0% and the loans under the senior priority revolving
credit facility bear interest at LIBOR plus 5.5% or a base rate plus 4.5%. If
the refinanced credit facilities are not permanently reduced by $500 million,
$1.0 billion and $2.0 billion (cumulatively) by May 2004, 2005 and 2006,
respectively, we must pay a fee ranging from 0.50% to 1.0% of the amount of the
refinanced credit facilities still outstanding on each such date. Additionally,
we are required to make principal prepayments on the refinanced facilities (a)
of $500 million by no later than May 2006 and (b) with proceeds from certain
asset sales and issuances of securities and with certain cash flows in excess
of a threshold amount. Both the refinanced credit facilities and the new senior
priority revolving credit facility are evidenced by the same credit agreement,
which contains numerous financial, affirmative, and negative covenants.
Financial covenants include maintaining a debt to earnings before interest,
taxes, depreciation, amortization and rent (EBITDAR) ratio of a certain maximum
amount and a EBITDAR to interest ratio of a certain minimum amount. Our March
2003 credit facilities restrict our ability to take specific actions, subject
to numerous exceptions that are designed to allow for the execution of our
business plans in the ordinary course, including the completion of all four of
the power plants currently under construction, the preservation and
optimization of all of our existing investments in the retail energy and
wholesale energy businesses, the ability to provide credit support for our
commercial obligations and the possible exercise of the option to acquire a
majority interest in Texas Genco, and the financings related thereto. Such
restrictions include our ability to (a) encumber our assets, (b) enter into
business combinations or divest our assets, (c) incur additional debt or engage
in sale and leaseback transactions, (d) pay dividends or prepay other debt, (e)
make investments or acquisitions, (f) enter into transactions with affiliates,
(g) make capital expenditures, (h) materially change our business, (i) amend
our debt and other material agreements, (j) issue, sell or repurchase our
capital stock, (k) allow distributions from our subsidiaries and (1) engage in
certain types of trading activities. These covenants are not anticipated to
materially restrict our ability to borrow funds or obtain letters of credit
under the refinanced credit facilities or the senior priority credit facility.
We must be in compliance with each of the covenants before we can
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For the Three Years Ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002

borrow under the revolving credit facilities. Our failure to comply with these
covenants could result in an event of default that, if not cured or waived,
could result in us being required to repay these borrowings before their due
date.

In connection with our March 2003 refinancing, we issued to the lenders
warrants to acquire shares of our common stock that would represent 6.5% of our
outstanding shares effective as of March 28, 2003 on a fully-diluted basis
(after giving effect to such warrants). The exercise prices of the warrants are
based on average market prices of our common stock during specified periods in
proximity to the refinancing date. Of this 6.5%, warrants equal to 2.5% vested
in March 2003, 2% will vest if the refinanced credit facilities have not been
reduced by an aggregate of $1.0 billion by May 2005 and the remaining 2% will
vest if the refinanced credit facilities have not been reduced by an aggregate
of $2.0 billion by May 2006. The warrants are exercisable for a period of five
years from the date they become vested.

We incurred approximately $150 million in financing costs (which excludes
$15 million to be paid at maturity) and expensed approximately $33 million (of
which $11 million was expensed in 2002 and $22 million was expensed in 2003) in
fees and other costs related to our refinancing efforts.

(b) Sale of Our European Energy Operations.

In February 2003, we signed a share purchase agreement to sell our European
energy operations to N.V. Nuon (Nuon), a Netherlands-based electricity
distributor. Upon consummation of the sale, we expect to receive cash proceeds
from the sale of approximately $1.2 billion (Euro 1.1 billion). The sales price
is denominated in Euros; however, we have hedged our foreign currency exposure
of our net investment in our European energy operations. See below for further
discussion of the hedges. As additional consideration for the sale, we will
also receive 90% of the dividends and other distributions in excess of
approximately $115 million (Euro 110 million) paid by NEA to REPGB following
the consummation of the sale. The purchase price payable at closing assumes
that our European energy operations will have, on the sale consummation date,
net cash of at least $121 million (Euro 115 million). If the amount of net cash
is less on such date, the purchase price will be reduced accordingly.

We intend to use the cash proceeds from the sale first to prepay the Euro
600 million bank term loan borrowed by Reliant Energy Capital (Europe), Inc. to
finance a portion of the acquisition costs of our European energy operations.
The maturity date of the credit facility, which originally was scheduled to
mature in March 2003, has been extended (see notes 9(a) and 21(c)). We intend
to use the remaining cash proceeds of approximately $0.5 billion (Euro 0.5
billion) to partially fund our option to acquire Texas Genco in 2004 (see note
4 (b)) . However, if we do not exercise the option, we will use the remaining
cash proceeds to prepay debt.

The sale is subject to the approval of the Dutch and German competition
authorities. We anticipate that the consummation of the sale will occur in the
summer of 2003. No assurance can be given that we will obtain the approval of
the Dutch and German competition authorities or that such approvals can be
obtained in a timely manner.

As of December 31, 2002, our European energy operations had current assets
of $650 million, net property, plant and equipment of $1.6 billion, other
long-term assets of $429 million, $1.1 billion of current liabilities
(including debt of $631 million), long-term debt of $37 million and other
long-term liabilities of $676 million. These amounts exclude net intercompany
receivables and payables that will not be purchased by Nuon. We recognized a
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loss of approximately $0.4 billion in the first quarter of 2003 in connection
with the anticipated sale. We do not anticipate that there will be a Dutch or
United States income tax benefit realized by us as a result of
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this loss. We will recognize contingent payments, if any, in earnings upon
receipt. In the first quarter of 2003, we began to report the results of our
European energy operations as discontinued operations in accordance with SFAS
No. 144. For information regarding goodwill impairments of our European energy
segment recognized in the first and fourth quarters of 2002 of $234 million and
$482 million, respectively, see note 6.

In March 2003, we adjusted the hedge of our net investment in our European
energy operations to Euro 1.5 billion by selling foreign currency options of
Euro 400 million and purchasing Euro 520 million of foreign currency options
which expire in June 2003.

(c) Extension of Euro 600 Million Bank Term Loan Facility.

In March 2003, we reached an agreement with our lenders to extend the
maturity date of the Euro 600 million bank term loan facility of Reliant Energy
Capital (Europe), Inc., originally scheduled to mature on March 3, 2003. Based
on the terms of the extension, we will repay this term loan on the first to
occur of (a) completion of the above mentioned sale of our European energy
operations to Nuon, (b) December 31, 2003 and (c) the earlier of the maturity
dates of the two REPGB facilities, which are both July 2003, as they may be
extended. If the sale of our European energy operations does not occur prior to
July 2003, we will be required to repay this term loan in July 2003 unless
prior to that date we are able to obtain an extension of REPGB's credit
facilities. If the sale of our European energy operations does not close prior
to the maturity of these facilities, REPGB anticipates extending these credit
facilities.

In order to extend the Euro 600 million facility, we provided the following
additional security to the lenders:

a guarantee of the facility from Reliant Energy (Europe), Inc.;

security over certain intercompany payables from our European energy
operations (a portion of which will be repaid at consummation of the
sale) and the bank accounts into which Nuon will deposit the cash
proceeds of the sale; and

a pledge of 65% of the shares in Reliant Energy Europe B.V., the holding
company of our European energy operations, which pledge will be released
upon the consummation of the sale.

In addition, we agreed to increase the interest rate under this credit
facility to EURIBOR plus a margin of 4.0% per year, 2.0% of which is payable
monthly and 2.0% of which will be paid in the event that the sale of our
European energy operations to Nuon does not occur. We pre-funded interest under
the facility through a security account, initially in an amount of
approximately $18 million (Euro 17 million) and, thereafter, we will replenish

125



Edgar Filing: RELIANT RESOURCES INC - Form 10-K/A

this account in an amount equal to at least two months' interest service
coverage under the facility.

(d) Price to Beat Fuel Factor Adjustment.

In March 2003, the PUCT approved our request to increase the price to beat
fuel factor for residential and small commercial customers based on a 23.4%
increase in the price of natural gas from our previous increase in December
2002. The approved increase was based on a 10 trading-day, average forward
12-month natural gas price of $4.956 per MMbtu (one million British thermal
units) . The increase represents an 8.2% increase in the total bill of a
residential customer using an average 12,000 kilowatt hours per year. For
additional information regarding the current price to beat fuel factor, see
note 14 (f).

RELTIANT RESOURCES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
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(e) Interest Rate Caps.

During January 2003, we purchased three-month LIBOR interest rate caps to
hedge our future floating rate risk associated with various credit facilities.
We have hedged $4.0 billion for the period from July 1 to December 31, 2003,
$3.0 billion for 2004 and $1.5 billion for 2005. The LIBOR interest rates are
capped at a weighted average rate of 2.06% for the period from July 1 to
December 31, 2003, 3.18% for 2004 and 4.35% for 2005. These interest rate caps

qualify for hedge accounting under SFAS No. 133 with any changes in fair market

value recorded to other comprehensive income (loss).
(f) Cash Collateralized Letter of Credit Facility.

In January 2003, we entered into a $200 million cash-secured, revolving
letter of credit facility with a financial institution. Outstanding letters of

credit are required to be 103% cash collateralized. Under the facility, letters
of credit may be issued until January 29, 2004 and may remain outstanding until

January 29, 2005. The facility is not cross-defaulted to any other facility.
The facility agreement contains certain limited affirmative and negative
covenants, but no financial covenants. This letter of credit facility is
subject to monthly letter of credit and unused lines fees that are calculated
on the outstanding letters of credit and the unused commitment, respectively.

RELIANT RESOURCES, INC.

SCHEDULE I-—-CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT CONDENSED STATEMENTS
OF OPERATIONS
(Thousands of Dollars)
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Year Ended December 31,

2001 2002
(Expenses) Income:
General, administrative and depreciation, net..........iiiiiie.. $(104,382) $ (53,596)
Equity in earnings (loss) of investments in subsidiaries............ 567,032 (523,524)
Foreign currency translation loss from intercompany note receivable. (15,839) —=
B N o Y A D oYY 1 (9,625) (116,197)
Interest INCOmME. . v it ittt it e it e et ettt ettt ee e teeteeeeeeeaeeeeeenens - 8,628
Interest income—-—-CenterPoint, nNet..... ...ttt tneteneeneennnn 2,523 2,657
Interest income--subsidiaries, Net.......c.ii ittt tintneeneeneennnn 126,576 103,322
Income (L0SS) Before INCOME TaAXe S . v v vt it v e eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeneeen 566,285 (578,710)
Income Tax (Expense) Benef it . ... ...ttt ttteeeeeeeeneeeeeeeeanens (2,934) 18,898
NEt TNCOME (LSS ) vt v ittt ettt ettt ettt ettt eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeneeenenneen $ 563,351 $(559,812)

See Notes to the Condensed Financial Statements and Reliant Resources'
Consolidated Financial Statements

ITI-1

RELIANT RESOURCES, INC.

SCHEDULE I-—-CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT
CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS
(Thousands of Dollars)

December 31

2001
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalent s . . ...ttt ittt ettt ettt ettt aeeeeeeeeeaanens S 1,262
Advances to and notes receivable from subsidiaries, net......... ... 371,894
Accounts and notes receivable from CenterPoint, net.........ciiiiiiiiennenn. 386,186
Federal income tax recelvable. ... ...ttt ittt ittt teeeeeeeeenaeaeens -
Accumulated deferred 1NCOME LaAXES . . i i it ittt tteeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeenneeeeeeens -
Prepayments and other CcuUrrent assSelsS. .. ... i ittt ittt ittt etneeeeeeeenneeeens 1,141
Total CUTLTreNt ASSEE S . i ittt ittt ittt ettt ettt et teeeeeeeeeeneeaaeenns 760,483
Property, Plant and Equipment, net ... ...ttt iiiiin ittt eneeeeeeeeaeeeeeneens 59,140
Other Assets:
Advances to and notes receivable from subsidiaries, net......... .. ... 2,537,233
Investments in sUbsidiarie s . vttt ettt ettt et et ettt teeeeeeeneean 2,751,700
Accumulated deferred INCOME LaAXE S . i i i ittt ettt eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeneeeeeeneennn 17,148
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Restricted Cash. ...ttt i ittt e e e et e et et ettt et e e -

[ o o T 36,806
Total OLher ASSel S . i i ittt ittt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt e eeeaeeaaennns 5,342,887 8,3
I it AN T $6,162,510 $10,0

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current Liabilities:

Current portion of long—term debt .. ...ttt ittt eeeeeeeeeeeeeeennnnnans S -- S 3
Accounts and other PayvablesS . ...t ittt ittt ettt ettt ettt 77,540
L o0 o L 26,269
Total current 1iabilitie s . v i ittt ittt ittt ettt ettt aeeeeeenns 103,809 4
Benefit Obligations and Other Liabilities.......iiiiiiitiineeeeeeennenneeennn 75,069
BT Y o X S o e LI D 1Y o ) O - 3,9

Commitments and Contingencies (note 5)
Stockholders' Equity:
Preferred stock; par value $0.001 per share (125,000,000 shares authorized;

None OULSTANAING) v v v ittt ittt et e e e e e e e et e e ettt e e e —=
Common Stock, par value $0.001 per share (2,000,000,000 shares authorized;

299,804,000 1SSUECA) + vt vttt ettt et teeeeeeeeaeeeeeeeeeeeaeeeeeeeeeeennaeeeens 61
Additional paid—In Capital. ...ttt ittt ittt ettt e e e e 5,789,869 5,8
Treasury stock at cost, 11,000,000 and 9,198,766 shares.......cuoueuieeeeeennnsn (189,460) (1
Retained Earning S . . i ittt it ittt e e ettt ettt e et e 563,351
Accumulated other CompPrehensSive 10SS . i it ittt ittt ettt teeeeeeeeeeneeeeeenens (180,189) (

StoCkholders ' EQUILY . vt ittt ittt e e e e ettt e et e e et e e 5,983,632 5,6
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' EQUItY....ei it ien e eennnnn. $6,162,510 $10,0

See Notes to the Condensed Financial Statements and Reliant Resources'
Consolidated Financial Statements
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RELIANT RESOURCES, INC.

SCHEDULE I-—-CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT CONDENSED STATEMENTS
OF CASH FLOWS
(Thousands of Dollars)

Year Ended Dece

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
NEt INCOME (LSS ) v vttt ittt et ettt e et ettt ettt et eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeneennn S 563,351 S
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities:
Deferred 1NCOME LaAXE St i v it it it ettt ettt et ettt e et e e eeeeeeeeeeeeeeaeeenen (39,840)
Equity in (earnings) loss of investment in subsidiaries.................. (567,032)

128



Edgar Filing: RELIANT RESOURCES INC - Form 10-K/A

Curtailment and related benefit enhancement

Accounting settlement for certain benefit plans..........c.iiiiiiiiiinee..
Ineffectiveness of interest rate hedges
[ 3 58 o 1l o 1 Y
Changes in other assets and liabilities:

Receivables from subsidiaries, net........
Receivables from CenterPoint, net.........
Federal income tax receivable/payable
Other current assets

L@l o L = B = 0 i

Accounts and other payable
Other current liabilities
Settlement of interest rate hedges

Settlement of hedges of net investment in foreign subsidiaries...........
Other 11abilataes . vttt ittt ettt ittt ettt

Net cash provided by

(used in)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Capital exXPenditUre S . @ittt ittt ittt ettt ettt eaeee et eaeeeee e

Business acquisitions,
Investments in,

Net cash used in investing activities

net of cash acquired

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Proceeds from debt ... ...t i it et e e e e

Proceeds from issuance of stock, net..........
Purchase of treasury stock
Payments of financing costs
Change in notes receivable with CenterPoint,
Contributions from CenterPoint

advances to and notes receivable from subsidiaries, net......

[ 358 o 1 o ¥

Net cash provided by financing activities

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:

Cash Payments:

I 0 s a0

Income taxes paid (income tax refunds received,

See Notes to the Condensed Financial Statements and Reliant Resources'
Consolidated Financial Statements

ITI-3

RELIANT RESOURCES,

SCHEDULE I--CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT
NOTES TO CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1) BACKGROUND AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

These condensed parent company financial statements have been prepared in

(48,365)
(4,332)
6,149
(1,141)
(4,706)
32,730
20,120

1,696,074
(189,460)

(381,854)
9,441
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accordance with Rule 12-04, Schedule 1 of Regulation S-X, as the restricted net
assets of Reliant Resources' subsidiaries exceed 25% of the consolidated net
assets of Reliant Resources. This information should be read in conjunction
with the Reliant Resources and subsidiaries consolidated financial statements
included elsewhere in this filing.

Reliant Resources, a Delaware corporation, was incorporated in August 2000
with 1,000 shares of common stock, which were owned by Reliant Energy.
Effective December 31, 2000, Reliant Energy consolidated its unregulated
operations under Reliant Resources (Consolidation). A subsidiary of
CenterPoint, RERC Corp., transferred some of its subsidiaries, including its
trading and marketing subsidiaries, to Reliant Resources. In connection with
the transfer from RERC Corp., Reliant Resources paid $94 million to RERC Corp.
Also effective December 31, 2000, CenterPoint transferred its wholesale power
generation businesses, its unregulated retail electric operations, its
communications business and most of its other unregulated businesses to Reliant
Resources. In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America, the transfers from RERC Corp. and CenterPoint were
accounted for as a reorganization of entities under common control. In
addition, corporate support and executive officers transferred to Reliant
Resources on January 1, 2001. As such, condensed financial information has not
been presented for Reliant Resources for 2000.

Reliant Resources' 100% investments in its subsidiaries have been recorded
using the equity basis of accounting in the accompanying condensed parent
company financial statements. The condensed statements of operations and
statements of cash flows are presented for 2001 and 2002.

(2) CERTAIN RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(a) Income Taxes

Prior to October 1, 2002, Reliant Resources was included in the consolidated
federal income tax returns of CenterPoint and calculated its income tax
provision on a separate return basis under a tax sharing agreement with
CenterPoint. Prior to October 1, 2002, current federal income taxes were
payable to or receivable from CenterPoint. Subsequent to September 30, 2002,
Reliant Resources will file a separate federal income tax return. As of October
1, 2002, Reliant Resources entered into a tax sharing agreement with certain of
its subsidiaries. Pursuant to the tax sharing agreement, Reliant Resources pays
all federal income taxes on behalf of its subsidiaries included in the
consolidated tax group and is entitled to any related tax refunds. The
difference between Reliant Resources' current federal income tax expense or
benefit, as calculated on a separate return basis, and related amounts payable
to/receivable from the Internal Revenue Service is reflected as an
increase/decrease to the investments in subsidiaries account and is reflected
on the subsidiaries' books as adjustments to their equity. During 2002, Reliant
Resources made equity contributions to its subsidiaries for deemed
distributions related to current federal income taxes of $64 million.

(b) Allocations of General, Administrative and Depreciation Costs and Cash
Management Function

Certain general, administrative and depreciation costs are allocated from
Reliant Resources to its subsidiaries. For 2001 and 2002, these allocations
were $136 million and $187 million, respectively, and are netted in the
applicable line on the condensed statements of operations. The unpaid
allocations are reflected as a component of current advances to and notes
receivable from subsidiaries, net in the condensed balance sheets.

Through June 30, 2002, a subsidiary of CenterPoint had established a "money
fund" through which Reliant Resources could borrow or invest on a short-term
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basis. Also, during 2001, proceeds not utilized from the IPO

ITI-4

RELIANT RESOURCES, INC.

SCHEDULE I--CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT
NOTES TO CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-- (Continued)

were advanced to this subsidiary of CenterPoint. Reliant Resources earned
interest income from CenterPoint for these short-term investments. After the
IPO, Reliant Resource established a similar "money fund" or "central bank"
through which its subsidiaries can borrow or invest on a short-term basis. The
net amounts are included in current and long-term advances to and notes
receivable from subsidiaries, net in the condensed balance sheets.

(3) RESTRICTED NET ASSETS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Certain of Reliant Resources' subsidiaries have restrictions on their
ability to pay dividends or make intercompany loans and advances pursuant to
their financing arrangements. The amount of restricted net assets of Reliant
Resources' subsidiaries as of December 31, 2002 is approximately $3.3 billion.
The restrictions are on the net assets of Orion Capital, Liberty and
Channelview. Orion MidWest and Orion NY are indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries
of Orion Capital.

It is the customary practice of Reliant Resources to loan monies to and
borrow monies from certain of its subsidiaries through the use of the "central
bank" as described in note 2 (b) above. However, there were no legally declared
cash dividends or return of shareholder's equity to Reliant Resources from its
subsidiaries in 2001 and 2002.

(4) BANKING OR DEBT FACILITIES

For a discussion of Reliant Resources' banking or debt facilities, see note
9 to Reliant Resources' consolidated financial statements. Reliant Resources'
debt obligations are included in the Other Operations segment data in note 9 to
Reliant Resources' consolidated financial statements. See note 21(a) to Reliant
Resources' consolidated financial statements for a discussion of certain debt
facilities, which were refinanced in March 2003.

Maturities of Reliant Resources' debt obligations outstanding as of December
31, 2002, under the refinanced debt facilities were as follows (in millions):

2003..... $ 350
2004..... -
2005..... -
2006..... 500
2007..... 3,416

Total. $4,266

As discussed in note 21 (a) to Reliant Resources' consolidated financial
statements, in connection with the refinancing in March 2003, we were required
to make a prepayment of $350 million under the senior revolving credit
facility. As such, this amount is classified as current in the condensed
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balance sheet. This prepayment was made from cash on hand and is available to
be reborrowed under the senior revolving credit facility.

(5) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

For a discussion of Reliant Resources' commitments and contingencies, see
note 14 to Reliant Resources' consolidated financial statements.

ITI-5

RELIANT RESOURCES, INC.

SCHEDULE I--CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT
NOTES TO CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-- (Continued)

(a) Guarantees

Reliant Resources has issued guarantees in conjunction with certain
performance agreements and commodity and derivative contracts and other
contracts that provide financial assurance to third parties on behalf of a
subsidiary or an unconsolidated third-party. The guarantees on behalf of
subsidiaries are entered into primarily to support or enhance the
creditworthiness otherwise attributed to a subsidiary on a stand-alone basis,
thereby facilitating the extension of sufficient credit to accomplish the
relevant subsidiary's intended commercial purposes.

The following table details Reliant Resources' various guarantees, including
the maximum potential amounts of future payments, assets held as collateral and
the carrying amount of the liabilities recorded on the balance sheet, if
applicable, as of December 31, 2002:

Maximum
Potential
Amount
of Future
Type of Guarantee Payments
Trading and hedging obligations (1) .« ..t iii e ettt eeeeeeeeeeannns $5,012
Guarantees under construction agency agreements (2) ........ceeueeenen.. 1,325
Payment and performance obligations under power purchase agreements
for power generation assets and renewables (3) ...ttt 339
Payment and performance obligations under service contracts (4)...... 101
Non-qualified benefits of CenterPoint's retirees (5)................. 58
Sale of electricity to large commercial, industrial and institutional
CUS T OMET S (0] 4 v et et et e e e e ettt et et et et e e e eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaeaeas 48
e ot € b = ot = o il =Y == $6,883

(1) Reliant Resources has guaranteed the performance of certain of its
wholly-owned subsidiaries' trading and hedging obligations. These
guarantees were provided to counterparties in order to facilitate physical
and financial agreements in electricity, gas, oil, transportation and
related commodities and services. These guarantees have varying expiration

Collateral
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dates. The fair values of the underlying transactions are included in
Reliant Resources' subsidiaries' balance sheets.

(2) See note 14 (b) to Reliant Resources' consolidated financial statements for
discussion of Reliant Resources' guarantees under the construction agency
agreements. These guarantees were terminated in March 2003; see note 21 (a)
to Reliant Resources' consolidated financial statements.

(3) Reliant Resources has guaranteed the payment and performance obligations of
certain wholly-owned subsidiaries arising under certain power purchase
agreements. These guarantees have varying expiration dates through 2012.

(4) Reliant Resources has guaranteed the payment obligations of certain
wholly-owned subsidiaries arising under long-term service agreements for
certain facilities. These guarantees expire over varying years through 2017.

(5) Reliant Resources has guaranteed, in the event CenterPoint becomes
insolvent, certain non-qualified benefits of CenterPoint's and its
subsidiaries' existing retirees at the Distribution. See note 4(a) to
Reliant Resources' consolidated financial statements.

(6) Reliant Resources has guaranteed commodity related payments for certain
wholly-owned subsidiaries' sale of electricity to large commercial,
industrial and institutional customers to facilitate the physical and
financial transactions of electricity services. These guarantees expire on
various dates through December 31, 2003.

ITI-6

RELIANT RESOURCES, INC.

SCHEDULE I--CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT
NOTES TO CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-- (Continued)

Unless otherwise noted, failure by the primary obligor to perform under the
terms of the various agreements and contracts guaranteed may result in the
beneficiary requesting immediate payment from Reliant Resources. To the extent
liabilities exist under the various agreements and contracts that Reliant
Resources guarantees, such liabilities are recorded in Reliant Resources'
subsidiaries' balance sheets at December 31, 2002. Management believes the
likelihood that Reliant Resources would be required to perform or otherwise
incur any significant losses associated with any of these guarantees is remote.

Reliant Resources has entered into contracts that include indemnification
provisions as a routine part of its business activities. Examples of these
contracts include asset purchase and sale agreements, lease agreements,
procurement agreements and certain debt agreements. In general, these
provisions indemnify the counterparty for matters such as breaches of
representations and warranties and covenants contained in the contract and/or
against third party liabilities. In the case of debt agreements, Reliant
Resources generally indemnifies against liabilities that arise from the
preparation, administration or enforcement of the agreement. Under the
indemnifications, the maximum potential amount is not estimable given that the
magnitude of any claims under the indemnifications would be a function of the
extent of damages actually incurred, which is not practicable to estimate
unless and until the event occurs. Management believes the likelihood of making
any material payments under these provisions is remote. For additional
discussion of certain indemnifications by Reliant Resources, see notes 4(a) and
14 (h) to Reliant Resources' consolidated financial statements.

(b) Leases

Reliant Resources has entered into various long-term non-cancelable
operating leases, such as rental agreements for building space, including the
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office space lease discussed in note 14 (a)

financial statements,

to Reliant Resources'

The

consolidated
data processing equipment and other agreements.

following table sets forth information concerning these cash obligations as of

2002:

December 31, 2002 (in millions):
2003.. ... $ 21
2004........... 20
2005........ ... 17
2006.. ..., 17
2007 ... 17
2008 and beyond 203
Total....... $295
IT1I1-7
RELIANT RESOURCES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE II-—-RESERVES
For the Three Years Ended December 31, 2002
(Thousands of Dollars)
Column A Column B Column C Column D Col
Additions
Balance at Charged to Deductions Ba
Beginning Charged Other from at
Description of Period to Income Accounts(l) Reserves (2) Pe
For the Year Ended December 31, 2000:
Accumulated provisions:
Uncollectible accounts receivable........ $ 7,803 $ 43,100 S - S 563 $5
Reserves deducted from trading and
marketing assetsS. oottt e eeeennn 11,511 54,621 —— —— 6
Reserves for accrue-in-advance major
maintenancCe. .o u ittt ittt it e et 47,809 41,306 (787) (61,253) 2
Reserves for inventory................... 5,716 - 17,053 (15, 941)
Reserves for severanCe.........oueeeeeeenn. 17,760 —— 20,065 (5,325) 3
Deferred tax assets valuation............ 3,028 17,232 —— —— 2
For the Year Ended December 31, 2001:
Accumulated provisions:
Uncollectible accounts receivable........ 51,466 38,274 1,455 (1,487) 8
Reserves deducted from trading and
marketing assetsS. oo ettt iee e eeennn 66,132 31,717 —— —— 9
Reserves for accrue-in-advance major
maintenancCe. . oottt ittt e ittt 27,075 2,383 (663) (9,419) 1
Reserves for inventory................... 6,828 51 (6,424) ——
Reserves for severanCe........eueeeeeeenn. 32,500 5,003 (1,802) (16,050) 1
Deferred tax assets valuation............ 20,260 (4,628) —— —— 1

For the Year Ended December 31,
Accumulated provisions:
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Uncollectible accounts receivable........ 89,708 21,190 2,797
Reserves deducted from trading and

marketing assetsS. oo v ettt e eeeennn 97,849 (34,938) -
Reserves for accrue-in-advance major

MaintenanCe. . v vttt i ittt et et 19,376 14,211 2,841
Reserves for inventory................... 455 3,177 208
Reserves for severanCe........eueeeeeeenn. 19,651 30,621 2,832
Deferred tax assets valuation............ 15,632 25,984 29,714

(1) Charged to other accounts represents obligations acquired through business
acquisitions and effects of foreign currency exchange rate changes.

(2) Deductions from reserves represent losses or expenses for which the
respective reserves were created. In the case of the uncollectible accounts
reserve, such deductions are net of recoveries of amounts previously
written off.

ITI-8

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To the Members of El1 Dorado Energy, LLC

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of El1 Dorado Energy, LLC
(the "Company") as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the related statements of
operations, members' equity and comprehensive income (loss), and cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2002. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company at December 31, 2002 and 2001,
and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2002, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 8 to the financial statements, the Company changed its
method of accounting for derivative instruments and hedging activities in 2001.

DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Houston, Texas
March 31, 2003

ITI-9

(44,596)
(17,437)
(12,126)

(148)
(29,617)
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EL DORADO ENERGY, LLC

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(Thousands of Dollars)

Year Ended December 31,

2002
REVENUE S s 4 4ttt ettt et ettt enneeeeeenns $100,680 s$1
Expenses:
S 79,918 1
Purchased power..... ..ot eennnnenn. 1,320
Operations and maintenance............ 12,706
Taxes other than income and insurance. 2,244
Depreciation. .. ... eennnnenn. 8,415
Total EXPENSEeS . v ieetteennnneeenns 104,603 1
Operating Income (LOSS) « v vt ienennnnnnnn (3,923)
Other TNnCOmMEe. .. i ittt ittt ettt eeeeneenns 43,719
Income (Loss) Before Interest Expense.... 39,796
Interest Expense, Net.......oooiiiinnn. (8,965)
Net INnCOmME (LOSS) vt v v et eeeeeeeeeennnnn $ 30,831 S$(

32,574

10,623
(280)
17,028
1,344
8,415
37,130
(4,556)

$260,460

129,059
4,743
6,500
1,214
4,932

146,448
114,012

(6,461)

See Notes to the Financial Statements

III-10

EL DORADO ENERGY, LLC
BALANCE SHEETS

(Thousands of Dollars)

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents.......c.ooiiiiiiiiennnennn.
Restricted cash. ...ttt ittt i i
Current portion of debt service reserve fund........
Accounts receivable. ... ..ttt it i i e e
D 0 v o e e =
Prepayments and other current assets................

December 31,
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Prepaid long-term maintenance............ccoviuiuuue.. 9,009 -
Total current assetsS. ... ittt ittt teeeeneenns 59,840 21,538
Property, Plant and Equipment, Net..............c.oo... 224,035 227,906
Other Assets:
Debt issuance costs, Net.......iiiiii it eneennnn 4,335 4,675
Debt service reserve fund.........ouiiiiieneeennnnn 7,009 14,415
Non-trading derivative asset.........cciiiiiinn.. - 184
Total other assets. ...ttt ittt ittt e et eeeennn 11,344 19,274
TOLALl ASSEEL St i ittt ettt ettt et ettt teeeeee s $295,219 $268,718
LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Current portion of long-term debt................... $ 6,312 $ 5,918
Accrued liabilities ...ttt t ittt 4,000 2,474
Non-trading derivative liability.............. ..., 4,084 3,160
Total current liabilities.........c.c.oiiiiiiennnn. 14,396 11,552
Other Liabilities:
Non-trading derivative liability.................... 2,912 -
Total other liabilities.........iiiiiiiennnn. 2,912 -
Long—term Debt .. ...ttt ittt ettt et 138,864 145,176
Commitments and Contingencies (Note 13)................
Members' Equity:
CommOn SEOCK . « v ittt e it e et e e e e e e e e 2 2
Members' capital contributions............... ... 125,022 125,022
Retained earnings (deficit) ......iiiiiiiiiennnnn 21,018 (9,813)
Accumulated other comprehensive 10SS........vvuunn.. (6,995) (3,221)
Total members' equUity. ...ttt eennnnsn 139,047 111,990
Total Liabilities and Members' Equity........ $295,219 $268,718

See Notes to the Financial Statements
ITII-11

EL DORADO ENERGY, LLC

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Thousands of Dollars)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net income

[ N 7=

Year Ended December 31,

$ 30,831

$(12,035)
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Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by

operations:

I B et Y = il A o N 8,415

Amortization of debt issuance COSLS. ..ttt ittt tteeneneennn 340

Net change in non-trading derivative assets and liabilities...... 245

Changes in assets and liabilities:
Restricted Cash. . v ittt e e e e e e e e e et et et (4,432)
Accounts recelvable . @it e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e (629)
0 RV o w3 s I == (74)
Prepaid long-term maintenanCe. ... ...t iiiein et enneeeeeeennns 1,805
[ i TSl Y = i T (386)
Other current liabilities. ... it ittt ittt eeeeneenneens 1,526
Net cash flows provided by operating activities................ 37,641

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Capital exXpPenditUres . @ vttt ittt ittt et ettt et aeeeeeeeeeanenns (9,107)
Performance guarantee settlements. ... ..ttt itiineeeeeennnneenns (6,250)
Net cash flows (used in) provided by investing activities.......... (15,357)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Proceeds from long-term debt...... ...ttt ennnnennns -

Payments of long-term debt. ... ...ttt ittt (5,918)
Changes 1in debt ServicCe resServVe . .. ..ttt ittt it teneeeeeeeenneens 252
Capital contribUtions. @ittt ittt e e et ettt e et e -

D w18 3 s o = -
Net cash flows used in financing activities.................... (5,666)

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents.........uiii ittt iinneneeeennnn 16,618
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year..........oiiiiiiienenenn.. 17,687
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year..... ..ottt ieenenennnn $ 34,305

8,415 4,9
340
(245)
32,654 (31,9
(475) (8
(97) (2
335 9
28,892 80, 4
(1,954) (6,7
(11,900) ;S
(13,854) 13,1
- 8,8
(4,339) (2,3
- ( 74
16,977 6,8
(67,056) (35,8
(54,418) (36,9
(39,380) 56,7
57,067 3

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:
Cash payments
Interest (net of amounts capitalized).........ciiiiiiinnnn. $ 8,561

See Notes to the Financial Statements

ITII-12

EL DORADO ENERGY, LLC
STATEMENTS OF MEMBERS' EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

(Thousands of Dollars, except share amounts)

Accumulated
Common Stock Members' Retained Other Tota
————————————— Capital Earnings Comprehensive Membe
Shares Amount Contributions (Deficit) Loss Equi

Balance December 31, 1999.............. 2,000 $2 $101,146 S (2,417)
Capital contributions............... 6,899
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Distributions to members............ (35,856)
Net 1ncCome. . v v ittt ittt ettt 107,551

Comprehensive income................

Balance December 31, 2000.............. 2,000 $2 $108,045 $ 69,278
Capital contributions............... 16,977
Distributions to members............ (67,056)
Net 10SS i i ittt it ettt ettt eeeeeennn (12,035)

Other comprehensive loss:
Cumulative effect of adoption of
SFAS NoO. 133. .. iiiitienennnns
Deferred loss from cash flow

Reclassification of net deferred
gain from cash flow hedge in
Net 10SS . it i ittt et eeeeeeeaennn

Comprehensive 10SS.....uovieeeeennnn.

Balance December 31, 2001.............. 2,000 $2 $125,022 S (9,813)
Net 1ncCome. .. vttt ittt e e e 30,831
Other comprehensive loss:

Deferred loss from cash flow

Reclassification of net deferred
loss from cash flow hedge in

net income. ........cuiiiiiann.

Comprehensive income................

Balance December 31, 2002.............. 2,000 $2 $125,022 $ 21,018

See Notes to the Financial Statements

III-13

EL DORADO ENERGY, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000

1. NATURE OF BUSINESS

El Dorado Energy, LLC (the "Company"), a Delaware limited liability company

formed on February 5, 1997, is jointly owned by Reliant Energy Power

Generation, Inc. ("REPG") and Sempra Energy Power I ("SEP I") (collectively,
the "Members"). REPG is a subsidiary of Reliant Resources, Inc. ("Reliant
Resources"). SEP I is a subsidiary of Sempra Energy, Incorporated ("Sempra").

The Company was formed to develop, construct, and operate a 470 megawatt
gas—fired power generation plant located in Boulder City, Nevada (the
"Project"). The Company is governed by a management committee with equal
representation from each of the Members.

Under the terms of the Company's limited liability agreement, the Company
will continue until the earliest of (a) such time as all of the Company's

$ 2,115

(4,339)

$(3,221)

(35,

$177,
16,
(671
(121
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assets have been sold or otherwise disposed of, (b) such time the Company's
existence has been terminated or (c) September 2048. The Members are not
personally liable for any amount in excess of their respective capital
contributions, and are not liable for any of the debts and losses of the
Company, except to the extent that a liability of the Company is founded upon
results from an unauthorized act or activity of such Member.

Construction on the Project began in December 1997 and conditions for
Provisional Performance Acceptance ("PPA") were achieved on May 3, 2000. Total
cost of the project was $272 million and was funded through a $157.8 million
credit agreement ("Credit Agreement") (see Note 3), and capital contributions
received from the Members.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Reclassifications.

Some amounts from the previous years have been reclassified to conform to
the 2002 presentation of financial statements. These reclassifications do not
affect earnings.

Use of Estimates.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
these estimates.

Market Risk and Uncertainties.

The Company is subject to the risk associated with price movements of energy
commodities and the credit risk associated with the Company's risk management
and hedging activities. For additional information regarding these risks, see
Note 8. The Company is also subject to risks, among others, relating to the
supply of fuel and sales of electricity, effects of competition, changes in
interest rates, operation of deregulating power markets, seasonal weather
patterns, technological obsolescence, and the regulatory environment in the
United States.

Revenue Recognition.

Revenue consists primarily of energy sales. Power produced by the Project is
sold on an equal basis to affiliates of Reliant Resources and Sempra under the
provisions of separate power offtake agreements (See Note 7). Revenues not
billed by month-end are accrued based upon estimated energy or services

delivered.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents.
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Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid investments with an original
maturity of three months or less which are readily convertible to cash.

Restricted Cash.

Restricted cash includes cash that is restricted by a financing agreement
but available to satisfy certain obligations. As of December 31, 2002 and 2001,
the Company had $4.4 million and $0 in restricted cash, respectively, recorded
in the balance sheet.

Inventory.

Inventory consists of materials and supplies held for consumption and is
stated at lower of weighted average cost or market.

Debt Service Reserve Fund.

In accordance with the Credit Agreement, the Company is required to maintain
a debt service reserve fund (see Note 3). The restricted funds are invested in
a money market fund.

Debt Issuance Costs.

Costs associated with executing the Credit Agreement were deferred and are
being amortized on a straight-line basis, which approximates the effective
yield method, over the life of the term note under the Credit Agreement (15
years) (see Note 3). As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, the Company had $4.3
million and $4.7 million, respectively, of net deferred financing costs
capitalized in its balance sheets.

Income Taxes.

The Company is a limited liability company not taxable for federal or state
income tax purposes. Any taxable earnings or losses and certain other tax
attributes are reported by the Members on their respective income tax returns.

Estimated Fair Value of Financial Instruments.

The recorded amounts for financial instruments of cash and cash equivalents,
accounts receivable, debt service reserve fund, and long-term debt approximate
fair value.

The Company enters into interest rate swap agreements to reduce its exposure
to fluctuations in interest rates. These contracts are with a major financial
institution and the risk of counterparty default is considered remote. The

Company periodically reviews its credit risk.

The Company does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for
trading purposes.

See Note 8 for the Company's adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards ("SFAS") No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging

Activities," as amended ("SFAS No. 133") on January 1, 2001.
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For the Years Ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000

Property, Plant and Equipment.

Property, plant, and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is computed
using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives commencing when
assets, or major components thereof, are placed in service. Property, plant,
and equipment consisted of the following:

Estimated December 31,
Useful Lives ——————————————————
(Years) 2002 2001

(in thousands)

Generation plant-in-service....... 30 $237,600 $233,307
Buildings......coiiiiiiiiinnnen. 30 2,653 2,653
Land improvements................. 20 3,933 3,933
Machinery and equipment........... 5 to 10 1,360 1,360
Total property, plant, & equipment 245,546 241,253
Less: Accumulated depreciation.... (21,511) (13,347)
Property, plant and equipment, net $224,035 $227,906

New Accounting Pronouncements

In August 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued
SFAS No. 143, "Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations" ("SFAS No. 143").
SFAS No. 143 requires the fair value of a liability for legal asset retirement
obligations to be recognized in the period in which it is incurred. When the
liability is initially recorded, associated costs are capitalized by increasing
the carrying amount of the related long-lived asset. Over time, the liability
is accreted to its present value each period, and the capitalized cost is
depreciated over the useful life of the related asset. SFAS No. 143 is
effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2002, with earlier
application encouraged. SFAS No. 143 requires entities to record a cumulative
effect of change in accounting principle in the statement of operations in the
period of adoption. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of SFAS No.
143 on its financial statements.

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, "Accounting for the Impairment
or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets" ("SFAS No. 144"). SFAS No. 144 provides new
guidance on the recognition of impairment losses on long-lived assets to be
held and used or to be disposed of and also broadens the definition of what
constitutes a discontinued operation and how the results of a discontinued
operation are to be measured and presented. SFAS No. 144 supersedes SFAS No.
121 "Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived
Assets to Be Disposed Of" and Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 30,
"Reporting the Results of Operations—-—-Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a
Segment of a Business, and Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring
Events and Transactions," while retaining many of the requirements of these two
statements. Under SFAS No. 144, assets held for sale that are a component of an
entity will be included in discontinued operations if the operations and cash
flows will be or have been eliminated from the ongoing operations of the entity
and the entity will not have any significant continuing involvement in the
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operations prospectively. SFAS No. 144 did not materially change the methods
used by the Company to measure impairment losses on long-lived assets. The
Company adopted SFAS No. 144 on January 1, 2002.
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3. LONG-TERM DEBT

In September 1998, the Company entered into a Credit Agreement with a group
of banks (the "Lenders") in order to finance a portion of the construction of
the Project. The Credit Agreement provides for $157.8 million of construction
and term loan financing. On September 29, 2000, all outstanding construction
borrowings were converted into a term loan provided within the Credit
Agreement. Principal payments under the term loan are payable in escalating
amounts over the 15-year term of the loan. The following table sets forth the
maturities of long-term debt for the Company as of December 31, 2002 (in
millions) :

Upon conversion into a term loan, the Credit Agreement required that the
Company maintain a debt service reserve fund amount for the two succeeding
calendar quarter periods. Debt service means for any period all principal
payments, all interest payments, and all other fees made or required by the
Company during such period under the Credit Agreement and any other loan
document. This amount was increased to reserve twelve months of debt service as
a commitment from the Company until the later of (a) the Project achieving
Project Completion as defined in the Engineering, Procurement and Construction
Agreement ("EPC") or (b) May 1, 2003. At December 31, 2002 and 2001, the
Company had $14.2 million and $14.4 million, respectively, in the debt service
reserve fund account.

Interest payments on the term note accrue at variable rates based upon
either prime lending rates or the Eurodollar rate. At December 31, 2002 and
2001, the applicable interest rates under the Credit Agreement prior to
consideration of the interest rate swaps (see Note 8) were 3.05% and 3.24%,
respectively.

Borrowings under the Credit Agreement are secured by substantially all
assets of the Company. The Credit Agreement contains customary covenants and
default provisions, including limitations on, among other things, additional
indebtedness, liens, establishment of an additional debt service reserve,
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retention, and major maintenance reserve accounts, and restricted payments. At
December 31, 2002, the Company was in compliance with these covenants.

In 2001, the Company, the Lenders, the Members and affiliates of the Members
entered into an Amended and Restated Waiver of Consent, and Amendment to the
Credit Agreement (the "Amendment") which required the affiliates to purchase
capacity and electric energy from the Company during the period from January
26, 2001 to June 30, 2001 (the "Waiver Period"), at certain prices designed to
ensure that the Company maintains a Cash Flow to Debt Service Ratio of 1.5:1 as
of any date of calculation for the immediately preceding quarter. The Amendment
also provided that during any outage period the Cash Flow to Debt Service Ratio
is satisfied by contributions of capital to the Company from the Members.
Through the Amendment, the Lenders agreed to waive compliance with certain
provisions of the Credit Agreement primarily relating to indices used in
calculating electricity sales prices during the Waiver Period.

The $5 million working capital facility under the Credit Agreement expired
in May 2002 and was replaced by two working capital facilities of $2.5 million
each provided by Reliant Resources and Sempra. The Company pays a commitment
fee based on the average daily, unused working capital commitment balance at a
rate of 0.38% per annum. At December 31, 2002 and 2001, there were no
borrowings under the working capital facility.
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4. LEASE AGREEMENT

In April 1997, the Company entered into a 20-year lease agreement for
certain parcels of land on which the Project is constructed. The Company has
the option to extend the term of the lease through two renewal options of five
years each and intends to exercise that option. The Company's obligations under
this non-cancelable long-term operating lease as of December 31, 2002 are $0.8
million per year in each of 2003 through 2007 plus a contingent rental, which
is based on 2% of net income, adjusted for principal payments and a 16% return
on equity. Total lease expense was $0.8 million for each of the years ended
December 31, 2002 and 2001 and $1.3 million for the year ended December 31,
2000. The payment of the contingent rental fee is dependent upon the Company
achieving certain adjusted net income levels.

5. MEMBERS' EQUITY

The Company received capital contributions, pursuant to the Amendment to the
Credit Agreement discussed in Note 3, from its Members as follows (See Note 7):

2002 2001 2000

(in thousands)

REPG..... $S—— S 8,489 $3,449
SEP I.... —— 8,488 3,450
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Total. $-- $16,977 $6,899

6. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

The Company participates in a defined contribution employee savings plan
that is qualified under Section 401 (a) of the Internal Revenue Code and ERISA
Section 404 (c). The Company contributes an amount equal to 4% of each
employee's earnings into this account each year regardless of participation. It
then matches 75% of employee contributions up to 6% of the respective
employee's earnings (as defined in the savings plan). Participating employees
may contribute up to 11% of their pre-tax earnings under the plan. Savings plan
benefit expense for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 was
$176,000, $67,000, and $65,000, respectively.

7. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company has entered into technical service agreements with REPG and SEP
I. REPG and SEP I bill the Company for the services based on the estimated cost
of their employees who are working on the Project and for certain payments that
were made on behalf of the Company. For the years ended December 31, 2002,
2001, and 2000 under the above agreements, the Company paid REPG $0.7 million,
$1.7 million, and $3.6 million, respectively, and SEP I $26,300, $0.2 million,
and $0.7 million, respectively.

In 2000, during the testing phase, the Company received $55,000 and $1.3
million of revenue from affiliates of Sempra and Reliant Resources,
respectively. These amounts were recorded as a reduction of the Project's total
construction costs.

The Company and certain affiliates of Sempra and Reliant Resources are
parties to separate offtake and gas supply agreements which provide for the
purchase of gas and the sale of electric energy attributable to the Company's
available capacity based on either a month-ahead or day-ahead nomination. The
electricity prices used in 2001 were based on the market clearing prices from
the California Power Exchange through January 25, 2001. For the period from
January 26, 2001 through June 30, 2001, the Company sold capacity and energy to
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affiliates of the Members under the terms of the Amendment to the Credit
Agreement discussed in Note 3. For the period January 26, 2001 through February
28, 2001, the Company received revenues from the affiliates equal to the cost
of gas used in producing the electricity plus a fixed scheduling fee. For the
period March 1, 2001 through June 30, 2001, the Company received revenues from
the trading affiliates based on electricity prices derived from a natural gas
index, applicable heat rate and operations and maintenance charges. The Members
each contributed capital of $8.5 million in 2001 in order to maintain the
required Cash Flow to Debt Service Ratio for the Waiver Period discussed in
Note 3. From July 1, 2001 forward, under an amendment to the offtake and gas
supply agreements, the Company is paid based on the Dow Jones SP15 index. In
2000, the prices as established by the California Power Exchange served as the
basis of payment.
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In 2002, 2001, and 2000, under these offtake and gas supply agreements, the
Company recorded gross margin of $11.7 million, $16.4 million, and $66.2
million from an affiliate of Reliant Resources, respectively, and $11.7
million, $8.5 million, and $62.4 million from an affiliate of Sempra,
respectively. At December 31, 2002, the Company had an estimated net receivable
of $1.1 million from each of the affiliates of Sempra and Reliant Resources.
The Company also paid each affiliate a monthly scheduling fee of $32,000.

The Company has purchased a $2.0 million surety bond securing its financial
and performance obligations under the terms of the service agreement for
transportation of customer secured natural gas. No draws were made under this
bond in 2002, 2001, or 2000.

8. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(a) Risk Management Activities.

Effective January 1, 2001, the Company adopted SFAS No. 133, which
establishes accounting and reporting standards for derivative instruments,
including certain hedging instruments, embedded in other contracts and for
hedging activities. This statement requires that derivatives be recognized at
fair value in the balance sheet and that changes in fair value be recognized
either currently in earnings or deferred as a component of other comprehensive
income (loss), depending on the intended use of the derivative, its resulting
designation and its effectiveness. If certain conditions are met, an entity may
designate a derivative instrument as hedging (a) the exposure to changes in the
fair value of an asset or liability, (b) the exposure to variability in future
cash flows or (c) the foreign currency exposure of a net investment in a
foreign operation. For a derivative not designated as a hedging instrument, the
gain or loss is recognized in earnings in the period it occurs. The Company did
not enter into any fair value or foreign exchange hedges in 2002 or 2001.

Adoption of SFAS No. 133 on January 1, 2001 resulted in a cumulative
increase in accumulated other comprehensive income of approximately $2.1
million. The adoption also increased current assets and non-current assets by
$0.7 million and $1.4 million, respectively. During the year ended December 31,
2001, $0.7 million of the initial transition adjustment in other comprehensive
income was recognized in net loss.

The Company is exposed to various market risks. These risks are inherent in
the Company's financial statements and arise from transactions entered into in
the normal course of business. The Company uses interest rate swap agreements
to mitigate the effect of changes in interest rates on the borrowings under the
Credit Agreement discussed in Note 3.

(b) Non-Trading Activities.

Cash Flow Hedges. The Company applies hedge accounting for its derivative
financial instrument used in non-trading activities only if there is a high
correlation between price movements in the derivative and the item designated
as being hedged. The correlation, a measure of hedge effectiveness, is assessed

both at the inception
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For the Years Ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000

of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, with an acceptable level of correlation
of at least 80% to 125% required for hedge designation. If and when correlation
ceases to exist at an acceptable level, hedge accounting ceases and prospective
changes in fair value are recognized currently in the Company's results of
operations. During the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, the amount of
hedge ineffectiveness recognized in earnings from derivatives that are
considered cash flow hedges was $0.2 of loss and $0.2 million of gain,
respectively. No component of derivative gain or loss was excluded from the
assessment of effectiveness. When it becomes probable that an anticipated
transaction will not occur, the Company realizes in net income the deferred
gains or losses recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss. During the
year ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, there were no deferred gains or losses
recognized as a result of the discontinuance of cash flow hedges where it was
no longer probable that the forecasted transaction would occur. Once the
forecasted transaction occurs, the accumulated deferred gain or loss recognized
in accumulated other comprehensive loss is reclassified to net income and
included in the Company's Statements of Operations under the caption interest
expense in the case of interest rate swap transactions. As of December 31,
2002, the Company expects $4.0 million of accumulated comprehensive loss to be
reclassified into net income during the next twelve months.

The maximum length of time the Company is hedging its exposure to payment of
variable interest rates is two years.

The Company has entered into an interest rate swap agreement with a
counterparty that fixes the interest rate applicable to the Company's floating
rate debt (see Note 3). As of December 31, 2002, floating rate LIBOR-based
interest payments are exchanged for fixed-rate interest payments of 5.34%. The
notional amount of the interest rate swap agreement was $108.1 million and
$112.5 million at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

9. EPC CONTRACT CLOSEOUT SETTLEMENT

Kiewit Industrial Company ("Kiewit") was the engineering, procurement and
construction contractor for the Project. In December 2000, the Company drew on
Kiewit's $19.9 million performance guarantee letter of credit because several
issues remained unresolved with Kiewit related to the construction of the
Project. The issues included performance shortfall and guarantee payments, late
completion payments, delayed start up claims, completion of punchlist items,
and outstanding warranty items.

In April 2001, in order to resolve EPC performance shortfall issues and
remaining contract obligations with Kiewit, the Company entered into a Project
Closeout Agreement with Kiewit and Siemens Westinghouse Power Corporation, the
manufacturer of certain equipment at the Project. The agreement provides for
the return of $18.2 million of the $19.9 million drawn on Kiewit's letter of
credit in December 2000 upon successful completion of various modifications.
During 2002 and 2001, the Company returned $6.3 million and $11.9 million to
Kiewit, respectively. The Company will retain $1.7 million as compensation for
Kiewit's remaining contract obligations, which has been recorded as a reduction
of property, plant and equipment.

10. LONG-TERM POWER GENERATION MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT

On September 30, 2002, the Company entered into a long-term power generation
maintenance agreement that covers certain periodic maintenance, including
parts, on power generation turbines. The term of the agreement is based on
turbine usage which the Company estimates would extend no longer than 12 years.
The amount recognized in operations and maintenance expense under the terms of
this agreement during 2002 was $2.9 million.
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Payments under the agreement include fees for administration and management
and a variable fee based on a charge for each hour the unit runs. The fee is
also adjusted annually for escalation and may be adjusted based on the number
of times a unit is started.
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The payments are classified as prepayments on the balance sheet and are
expensed as the services are provided. While some services are provided ratably
throughout the year, the primary driver of the expense will be planned outages
at the facility and are subject to fluctuations based on the timing and scope
of the services being provided.

As of December 31, 2002, no payments have been made under the long-term
maintenance agreements. Estimated cash payments over the five succeeding fiscal
years are as follows (in millions):

2003..... $ 8
2004..... 9
2005..... 7
2006..... 8
2007..... 8

—
O
t+
o)
=

I
fiIsy
o

11. POWER PURCHASE AGREEMENT

On December 18, 2002, the Company entered into a power purchase agreement
with the City of Boulder City, Nevada (the "City") for the sale of up to 10 MW
per year beginning on April 1, 2003 and terminating on March 31, 2023. The
contract gives the City the option to purchase energy from the Company at a
rate that is based on a fixed heat rate, variable natural gas price at the time
of energy consumption, and a fixed margin. No revenues were earned in 2002
under this contract.

12. INSURANCE PROCEEDS

During 2002, the Company received proceeds for certain business interruption
and property insurance claims for $37.4 million and $6.3 million, respectively.
These proceeds relate to the steam turbine outage that occurred on March 13,
2001. The proceeds are classified as other income in the statements of
operations.

13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
The Company is involved in various claims and lawsuits regarding matters

arising in the ordinary course of business. The Company believes that the
effects on the financial statements, if any, from the disposition of these
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matters will not have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial
condition, results of operations or cash flows.

* Kk X%
I11-21
ITEM 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and
Financial Disclosure.
None.
PART ITIT
ITEM 10. Directors and Executive Officers.

The information called for by Item 10, to the extent not set forth in
"Executive Officers" in Item 1, will be set forth in the definitive proxy
statement relating to our 2003 annual meeting of stockholders pursuant to SEC
Regulation 14A. Such definitive proxy statement relates to a meeting of
stockholders involving the election of directors and the portions thereof
called for by Item 10 are incorporated herein by reference pursuant to
Instruction G to Form 10-K/A.

ITEM 11. Executive Compensation.

The information called for by Item 11 will be set forth in the definitive
proxy statement relating to our 2003 annual meeting of stockholders pursuant to
SEC Regulation 14A. Such definitive proxy statement relates to a meeting of
stockholders involving the election of directors and the portions thereof
called for by Item 11 are incorporated herein by reference pursuant to
Instruction G to Form 10-K/A.

ITEM 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and
Related Stockholder Matters.

The information called for by Item 12 will be set forth in the definitive
proxy statement relating to our 2003 annual meeting of stockholders pursuant to
SEC Regulation 14A. Such definitive proxy statement relates to a meeting of
stockholders involving the election of directors and the portions thereof
called for by Item 12 are incorporated herein by reference pursuant to
Instruction G to Form 10-K/A.

ITEM 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions.

The information called for by Item 12 will be set forth in the definitive
proxy statement relating to our 2003 annual meeting of stockholders pursuant to
SEC Regulation 14A. Such definitive proxy statement relates to a meeting of
stockholders involving the election of directors and the portions thereof
called for by Item 12 are incorporated herein by reference pursuant to
Instruction G to Form 10-K/A.

ITEM 14. Controls and Procedures.
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our chief executive officer and chief financial officer have evaluated the
effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as such term is

defined in Rules 13a-14(c) and 15d-14(c) under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934) as of a date, the evaluation date, within 90 days prior to the filing
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date of our Form 10-K/A. Based on such evaluation, such officers have concluded
that, as of the evaluation date, our disclosure controls and procedures are
effective in alerting them on a timely basis to material information required
to be included in our reports filed or submitted under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934.

Changes in Internal Controls
Since the evaluation date, there have not been any significant changes in
our internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect such

controls.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K.

(a) (1) Reliant Resources, Inc. and Subsidiaries Financial Statements.
Independent AUditorsS' ReEPOI L . i ittt ittt it e et ettt ee e eaaeeeeeeeeanenn F-2
Statements of Consolidated Operations for the Years Ended December 31, 2000, 2001
ANA 2002 . ottt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e et e e F-3
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2001 and 2002. ...ttt ineennenn. F-4
Statements of Consolidated Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31, 2000, 2001
ANA 2002 . ottt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e et e e F-5
Statements of Consolidated Stockholders' Equity and Comprehensive Income (Loss)
for the Years Ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002. ...ttt itetteeeneenennn F-6
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. ... ...ttt iime it et teneeeeeeeeannens F-7
(a) (2) Financial Statement Schedules.

Schedule I--Condensed Financial Information of Reliant Resources, Inc.
Condensed Statements of Operations for the Years Ended December 31, 2001

ANA 2002 . ¢t i et e et e e e e e e e et e e ettt e e ITI-1
Condensed Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2001 and 2002.. ...ttt eneennnn I11-2
Condensed Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31, 2001

ANA 2002 . ¢t ittt e e e e e e e e e e et e e ettt e ITI-3
Notes to Condensed Financial Statements. ... ...ttt iti ettt eeeeeeeeeeeannens I1I1-4

Schedule II-—-Reliant Resources, Inc. and Subsidiaries——-Reserves for the Three Years
Ended December 31, 2002. . i ittt ittt ittt teeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeneeeneens III-8

The following schedules are omitted because of the absence of the conditions
under which they are required or because the required information is included
in the financial statements: III, IV and V.

El Dorado Energy, LLC Financial Statements.

The following financial statements of our unconsolidated investment of E1
Dorado Energy, LLC are presented pursuant to Rule 3-09 of Regulation S-X.

Independent AUditorsS' ReEPOI L . i ittt ittt e it ettt ettt e eeee et eeaaeeeeeeens ITII-9
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Statements of Operations for the Years Ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 III-10

Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2002 and 2001 . ... it intiittteeeeeeeeenennn II1-11
Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and

2000 . et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e III-12
Statements of Members' Equity and Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the Years

Ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 . .. ittt iittteeneeeeeeneeonneeneenns II1-13
Notes to Financial Statements. ... ...ttt ittt ittt teeeeeeeeaneeeeeeens II1-14

(a) (3) Exhibits

See Index of Exhibits, which index also include the management contracts or
compensatory plans or arrangements required to be filed as exhibits to this
Form 10-K/A by Item 601 (b) (10) (iii) of Regulation S-K.

(b) Reports on Form 8-K.

Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 30, 2002, as filed with the
SEC on October 11, 2002 (Items 5 and 7).

Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 29, 2002, as filed with the SEC
on October 29, 2002 (Items 5, 7 and 9).

Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 11, 2002, as filed with the SEC
on November 12, 2002 (Items 5 and 7).

Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 13, 2002, as filed with the SEC
on November 21, 2002 (Items 5 and 7).

Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 25, 2002, as filed with the SEC
on November 25, 2002 (Items 7 and 9).

Iv-1

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this Amendment No. 1 to
Annual Report on Form 10-K/A to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned,
thereunto duly authorized.

RELIANT RESOURCES, INC.
(Registrant)

By: /S/ JOEL V. STAFF

Joel V. Staff
Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer
April 30, 2003

Iv-2

CERTIFICATIONS

I, Joel V. Staff, certify that:
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I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K/A of Reliant Resources,
Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this Annual Report does not contain any untrue
statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which
such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period
covered by this Annual Report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial
information included in this Annual Report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and
cash flows of the Registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in
this Annual Report;

The Registrant's other certifying officers and I are responsible for
establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the Registrant and
we have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that
material information relating to the Registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this Annual Report
is being prepared;

(b) evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant's disclosure controls
and procedures as of a date within 90 days prior to the filing date
of this Annual Report (the "Evaluation Date"); and

(c) presented in this Annual Report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures based on our
evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

The Registrant's other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based
on our most recent evaluation, to the Registrant's auditors and the
audit committee of Registrant's board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent function):

(a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal
controls which could adversely affect the Registrant's ability to
record, process, summarize and report financial data and have
identified for the Registrant's auditors any material weaknesses in
internal controls; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other
employees who have a significant role in the Registrant's internal
controls; and

The Registrant's other certifying officers and I have indicated in this
Annual Report whether or not there were significant changes in internal
controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal
controls subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including
any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and
material weaknesses.

April 30, 2003 /s/ JOEL V. STAFF

Joel V. Staff
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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CERTIFICATIONS

I, Mark M. Jacobs, certify that:

1.

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K/A of Reliant Resources,
Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this Annual Report does not contain any untrue
statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which
such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period
covered by this Annual Report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial
information included in this Annual Report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and
cash flows of the Registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in
this Annual Report;

The Registrant's other certifying officers and I are responsible for
establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the Registrant and
we have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that
material information relating to the Registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this Annual Report
is being prepared;

(b) evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant's disclosure controls
and procedures as of a date within 90 days prior to the filing date
of this Annual Report (the "Evaluation Date"); and

(c) presented in this Annual Report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures based on our
evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

The Registrant's other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based
on our most recent evaluation, to the Registrant's auditors and the
audit committee of Registrant's board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent function):

(a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal
controls which could adversely affect the Registrant's ability to
record, process, summarize and report financial data and have
identified for the Registrant's auditors any material weaknesses in
internal controls; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other
employees who have a significant role in the Registrant's internal
controls; and

The Registrant's other certifying officers and I have indicated in this
Annual Report whether or not there were significant changes in internal
controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal
controls subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including
any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and
material weaknesses.
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2003

/s/ MARK M. JACOBS

Mark M. Jacobs
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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Share Subscription Agreement dated
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Statement on Form S-1
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Provinciaal En Gemeenelijk Utrechts
Stroomleveringsdedrijf, Reliant Energy Power
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N.V.,

Share Purchase Agreement dated March 29,
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Series A Pass Through Trust Agreement dated
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the formation of the Series A Pass Through
Trust and the issuance of Series A Pass
Through Certificates.

Document Description

Schedule identifying substantially identical
agreements to Pass Through Trust Agreement
constituting Exhibit 10.19.

Participation Agreement dated as of August
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Atlantic Power Holding, LLC, as Facility

Form 10-K/A
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Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
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Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 1999.
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Lessee, Wilmington Trust Company, as Lessor
Manager, PSEGR Conemaugh Generation,

LLC, as Owner Participant, Bankers Trust
Company, as Lease Indenture Trustee, and
Bankers Trust Company, as Pass Through
Trustee.

Schedule Identifying substantially identical
agreements to Participation Agreement
constituting Exhibit 10.21.

Lease Indenture of Trust, Mortgage and
Security Agreement dated as of August 24,
2000 between Conemaugh Lessor Genco LLC
and Bankers Trust Company.

Schedule identifying substantially identical
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constituting Exhibit 10.23.
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Compensation Plan effective as of
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Reliant Energy, Incorporated's Deferred
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effective January 1, 1989, including the first
nine amendments thereto (Reliant Resources
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Compensation Plan, as amended and restated
effective January 1, 1991, including the first
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Restoration Plan effective January 1, 1991,
including the first and second amendments
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Benefits Plan effective January 1, 1992,
including the first amendment thereto (Reliant
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Insurance Plan effective January 1, 1994,
including the first and second amendments
thereto (Reliant Resources has adopted certain
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Registration Statement
of REMA.

Registration Statement
of REMA.

Reliant Resources,
Statement on Form S-1

Reliant Resources,
Statement on Form S-1

Reliant Resources,
Statement on Form S-1

Reliant Resources,
Statement on Form S-1

Reliant Resources,
Statement on Form S-1

Reliant Resources,
Statement on Form S-1

Inc.

Inc.

Inc.

Inc.

Inc.

Inc.

on Form S-4

on Form S-4

on Form S-4

Registration

Registration

Registration

Registration

Registration

Registration

157

333

333

333

333

333

333

333

333

333



Exhibit
Number

*10.

10.

*10.

*10.

*10.

*10.

*10.

10.

10.

*10.

*10.

+10.

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

Edgar Filing: RELIANT RESOURCES INC - Form 10-K/A

Document Description

Employment and Supplemental Benefits
Agreement dated September 4, 1984 between
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Energy, Incorporated's obligations under this
agreement) .

REPGB Stranded Cost Settlement Agreement
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Letbetter
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Harvey
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Perkins
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effective May 4, 2001
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